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G BE

YBEETIIAT HK$ Million 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
kR Shareholders’ funds 13,673 15,390 16,701 19,045 20,445
{&lBES Subordinated notes 3,654 3,936 3,722 5,391 5,279
ZPEH Deposits from customers 111,629 116,527 128,220 140,916 149,264
BEINEHE Certificates of deposit issued 3,164 5,752 6,133 6,110 6,232
Faes Total deposits 114,793 122,279 134,353 147,026 155,496
RESE Total liabilities

(BIEEEER) (including subordinated notes) 139,803 150,391 160,296 177,290 186,883
XFER Advances to customers

(TREESER) (excluding trade bills) 80,867 86,174 97,978 105,230 109,625
EERE Total assets 157,047 169,692 181,330 201,408 212,792
R (T Profit attributable to shareholders 1,070 1,301 1,498 1,727 1,947
PERERS Total dividend distribution 313 350 397 419 442
AT HK$
FRERRH Basic earnings per share 351 423 4.84 5.29 5.81
BRRE Dividends per share 1.07 1.18 1.22 1.25 1.32

RIeREEERAA |



MR
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFH DSFIH DSFIH

BEEHAE
Total assets
HEB T HKS Million

REEHR/ FHREE _
Advances to customers / Total deposits
BEB T HK$ Million

180000 220000
168000 S
~
156000 192500 g
144000 S
)
132000 2 165000 & o
@ o
120000 o S ©
2
] - 137500
108000 N
96000
110000
84000
72000
82500
60000
48000 55000
36000
24000 27500
12000
0 0
11 12 13 14 15 11 12 13 14 15
R BEFER(TREEHER) BERE
- Total deposits - Advances to customers - Total assets
(excluding trade bills)
BEES SREARF / SRKE
Shareholders’ funds Basic earnings per share /
EEIT HKS Million Dividends per share
BT HKS
21000 6
5
16800
4
12600
3
8400
2
4200
1 g 8
0 o L’ J |
11 12 13 14 15
RRES GRS BREARRT

Shareholders’ funds

Dividends per share

Basic earnings per share

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015



AR R

S 3
E
EFEEIERITHAREL
FiRE
B

oy

BYFHTES

sERHE
£
PRER

FUTES
FiE
ATHEE
B

BERE=E

I
THEZETEE

=
TR
B4

B
E=
RRHER

S

FEFcis, FCS

RIeREEERAA |

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Managing Director and Chief Executive
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Nicholas John Mayhew

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Lon Dounn

Seiji Nakamura

Blair Chilton Pickerell

Non-Executive Directors

Takashi Morimura
Toshihide Motoshita
John Wai-Wai Chow

Alternate Director

Eiichi Yoshikawa
Alternate to Takashi Morimura

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

Lon Dounn

Blair Chilton Pickerell

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

Seiji Nakamura

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Doris Wai-Nar Wong FCIS, FCS



TrHE
R

RAIRTTEE G IR 7] E FRRCTEFR TR A

ERIE
AN FZREBEER L A RAZRER (1976)
BRAAIEFRTTHARE

A RS B BTG
BENE DA

SRR o EMEEVEAT

HBEETITE1085

AEFT LR 3618

EEE : 2507 8866

{55 : 2598 5052

IRIREI % E 5 - DSBAHKHH
#34t : http://www.dahsing.com

EBPREBELEEZLBREAR
ERETEFAKER 1835
ARMBLT7EI7TI2E17T16 E

HFEBMAXZMERAT : 0440

HERE

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Group General Manager
Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited

Jimmy Wing-Fai Poon
Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Life Assurance Company
Limited and Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong

Herbert Smith Freehills

36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.I.LF.T.: DSBAHKHH

Website: http://www.dahsing.com

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 0440
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Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 75, was appointed as the Chairman of the Company
in 1987. He is currently the Chairman of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”), Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited (“DSLA”),
Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited, Macau Insurance
Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company Limited and
various other companies. He serves as a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of both the Company and DSBG. Mr.
Wong is the Honorary President of Guangdong Chamber of Foreign
Investors and a Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers.
Mr. Wong has over 45 years of experience in banking and finance.
He is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, the Group General
Manager of the Company, Managing Director and Chief Executive of
DSBG, Vice Chairman of DSB and DSLA, and an Executive Director
of the Company’s other key operating banking and insurance
subsidiaries.

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 75, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 1997. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Dah
Sing Bank, Limited, Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited. He serves as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of both
the Company and DSBG, and is a non-executive Director to a number
of Hong Kong listed companies as set out below. Mr. Sze is a Fellow
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was a
former partner of an international firm of accountants with which he

practised for over 20 years.

Apart from the Company and DSBG, Mr. Sze also holds/held
directorships in other Hong Kong listed companies during the last
3 years, namely, China Travel International Investment Hong Kong
Limited, Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited, Min Xin Holdings Limited,
Nanyang Holdings Limited, Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings
Limited, Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holdings Limited (retired
in June 2013) and QPL International Holdings Limited (retired in
September 2013).
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Mr. Lon Dounn (Lonnie Dounn)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Dounn, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company in
April 2012. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director and the
Chairman of Risk Management and Compliance Committee of Dah
Sing Bank, Limited. He also served as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited between December 2010
and March 2012. Mr. Dounn has over 30 years of extensive experience
in the banking industry and had assumed various senior executive
positions in credit and risk management in a number of banks,
including HSBC and Bank of China.

Mr. Seiji Nakamura
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Nakamura, aged 73, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company in June 2012. He served as
an Alternate Director to two Non-Executive Directors of the Company
during 1998 to 2003. Mr. Nakamura was appointed as an External
Director of Kurita Water Industries Ltd. which is listed in Tokyo Stock
Exchange in June 2013. Mr. Nakamura has over 40 years of extensive
experience in the shipping industry, in addition to the 5 years’ financial
sector and regulatory experience as a member of the Policy Board of
the Bank of Japan during April 2007 to April 2012.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pickerell, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company in June 2013. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Finance Committee, Nominating and
Governance Committee and Strategic Issues Committee of The
Principal Financial Group (which is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange) and an Independent Non-Executive Director and a member
of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
Link Real Estate Investment Trust (which is listed in Hong Kong). Mr.
Pickerell joined Jardine Matheson Holdings Group in 1984 and held
various positions in Jardine Matheson Holdings Group, including as
General Manager of Jardine Fleming Taiwan, President of Taiwan
International Securities Corporation, Development Director of
Mandarin Oriental Hotel Group, General Manager of Jardine Fleming
Unit Trusts, and Managing Director of Jardine Pacific Limited. From
1999 to 2002, Mr. Pickerell was Managing Director of JF Asset
Management Limited. He also served as Chairman of JF Funds
Limited during part of that time. In 2003, he joined HSBC Investments
(Hong Kong) Limited as the Chief Executive Officer, Asia Pacific.
From 2007 to 2010, he served as Managing Director and CEO, Asia,
of Morgan Stanley Investment Management. He was the Head of
Asia and Global Chief Marketing Officer of Nikko Asset Management
Group which he joined in 2010 and served as the Chairman, Asia of
Nikko Asset Management Company till July 2015. Mr. Pickerell is a
member of the Supervisory Committee of Tracker Fund of Hong Kong,
a vice patron of The Community Chest of Hong Kong, a director of
Harvard Business School Association of Hong Kong and a member of
the Main Board and GEM Listing Committees of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Pickerell was a court member of The
University of Hong Kong during December 2008 to November 2014.

Mr. Takashi Morimura
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Morimura, aged 63, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of
the Company in December 2011. He joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd.
(now becomes The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (“BTMU”) after
several mergers completed in 2006) in 1975. Mr. Morimura served
and managed various divisions in BTMU before appointed as the
Senior Managing Executive Officer and the Chief Executive Officer for
Europe, Middle East and Africa in 2009. He is currently the Deputy
President and the Chief Executive Officer of Global Business Unit of
BTMU and the Managing Officer and the Group Head of Integrated
Global Business Group of Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. Mr.
Morimura possesses over 35 years of experience in corporate banking
and finance.
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Mr. Toshihide Motoshita
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Motoshita, aged 53, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director
of the Company in August 2014. He is currently the Executive Officer,
Regional Head for Hong Kong and General Manager of The Bank
of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (“BTMU”) Hong Kong Branch. Mr.
Motoshita graduated with a Bachelor Degree in Economics from Keio
University in 1986 and joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd. (how becomes
BTMU after several mergers completed in 2006) immediately after
graduation. Mr. Motoshita had served and managed various positions
in BTMU and possesses over 25 years of experience mainly in
corporate banking.

Mr. John Wai-Wai Chow
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chow, aged 66, was appointed as a Director in 1994 and is
currently a Non-Executive Director of the Company. He served as a
member of Audit Committee of the Company from May 2011 to June
2013. Mr. Chow is currently the Managing Director of Winsor Industrial
Corporation Limited, Executive Director of Wing Tai Properties
Limited and Non-Executive Director of ARA Trust Management
(Suntec) Limited (manager of the Singapore-listed Suntec Real
Estate Investment Trust). He was the former Managing Director of
Winsor Properties Holdings Limited (now renamed as Vanke Property
(Overseas) Limited). Mr. Chow has over 30 years of experience in
textile, garment and property business.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 63, was appointed as a Director of the Company in
1993 and promoted as the Managing Director in January 2002. He
joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key operating subsidiary
of the Company’s banking group, in 1977 and has served and
managed various departments before appointed as a Director in
1989 and Managing Director in 2000. Mr. Wong was promoted
as Vice Chairman of DSB and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”) in April 2011. He ceased to be a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of both the Company and DSBG in
September 2014. Mr. Wong is the Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and a director of various major subsidiaries of the Group. He
is a Director of Great Wall Life Insurance Company Limited, and a
Non-Executive Director and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongqing Co.,
Ltd. (listed in Hong Kong) in which the Group has a 14.66% equity
interest. Mr. Wong is an Associate of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.)
and a Founder Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and
The International Retail Banking Council of the U.K. Mr. Wong has
over 35 years of experience in banking.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director

Mr. Wang, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in 2001. He joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a
key operating subsidiary of the Company, as the Group Financial
Controller in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997,
responsible for the overall financial management and control,
operations and IT functions of the Group for a number of years since
then. Mr. Wang was promoted as the Managing Director and Chief
Executive of DSB in May 2011. He is also a Director of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited and Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited.
Mr. Wang is a qualified accountant, a Fellow of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wang has
over 25 years of experience in financial management and banking.
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Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director

Mr. Mayhew, aged 48, joined the Company in 1998 and is currently
an Executive Director of the Company, Dah Sing Life Assurance
Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau
Life Insurance Company Limited, Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”)
and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. He serves as the Deputy Chief
Executive of DSB, and Head of Treasury and Corporate Finance of
DSB, responsible for its treasury and corporate finance activities. Mr.
Mayhew has over 25 years of experience in financial services both in
the U.K. and Hong Kong.

Mr. Eiichi Yoshikawa
Alternate Director to Mr. Takashi Morimura

Mr. Yoshikawa, aged 59, was appointed as an Alternate Director to
Mr. Takashi Morimura, a Non-Executive Director of the Company,
in August 2014. He is currently the Senior Managing Executive
Officer, Deputy Chief Executive of the Global Business Unit, Chief
Executive Officer for East Asia of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ. Ltd. (“BTMU”), a wholly-owned commercial banking subsidiary
of Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. (“MUFG”). He has been
appointed as the Managing Officer of MUFG in 2014. Mr. Yoshikawa
graduated with a Bachelor Degree of Law from The University of
Tokyo in 1981 and then joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd. (now becomes
BTMU after several mergers completed in 2006). From 2007 to 2010,
Mr. Yoshikawa was General Manager of BTMU Hong Kong Branch
and also served as a Non-Executive Director of the Company during
that time. From 2010 to 2014, Mr. Yoshikawa served as President of
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ (China), Ltd. Mr. Yoshikawa has over
30 years of extensive experience in corporate banking, treasury and
corporate planning as well.
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Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Group General Manager
Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited

Mr. Wong, aged 46, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating
subsidiary of the Company, in 2000, and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman in March 2010. He
is currently the Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”). He is also a Vice Chairman of Dah
Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, and a Director of Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited and Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Mr. Wong
was appointed as a member of The EFAC Financial Infrastructure
Sub-Committee, a sub-committee under the Exchange Fund Advisory
Committee (“EFAC”) of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, in October
2014. He is a qualified solicitor in England and Wales and in Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman
of the Boards of the Company and DSBG.

Mr. Jimmy Wing-Fai Poon
Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited
and Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited

Mr. Poon, aged 54, was appointed as a Director and the Chief
Executive of Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited and Dah
Sing Life Assurance Company Limited in 2010 and 2015 respectively,
responsible for overseeing the operation of general insurance
business and long-term insurance business. He is also a Director of
Macau Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Poon is a member of The
Hong Kong Federation of Insurers (“HKFI”) Governing Committee and
a Councillor of HKFI's General Insurance Council. Mr. Poon is also
the Honorary Secretary of the Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau
and has been involved in various industry organizations. He was the
Chairman of HKFI during the term 2014/15. Mr. Poon holds an ANZIIF
(Associate) qualification and a Master of Management, and has over
30 years of experience in general insurance and management, with
expertise in underwriting, reinsurance, product development, sales
and marketing.
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Both our banking business and our insurance business performed
well in 2015, despite considerable market volatility particularly in the
second half of the year. Profits from our banking business reached
a new high, with an increase in profit attributable to shareholders
of 8.2% to HK$2,201 million compared with the prior year. Due to a
strong performance from our insurance business, our overall profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company was up by 12.8% to
HK$1,947 million.

Our capital position continued to strengthen from internal capital
generation, with Dah Sing Bank’s (“DSB”) overall Capital Adequacy
Ratio reaching 16.7%, and Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1”) capital
increasing to 12.2% as at 31 December 2015.

Despite a mixed year, with strong market conditions in the first half
followed by a high level of volatility in the second half, our banking
business continued to perform well. Our core Commercial, Retail and
Treasury businesses all performed well, although our Commercial
Banking business did experience some increase in credit costs during
the year. Profits from our Macau subsidiary bank, Banco Comercial
de Macau, reached a new high, and the credit quality in our China
subsidiary bank stabilized, following efforts over the past two years
to strengthen credit underwriting and control risks, leading to an
improved performance for the year. Towards the end of the year, our
shareholding in our associate, Bank of Chongqing, was diluted to
14.66%, but its earnings contribution continued to increase, growing
by 10.6% to HK$666 million for the year.

Our insurance business reported a much improved performance
compared with 2014, with net profit growing by 29% to HK$325
million for the year. The growth in profit was driven by a continuing
effort to distribute higher value and higher margin life insurance
products through our bancassurance channel, as well as a significant
decrease in the transfer to actuarial reserves as a result of higher
interest rates during the year, offset to some extent by a weaker
performance from our bond and equity portfolios due to the difficult
market conditions, particularly in the second half of the year.

We announced on 12 January 2016 that we had commenced a
strategic review of our life assurance businesses. This process
remains ongoing, and we will make further announcements as and
when appropriate.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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We continued to see good progress in building up our capital levels,
as reflected in the higher CET1 and overall Capital Adequacy Ratio
of DSB as at 31 December 2015. 2015 was the first full year of
introduction of the new liquidity rules requiring Hong Kong banks such
as DSB to comply with the new Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR?”),
which has replaced the former Liquidity Ratio. DSB continued to
maintain the LMR at well above the regulatory minimum level for the
year. We believe that our capital and liquidity ratios are maintained
at levels within the market range for our peer banks, and indeed for

banks internationally.

There was no change in the Board composition of the Company
during the year.

Even at an early stage of the year, we have already seen significant
market volatility in 2016. Whilst the US economy continues its gradual
recovery, European economic growth remains slow, and there are
signs that the Mainland China economy is slowing moderately, as it
moves gradually from an export and investment led model to one in
which domestic consumption plays a greater part. This could continue
to put some pressure on credit quality, particularly for Mainland and
Mainland related lending.

In our core market, Hong Kong, whilst the property market is showing
signs of weakness, overall employment remains strong, so that at
present an outlook of moderate slowdown seems to be most likely.
At this stage, we expect that this will result in somewhat slower
growth for the banking business this year, but that credit quality will
remain manageable. Macau demonstrates similar trends to Hong
Kong: a weakening economy and softer property prices, balanced by
continuing minimal unemployment and modest wage growth.
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Globally, risks remain. The US Federal Reserve implemented its first
interest rate rise towards the end of last year, and further rates rises
are expected this year, although at this stage it seems that rate rises
may be moderate. Mainland China, whilst currently appearing to slow
quite modestly, presents some risk to the downside, although we have
already taken action to control our risks in this area.

2015 12 A31 BAF ¢ REBEBRAF (BRER 20154 12 A 31 AEA RSz MmKR -

5% 1 0440) RAFTIRITEB AR AR (RERE :

2356) 2 W KA o

Closing price of Hang Seng Index on 31 December
2015.

Closing prices of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 0440) and Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (Stock code: 2356) on 31

December 2015.
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In summary, therefore, whilst we see a somewhat slower outlook, with
some risk to the downside, we believe that our core markets of Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China will continue to offer opportunities
for us to grow our business in the medium term.

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow directors for their valuable
contribution and extend, on behalf of the Board, our appreciation to
all of our colleagues for their hard work and dedication over the past
year, and also our appreciation of the support from our customers and
shareholders.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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The past year saw satisfactory financial results among our banking
and insurance businesses. Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”)
reported record earnings once again and continued to improve the
performance in its core banking businesses. Our insurance operations
produced a strong performance in spite of the challenging investment
markets. The combination of these factors, which are further
explained below, produced a profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$1,947 million and return of 9.9% on average shareholders’ funds
for Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited in 2015.

Our insurance business continued to focus on distributing products
with higher value and margins, with our bancassurance business
having another encouraging year. We experienced a smaller increase
in the transfer to actuarial reserves due to higher interest rates during
the year, which however was offset to some extent by a weaker
performance from investment portfolios due to the challenging
markets.

For our general insurance business in Hong Kong and Macau, which
produced satisfactory underwriting results in 2015, management will
strive to make improvements on the core profit drivers, including in
both underwriting and investments, with an objective to enhance
returns on capital over time.

DSBG delivered a solid set of financial results for 2015, in spite
of volatility in the markets in the second half of the year. Profit
attributable to shareholders increased by 8.2% to HK$2,201
million, a record for DSBG, producing a return of 10.6% on
average shareholders’ funds. The performance of our wholly-
owned businesses was satisfactory overall, especially in view of the
slowdown in the Mainland economy. Excluding the contribution from
Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”) and the non-recurrent accounting loss
on the dilution of our shareholding in BOCQ, profit attributable to
shareholders increased by 10.7% to HK$1,598 million, reflecting the
improved earning power of the banking businesses that we own and
operate.
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A key management objective is to achieve a satisfactory return on
capital in the long term, whilst maintaining strong capital and liquidity
ratios as we grow our core banking businesses. While we produced
a satisfactory return on equity of 10.6%, an overall improvement
from 7.7% in 2011 although a slight decrease from our return of 11%
in 2014, | would caution, as | have in the past, that generating an
attractive return on equity will be more challenging going forward. The
phasing in of higher capital requirements pursuant to Basel Ill should
see to that, not to mention the introduction of a seemingly unending
swath of rules and regulations, unless banks in general are able to
capture better margins from the products and services provided.

The prospects for 2016 indicate a more muted growth in business
volumes, a continuation of the trend from 2015, with the slowdown
in the Mainland economy likely to affect business sentiment in both
Hong Kong and Macau. Even though the economy is going through a
softer phase in the cycle, we will continue to make investments in our
key businesses for the longer term, in particular in our core banking
business areas that have performed well for the Group since 2011.

As | have explained in the past, the basic banking business is easy to
understand but difficult to execute well. We have strived to maintain
our focus on the key banking tenets to drive profitability including our
deposit franchise, risk-adjusted returns from a diversified portfolio of
loans and assets, non-interest income from serving our customers,
and prudent management of our risks and costs. Amidst the increased
complexity of rules and regulations in financial services, it is vital that
our colleagues not to lose sight of the simple banking tenets, which
continue to be the foundations of our business strategy.

Despite the intensely competitive markets in which we operate, we are
pleased to report an overall satisfactory performance in our key profit
drivers, including the following:

. Net interest income was up by 11.6% from HK$2,990 million to
HK$3,337 million due to a combination of growth in volumes and
a wider net interest margin.

° Net fee and commission income increased by 9.4%
from HK$832 million to HK$910 million driven largely by
improvements in bancassurance, wealth management, and
securities brokerage, especially during the first half of 2015
when the investment sentiment was strong.

. Net interest margin widened slightly from 1.76% to 1.83%
during the year due primarily to lower deposit costs.
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Managing expenses and keeping costs under control are vital in
banking. Managing expenses well means that every dollar we spend
should be aligned with our strategy and priorities. This ought to
ensure that we are spending money appropriately in our key business
areas, investing in the right technologies and products, and focusing
on our customers as well as our people. Despite the considerable
pressure of cost increases and the need for continued investments
in our core businesses, our operating expenses were contained to
an increase of 5.3%. This was moreover outpaced by the increase
of 10.1% in operating income from HK$4,165 million to HK$4,587
million (indicating the effects of “positive jaws”), which helped to
reduce slightly our cost-to-income ratio to 48.8% in 2015. However,
while the quantum in cost increase was moderate in 2015, as we
continue to make substantial investments in our infrastructure and
systems over the next few years, we will need to work smarter and
harder and ensure that our spending is deployed effectively in line
with our business strategies. We believe that managing expenses
and resources, if done well, should allow us to realize benefits as
our business scale grows over time without diminishing customer
experiences or increasing operational risk.

A blemish during the year was the small increase in loan impairment
losses and other credit provisions from HK$473 million to HK$496
million with the impaired loan ratio rising to 0.75%, as credit
conditions in the Mainland deteriorated along with the slowdown in
the economy. While we suffered from delinquencies due to some of
our clients’ exposure to the Mainland markets, we are encouraged
that the credit performance of the onshore part of our Mainland
related lending had improved and the overall credit conditions in our
core businesses remained benign. As banking is a risk management
business, prudent credit underwriting will continue to be an area of
important focus for the management team and our Group.
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BOCQ continued to deliver good results with a contribution of HK$666
million for the year, an increase of 10.6% over the prior year, before
the deemed accounting disposal loss of HK$47.6 million due to the
dilution of our interest in BOCQ from 16.95% to 14.66% further to its
share placement in 2015. We continued to account for the earnings
of BOCQ on the basis that it is an associate of our Group. Unlike
the businesses that we own and operate, where items relating to
revenue and expense are included in our financial statements, only
our proportionate share of net profit of BOCQ is included (as an
associate) via a one-line entry in our consolidated income statement.
However, whether or not we account for BOCQ as an associate, the
value to its shareholders (including our Group) of the earnings and
capital of BOCQ is determined by the use to which they are put and
the subsequent level of earnings produced by that usage. That value
is therefore determined by BOCQ and is not affected by the inclusion
or non-inclusion of the share of such earnings in our own reported
profit for the year.

The growth in our earnings, coupled with the relatively modest
loan growth during the year, contributed to an improvement in our
capital ratios. As at 31 December 2015, Dah Sing Bank’s total capital
adequacy ratio (“CAR”) was 16.7% and our CET1" was 12.2%. We
will need to hone our ability to generate an adequate return from the
capital deployed on our loans and assets, as we strive to sustain our
profitability and further strengthen our capital base over time.

We maintained an unvaryingly strong liquidity position, with a liquidity
maintenance ratio of 39.5% in the year and a loan to deposit ratio
of 69.8% at the end of 2015. Most of our funding is from customer
deposits, which quality we have worked hard to improve since we
embarked on our medium-term strategy in 2011, with the goal of
increasing the share of lower cost deposits through a deeper, more
transactional relationship with our customers. Indeed, servicing the
transactional needs of our customers will continue to be a bedrock of
our strategy.

! Common Equity Tier 1 Capital



EHFR2011 FEITPHRER - EEERLE
l%k Ry EBEREERA §HEEE

EMMETERE-BNTREER - 1
%'ﬁﬁiﬁ%lmﬁﬁ~ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁg'
jﬂﬁ’rﬂfﬁ#ﬂi&l)@lﬁffﬁfﬁ%ﬁEI’ME$ ° HAFIE
RERBENBAXMIHEETE @ TREBKHBR
EW#%%M%E°

RABERBHFELFNE (KRMOES - (L& -
AEMBR) 2 #HRBHSANEER2015F 5
BIEE  BRIERBHNRASEET BB
REFEBRFTEZNEEMEAEER2015
FHREEBEELER  REBTREENKREEA
e

BELFARBEBRRABINE - AARRBEK
FRARSHALEBERAB R -

ESL ) tasid

THHA

E7% 20163 A23H

EERKIBERE

We introduced a set of core values and guiding principles for the
Group along with our medium-term strategy in 2011, with the
objective to guide and align the actions of our people at work.
Moreover, we emphasize the qualities of energy, intelligence and
integrity in our people, who are key to our Group’s ability to create
value for both our customers and shareholders. We are again
delighted that the efforts of our people were recognized by the
market, with a number of awards received during the year in different
areas of our business.

| wish to thank all of our stakeholders — our customers, communities,
colleagues and shareholders — for helping make 2015 another good
year for our Group. In particular, full credit goes to the leaders of our
insurance and banking businesses in both Hong Kong and Macau, for
the performance and earnings of these businesses which contributed
meaningfully to our Group’s results in 2015.

It has been a privilege to lead the Group and serve you - our
shareholders — as our performance has improved steadily over the

past few years.

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Group General Manager

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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The highlights of the Group’s consolidated financial performance for
the year are summarised in the table below:

20154 20144 =k
2015 2014 Variance
ER- i HK$ Million
MR EEER 2 & &R T Operating profit before impairment losses 2,752.4 2,233.2 23.2%
MBRBEEER 2 & iER T Operating profit after impairment losses 2,256.1 1,760.3 28.2%
R A5 A s A Profit before taxation 2,852.6 2,492.3 14.5%
FERF Profit for the year 2,507.8 2,246.5 11.6%
AR B B ER E A Y35 ) Profit attributable to shareholders 1,947.5 1,726.9 12.8%
BESE Total assets 212,792 201,408 5.7%
BEAE Total liabilities 186,883 177,290 5.4%
RERES Shareholders’ funds 20,445 19,045 7.3%
FRIBUWA,EBEUA Net interest income/operating income 69.1% 71.2%
ARSI A L Cost to income ratio 47.9% 51.7%
M & E R Return on average total assets 0.9% 0.9%
YRR E ¢ EH Return on average shareholders’ funds 9.9% 9.7%
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2015 was a relatively difficult year for the global economy, with
growth remaining subdued. Growth in Mainland China continued to
slow, although well above the global average, whilst the Hong Kong
economy also began to show signs of weakness, with the local retail
sector and the trade business both being impacted. Market conditions
remained volatile, with significant swings in local and Mainland equity
markets, and in currencies, in particular the RMB in the second half
of the year. The US Federal Reserve implemented its long expected
first increase in short term interest rates in December. Local liquidity
conditions in Hong Kong, however, remained benign during the year.

Against this relatively challenging background, we are pleased
to announce that our profit attributable to shareholders for 2015
increased by 12.8% to HK$1,947 million. The increase in profit was
driven both by our Banking Group’s wholly owned operations in
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Macau, which in aggregate reported
an increase in operating profit after impairment losses of 18.3% to
HK$1,851 million, and by our insurance business which reported
an increase in net profit of 29% to HK$325 million. Our associated
company, Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”), delivered a stable
performance, with a contribution of HK$666 million, up by 10.6%.
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As at 31 December 2015, our capital position remains strong with Dah
Sing Bank’s consolidated Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1”) Capital ratio
at 12.2% and the overall Capital Adequacy Ratio at 16.7%.

In 2015, we continued to build on the platform that we established
in 2014, with encouraging results, although it is notable that growth
in the second half of the year was slower than that in the first half.
Whilst the slowing Mainland economy has impacted our business,
with higher credit costs experienced, to date the credit quality of our
Banking Business remains strong and credit costs manageable in
relation to the scale of our overall business.

All our core revenue lines achieved growth, with 14.4% growth in
total operating income and 23.2% growth in overall pre-provision
operating income, despite more modest volume growth, with loans
and advances to customers increasing by 4.2%. Despite lower
reversal of some credit provisions, operating profit after impairment
losses increased by 28.2%. Profit attributable to shareholders was
up 12.8% with lower net gain on fair value adjustment of investment
properties following the slowdown in the local property market, and in
part affected by the HK$47.6 million accounting deemed disposal loss
on the modest dilution of the Group’s interest in BOCQ.

Net interest income grew by 11% from HK$3,293 million to HK$3,653
million due mainly to improved interest margin and moderate volume
growth. Net fee and commission income increased by 8% from
HK$746 million to HK$803 million driven by the strong performance
from our wealth management business, including our local Hong Kong
broking business, as well as from FX and other treasury products for
both our retail and commercial customers, particularly in the first half
of the year. Overall net trading income dropped substantially from
HK$711 million to HK$32 million, largely the result of mark-to-market
losses in our insurance fixed income and equities portfolios held
as long-term investment to match the liabilities of our life insurance
business, as higher market interest rates led to lower bond prices and
valuation, while the stock market recorded negative return especially
during the second half year.
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Net insurance premium and other insurance income decreased by
9% to HK$2,029 million, due both to a lower increase in the value of
inforce policies of our long-term life business with the rising interest
rates, and to lower volumes of new business sales due to a focus on
higher margin products during the year. The higher interest rates also
led to a significant decrease in the transfer to actuarial reserves for
the liabilities to policyholders, and in turn a significant reduction in the
insurance claims and expenses.

We reported an overall increase in operating income net of insurance
claims by 14.4%. Operating expenses were well controlled, with a
modest increase of 6.1% on 2014, well below the growth in operating
income over the same period, resulting in an improvement in the cost
to income ratio for the year.

Despite the relatively challenging economic conditions in the year,
overall credit quality remained benign. Whilst overall loan impairment
losses and credit provisions increased slightly from HK$473 million to
HK$496 million, the increase was due to a lower level of write-back of
bond impairment charges compared with 2014. Total loan impairment
charges were lower than 2014.

Further to the announcement by BOCQ in June that it was making
a placement of shares to investors (the “Placement”), it announced
on 23 December 2015 the completion of the Placement, albeit with
a somewhat lower number of shares than originally anticipated. The
Placement raised gross proceeds of approximately HK$3.2 billion,
and due to the lower number of new shares issued than originally
anticipated, our shareholding was modestly diluted from 16.95%
to 14.66%. Upon completion of the Placement and a dilution in
our shareholding interest which in accounting terms is a deemed
partial divestment, and given that the price set for the Placement
was lower than net asset value of BOCQ at the point of completion,
an associated accounting loss of HK$47.6 million arising from the
dilution was recognized.
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Our insurance business reported a strong increase in net profit to
HK$325 million, up 29% when compared with 2014, mainly supported
by a lower transfer to actuarial reserves as a result of the increase in
long term bond yields during the year, offset partly by lower increase
in the value of the inforce long-term insurance policies. New business
volumes were however lower than the prior year, due mainly to
lower new business sales booked by our agency force in the year.
Sales volume by our bancassurance business was similar to 2014.
The increase in the long term interest rate, however, affected the
performance of our insurance business investment portfolios, with a
substantial fair value loss on the bond investment portfolio. The poor
performance from our insurance equity investment portfolio, amidst
a weaker global equity market performance in the year, also dragged
down the overall investment return of our insurance investment
portfolios in 2015.

Total assets of the Group reached HK$212.8 billion, an increase of

6% over 2014. Shareholders’ funds as of 31 December 2015 stood at
HK$20.4 billion, up 7% on 2014.
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In 2015, our banking business reported its highest ever core profit
and generated a solid improvement in earnings relative to 2014. As
2015 experienced the full year impact of the additional equity raised
in 2014, Dah Sing Banking Group’s (“DSBG”) return on equity (“ROE”)
edged down slightly from 11.0% to 10.6%. Excluding the exceptional
accounting loss on the modest dilution of interest in BOCQ of
HK$47.6 million, DSBG’s normalized ROE in 2015 is 10.9%.

Growth in all core revenue lines was satisfactory during the year.
Net interest income was up by 11.6%, underpinned by improved
net interest margin and moderate growth in average interest-earning
assets. Net fee and commission income was 9.4% higher, driven
largely by improvements in wealth management, securities services,
and trade finance related fees. Net trading income decreased by 2%.
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Operating income was from HK$4,165 million to HK$4,587 million, an
increase of 10.1%, and ahead of the increase in operating expenses of
5.3%. The stronger growth in operating income in the year contributed
to improve our Banking Group’s cost to income ratio from 51.1% to
48.8%.

Loan impairment losses and other credit provisions increased from
HK$473 million to HK$496 million. The increase was mainly due to the
lower reversal of credit provision on our bond investments.

As at 31 December 2015, Dah Sing Bank’s (“DSB”) consolidated total
capital adequacy ratio was 16.7%, and its consolidated CET1 ratio
was 12.2%, versus 16.3% and 11.4% respectively as of the end of
2014.

Personal Banking

Our Personal Banking business, serving the consumer finance, vehicle
finance, retail banking, VIP banking and private banking market
segments of Hong Kong, continued to perform well in 2015 with broad
based fee income and balance sheet growth. This was largely due to
the execution of the customer focused strategy of upgrading our VIP
platform and using banking service bundle to meet the needs of the
target customer segments.

The continuous upgrade of the VIP service platform has enabled
Personal Banking to help customers better review and manage their
portfolios for better risk management and capturing opportunities
against the higher market volatility. Wealth Management income grew
by 19%, and growth was particularly strong in foreign exchange fee
income, securities income and insurance sales. Enhanced services
rolled out in 2015 included enriched FX market commentary with
specialists’ support, enhanced VIP wealth management loyalty
scheme, and customer events addressing the wealth management
needs or goals in life of different customers. Our online transaction
capabilities were also extended to include IPO bonds. We continued
our efforts to expand and upgrade our retail securities services, with
encouraging results: securities fee income increased significantly
when compared with 2014, with a very high proportion of the
customer securities dealing traded through our online and mobile
securities trading channels. As of the end of 2015, we had a total of
35 retail securities centres in our branch network which provide a
channel in promoting our retail securities service and new customer
acquisition.
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Personal Banking (Continued)

Our efforts in wealth management services were recognized by
receiving various awards, including “Outstanding Brand Award
— Wealth Management Services” by the Economic Digest 2015,
“Excellent Brand of Mobile Securities Services, Banking Service” and
“Excellent Brand of On-line Securities Services, Banking Service”
of Hong Kong Leaders’ Choice by Metro Broadcast, “Best Investor
Education Website Award, Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect” by
the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and “Outstanding
Financial Management Planner Award” by the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers.

In the year, our Personal Banking achieved solid growth in loan and
deposit balances when compared with 2014.

Banking products bundling, supported by digital development, was
further promoted and enhanced to enable mass market customers
to enjoy the extra banking convenience and service. Transactions of
these customers using our bundled products also increased via all the
channels, reflecting the stickier relationship. Our mobile banking users
nearly doubled and active internet users also grew by over 14% in the
year. Our “YOU Banking” service, targeting at the young customer
segment mainly using online and mobile channels for banking
transactions, was also enhanced in the year with new mobile banking
capability. The service gained market recognition, with the CAPITAL
magazine giving us with the “Outstanding New Generation Banking
Service” award.

We actively promoted our personal loan products during the year,
with attractive promotion activities to raise market awareness of
our personal loan services. The marketing campaign in the year
was effective in generating new business and gained good market
recognition with the awards of “Excellent Brand of Bank Personal
Loan” by Metro Broadcast and “Outstanding Personal Loan Banking
Service Award” by the CAPITAL magazine.

The balance of our credit card receivables grew by 16%. Riding on
our credit card customer base, we launched our e-Shopping Butler
Service, with comprehensive online shopping insurance, e-shopping
delivery and e-shopping wallet services. We also partnered with
a telecommunication company to offer exclusive Dah Sing Credit
Card Top-up service via a sim-based mWallet. These two innovative
initiatives provide customers with hassle-free and secure spending
experience via digital channels.
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Personal Banking (Continued)

The asset quality of our retail lending portfolio remained benign, with
the loan delinquency rate and loan loss rate staying at relatively low
levels. The increase in the loan impairment charges was mainly due to
increases in the balance of unsecured personal loans.

We continued our branch network upgrade and relocation programme
with the objective to improve our services and offer better customer
experience. At the end of 2015, our branch network included 46 retail
branches in Hong Kong, with 21 VIP centres and 35 securities trading
centres.

Commercial Banking

Commercial Banking achieved satisfactory growth in loans and
deposits in the year, although cross-border financing demand had
slowed down, which had led to a contraction in our trade bills balance
when compared with 2014. Traditional trade business and loan
balance continued to record growth in 2015.

Net interest income was up 17%, driven by the higher loan balance
and higher net interest margin, as we had achieved improving loan
yield and reducing the cost of deposits. Non-interest income was
stable relative to 2014.

Due to the slowdown in the growth in the China economy, weak global
demand and also the depreciation of RMB in 2015, some of our SME
customers encountered financial difficulties in 2015, which had led
to a higher level of loan loss provision booked by our Commercial
Banking business.

To support the growth of our transaction banking and product
capabilities, and service to customers, our Commercial Banking
business continued the effort and investment in strengthening the
Bank’s IT system and operational processes particularly for the trade
finance, factoring, channel and cash management services. Our
reengineering program was launched to improve cut-off and turn-
around time for remittance, while our trade system capabilities and
services were further enhanced. Our i-banking platform with mobile
apps capabilities was upgraded to provide added convenience and
access to our commercial customers.
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Commercial Banking (Continued)

With our effort to promote our products, customer services and
corporate profile in the commercial banking sector we achieved
improvement in our brand recognition and further diversification in our
customer base and revenue sources.

Our services and dedication to customers were recognized by the
market and customers. During the year, we have won 5 awards from
various industry bodies, with good market recognition including
extensive media coverage. The awards include:

° “Elite Award — Best Commercial Banking” from Ming Pao Weekly

o “Best SME’s Partner Award” from Hong Kong General Chamber
of Small and Medium Business

o “Best SME Service Award” from CAPITAL Weekly

° “Best Commercial Banking Award” from Metro Prosperity

° “Internet Banking Services Award” from CAPITAL magazine

To support a wide range of SME events and conferences in Hong
Kong, we were the platinum sponsor for the Hong Kong Award for
Industries, aiming to recognize the outstanding achievements of Hong
Kong enterprises in their move towards high-end technology and
value-added activities. We were also the sole sponsor for the World
SME Summit organized by The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small
and Medium Business (“HKGCSMB”) at the 2015 World SME Expo
for 3 consecutive years and also for the Jessica Run. Overall, we are
keen to support SMEs and are committed to serve our customers
by providing a comprehensive range of value added services and
products, and to grow with our customers in the years to come.
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Treasury

Our Treasury division recorded another strong year in 2015, due
mainly to much stronger net interest income, despite a lower amount
of write-back of credit provisions when compared with 2014.

Markets generally were volatile in 2015, with particularly sharp
movements in both currencies and equities. Bond markets fluctuated
during the year, but medium term interest rates ended the year only
slightly above the level at which they started, despite the US Federal
Reserve raising the Federal Funds Target Rate in December. After
a steady first half in 2015, the RMB, both offshore and onshore,
depreciated sharply in August, resulting in severe volatility in what
had previously been a relatively stable currency. Similarly, after a
strong start to the year, Hong Kong and Mainland equity markets both
fell sharply in the second half of the year. The high level of volatility,
particularly in the second half of the year, resulted in lower volumes
of trade conducted by our Treasury, but the strong accrual income
during the year balanced this to allow for an overall result for the
year which was slightly better than 2014. Again, a cautious approach
was maintained relating to the management of liquidity, and the new
standards on liquidity were prepared for and comfortably met. Interest
risk was also managed conservatively bearing in mind the rising
direction of short term interest rates in the second half of the year.

Efforts were made to collaborate more closely both with our
Commercial Banking division and our Retail Banking division in
offering a range of treasury related products and services to better
serve their customers’ needs.

We continued to rebalance our securities portfolio in the usual course

of business, and were able to realise disposal gains of HK$17 million
for the year.
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Banco Comercial de Macau

Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM?”) provides a comprehensive
range of commercial, retail banking and bancassurance products and
services to local customers in Macau. As of the end of 2015, BCM
operated a total of 14 branches in Macau.

Although Macau experienced a contraction in the gaming revenue
and therefore local GDP in 2015, further to the slowdown in the local
economy recorded in 2014, BCM achieved a set of stronger business
and financial performance in 2015. BCM’s total assets grew by 7.4%
compared to the end of 2014. Loan balance and customer deposits,
relative to the end of 2014, were up 5.2% and 7.4% respectively.

BCM’s profitability further improved in the year, with net profit on
group reporting basis (adjusting for amortisation of intangible assets
recognised at the initial acquisition of BCM and some Group level
adjustments) up 18% on 2014. Most financial performance metrics
improved when compared with 2014, as reflected in higher asset
yields, lower funding cost, higher non-interest income and benign
asset quality. Operating expenses were well controlled.

The growth in the loan portfolio was driven by commercial lending,
working capital finance and consumer finance. A moderate growth in
mortgage loan was recorded. Deposit growth was broadly diversified,
with the growth in low cost current and savings deposits and tight
control on fixed deposit cost contributing to the improvement in the
overall cost of funds.

BCM continued to promote its SME, retail securities trading, credit
card and vehicle finance businesses to broaden its customer reach
and enhance its services to the local community.
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Dah Sing Bank (China)

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of DSB and was locally incorporated in China in 2008.

DSB China’s financial performance improved in 2015 despite the
more challenging operating environment in China. With the adoption
of more stringent credit underwriting and control standards since
2014, credit cost incurred in 2015 was lower than 2014. To properly
manage credit risk and also due to the tighter credit approval criteria,
DSB China’s loan portfolio at the end of 2015 contracted when
compared with the balance at the end of 2014.

DSB China continues to operate in 6 major cities in China, with a
network comprising the Shenzhen headquarters, and branches in
Shanghai, Nanchang, Zhenjiang, Guangzhou (with a sub-branch in
Foshan), and a sub-branch in Shenzhen Qianhai, offering a variety of
commercial and retail banking lending, deposits and related banking
services to our customers in China and customers that have China-
Hong Kong cross border banking needs.

Bank of Chongging

Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”) is the leading city commercial bank
in Chongqging. Chongqing is the largest city in Western China with
a population of over 33 million people, and is one of the 4 leading
municipalities in China reporting directly to Beijing. BOCQ operates a
branch network of around 130 branches and sub-branches, including
branches and sub-branches in Chengdu, Guiyang and Xian.

BOCQ'’s business performance and financial results in 2015
improved, as reflected in its 12% net profit increase over 2014, and
return on equity at 17%. Loans and deposits grew 17% and 19%
respectively on 2014. Other key financial and performance metrics
were solid, with a loan to deposit ratio at 62.6% and a non-performing
loan ratio at 0.97% at the end of 2015.
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Bank of Chongging (Continued)

BOCQ completed its share placing towards the end of 2015, raising
HK$3.2 billion gross proceeds of new equity. This helped to improve
BOCQ’s capital adequacy ratio, which stood at 11.6% at the end of
2015.

Following the completion of BOCQ’s IPO in late 2013 and its share
placing in late 2015, our interest was diluted from 20% to 16.95%
in late 2013, and further reduced to 14.66% at the end of 2015. Our
share of BOCQ net profit continued to be recognized on an equity
accounting basis, with the total amount of our share of BOCQ net
profit increases from HK$602 million in 2014 to HK$666 million in
2015, an increase of 10.6%. With the further dilution of our interest
in BOCQ in late 2015 and the placing price concluded at a level
below the net asset value of BOCQ, an accounting loss of HK$47.6
million on the deemed disposal of a part of our interest in BOCQ was
recognized, which had been incorporated in our 2015 results.

Insurance Business

Our insurance business, consolidating the results of the life and
general insurance businesses in Hong Kong and Macau, reported
higher net profit when compared with 2014, due mainly to the
favourable product mix changes, and favourable changes in the
long term return assumptions for valuing our life business, partially
offset by the decrease in the value of the bond and equity investment
portfolios and fair value adjustments on investment properties.
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R @) Insurance Business (Continued)
TRAEBRBENR2015F %2014 F 2 B The following provides a summary of the profit and loss of our
= insurance group in 2015 and 2014:
2015 & 20144

HEERT HK$ Million 2015 2014
HRE — FHRESE (APE) New business - Annualized

premium equivalent (APE) 307 356
FREREMBA (BIEREE RASIA) Net insurance premium and

other income including fee

and commission income 2,040 2,255
REBRERIZHFE Net insurance claims and expenses (1,438) (2,551)
& AW A Investment and related income
B UA Interest income 314 300
FEE (B1E) A Net trading (loss)/income (234) 434
WEYEZ NHERAR (CFEE)FEG Net (loss)/gain on fair value adjustment

on investment properties (89) 63
HEHEERS 2 FWE Net gain on disposal of

available-for-sale securities 8 -
HAth BN Other operating income 42 37
NET Sub total M 834
BB R H MR Operating expenses and other costs (281) (265)
R TS B AT SR F Profit before income tax 362 273
FreH Income tax (37) (21)
Al Net profit 325 252

2015 FREREMBA B20B4 FEE T - K
R2014FFT2RN221E5T5EEBIT - IHER
(RFLREEEFTE)EN20144F - AR
BEIHERSTBEZREREEERA -

Net insurance premium and other income was HK$2,040 million in
2015, lower than the HK$2,255 million reported in 2014. Sales, in
terms of annualized premium equivalent, was lower than 2014 as we

continued to focus on higher margin protection and savings products.
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Insurance Business (Continued)

Our liabilities to policyholders under long-term insurance contracts
were determined on an actuarial basis including adjusting the
valuation rates with a consideration of the medium to long-term US
Treasury yields and HK Government Bond yields as the risk-free rates.
In 2015, favourable economic and demographic assumption changes
resulted in lower reserving charges in our actuarial liabilities to
policyholders, and therefore an overall lower transfer to net actuarial

reserves.

Investment performance in 2015 was adversely impacted by lower
bond valuation on higher interest rates and decrease in the values of
the equity portfolio and investment properties.

Operating expenses and other costs increased from HK$265 million to
HK$281 million, mainly due to higher staffing and IT system costs for
supporting the continued expansion of our insurance businesses.

The following provides a summary of the profit and loss of our general
insurance business in 2015 and 2014:

2015 % 20144
BHEBT HK$ Million 2015 2014
HRBWRA Gross Premium Written 591 598
AR R Underwriting profit 19 6
R Net Profit 18 73

ARG B — R R TS A0 AR LR B I M R AR 407K
F o ER 2015 FHERDFEN - ERTIRRKE
B[R -

FBREREFRAHEE 2 EH - WEAIRT
FETHEE  AEEETBRLLESRELH
T EMEARIAH R (1976) BR A A ([ R#TR
B 1) — 2 IR AR B A IRTTIRIR TS ©
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Our general insurance business maintained same level of gross
premium income, but recorded lower net profit in 2015 mainly due to
lower investment return.

Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited (“DSI”), our major
subsidiary in Hong Kong for non-life insurance business, further
strengthened our bancassurance businesses via product innovation
and distribution re-engineering, with a closer cooperation with DSB.
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Insurance Business (Continued)

DSI was presented with “The Outstanding Brand Award” from
the Hong Kong Economic Digest under the General Insurance
Company category. For Corporate Social Responsibility, in addition
to participating in various Group-wide activities for good causes, a
charity run cum carnival program has been supported with DSI as the
title sponsor in 2015.

The following shows a summary of the net worth of our whole
insurance group and the solvency ratio of our main life subsidiary:

2015 & 20144
BE&AT HK$ Million 2015 2014
REES Shareholders’ funds 2,238 2,059
RSB EB 2 ERREEE Value of in-force long-term
life assurance business 2,167 2,018
EEFE Net worth 4,405 4,077
RIASRBZESEED Solvency ratio for Dah Sing
Life Assurance 342% 320%

7 2015F 12 A31 B » AEEERBLIEE AT

B AREEBERRPIZ ANBRBER 2B BUR
BHRER21E6T7TEESIT(AL2014FFKEA

20B1F8AEBHEIL) o TEMNREEFILAKHE
Wﬁ RIZ AR ERE 2R E SHEFEILM -
ASR—BRREEBIHER ZRRE S ARG
- RASERENREBER 2 BEEBLRME
T5EEBIT 2014 FFRZ4EH EF8% -

REBZBAETEASREEBHB QT AFHA

SREBERAFT ([ RIMAS) HERSERIE
BEEMEENL R R2015FFIKA342% » B
RELE Z & IEKFE -

As at 31 December 2015, the total value of our Hong Kong and Macau
in-force life assurance businesses as calculated in conjunction with
the independent actuary was HK$2,167 million (relative to HK$2,018
million at the end of 2014). With profit retention and increase in
the investment revaluation reserve of our insurance subsidiaries’
available-for-sale investments, the shareholders’ funds employed
in our life and general insurance businesses increased, giving an
overall value for the insurance business in the accounts of the Group
of HK$4,405 million, up 8% compared with the balance at 2014 year
end.

Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited (“DSLA”), the Group’s
key life insurance subsidiary in Hong Kong, continued to maintain a
healthy overall solvency ratio, which stood at 342% at 2015 year end,
well above the minimum required regulatory level.
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Insurance Business (Continued)

DSLA launched a series of promotions to celebrate its 25th
anniversary in 2015, and continued to promote the brand’s core value
- the “Can Do” Hong Kong Spirit through social media and corporate
social responsibility campaigns in 2015. During the year, DSLA was
awarded the Caring Company Logo by the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service in recognition of our commitment in carrying out
corporate social responsibility and community work.

During the year, we enhanced our capital management policy and
the setting of capital targets, upgraded our capital planning process
and related stress test as part of the overall capital management
structure and compliance to meet the new regulatory capital
requirements coming into effect in 2016, which is a part of the overall
implementation of the Basel Il capital standards. A comprehensive
recovery plan was developed and adopted in the year to follow the
new regulatory rules applicable to Hong Kong banks. Continuing
effort and progress were made in the year to improve credit approval
and credit administration processes to achieve improvement in credit
controls and work efficiency.

On the anti-money laundering (“AML”) front, we continued to
strengthen our AML risk management framework including
management oversight, policy and procedures, operational processes
and staff compliance culture.
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2015 % 20144

RITEE Banking Group 2015 2014
MR T 2 BANER Capital base of banking

(ABE&EBTE) subsidiaries (HK$ Million)

—HR12A31H - at 31 December

— L RARE R - Common Equity Tier 1 15,840 14,443

——#& — Tier 1 15,840 14,443

—— — Tier 2 5,855 6,226
R & 2 B ARETE 2% Total capital base after deductions 21,695 20,670
BAAFT R R Capital adequacy ratio*

— L RRE R - Common Equity Tier 1 12.2% 11.4%

——#& —Tier 1 12.2% 11.4%

— B — Total 16.7% 16.3%
RBEEHIFLE Liquidity maintenance ratio/

BB ELLE (FEFH) Liquidity ratio (average for the year)** 39.5% 45.3%

* 2015412 A31H %2014 12 A31HZ B4R R
LR Ty RIIRITHER A AR (BRI RT
R R IRTT (R E)) R2ERTTE (BEAR) KA
HEERBE N ERAHENGRELEX - ZFE
BEARF R ENFTEDE REITSERMRIER

B -

** TRBE E M LR OB E E L R Ty IR KR TT
(BIERPIEERITRAFIRIT (PE)) RITEF
E12ANEBERZ FHRERDEERFT
R/ REEELENBETIETE - RBEE
L RIBIER 201591 A1 B EBACIRITE
(REME)BANDGTE - REBEELEL2ZRITE
B 4 M RN AR E o

RBEMF  ARERETERKEMIAAESE
BERBAELBBATT S ZRAER - #RREN
BARFTRILE -

RARZRBEEEAIIHT  BRES NIRRT
T DRFAEERRERERRBESREN
BEZES  ROSERBFAFEEFRRIR
HEELE -

*k

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014 represents the consolidated position of DSB (covering BCM and
DSB China) computed on Basel Ill basis with reference to the Banking
(Capital) Rules. This consolidated capital adequacy ratio takes into
account market risk and operational risk.

The liquidity maintenance ratio and liquidity ratio are calculated as the
simple average of each calendar month’s average consolidated liquidity
maintenance ratio liquidity ratio of DSB (covering BCM and DSB China)
for the 12 months of the financial year. The liquidity maintenance ratios
are computed in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective
from 1 January 2015. The liquidity ratios are computed with reference to
the methods set out in the Fourth Schedule of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

The Group’s banking business maintained healthy capital adequacy

ratios over the past 2 years whilst the Group pursued its growth

strategy and implemented changes to comply with the new regulatory

capital rules.

Our Banking Group continued to maintain throughout the year a high

liquidity ratio backed by a strong pool of liquid assets including cash

and placements with banks, and diversified marketable securities held

for investment and liquidity purposes.
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We continued to make efforts to inculcate the Group’s guiding
principles and values in our employees. In 2015, we ran the Unsung
Hero Awards program for the second year to show appreciation and
recognition to staff members who live and exemplify the Group’s
guiding principles and values in their daily work. We also held a photo
contest with the winners showing their understanding of the guiding
principles and values and what they mean to them.

Growing with employees through mutual commitment is a part of
the Group’s corporate mission. In 2015, we launched a number of
new training programmes and enhanced the existing programmes to
cope with the Group’s changing business needs. Workshops were
redesigned and run to continue to reinforce our corporate culture.

We furthered our effort in fostering a caring culture throughout
the organization. In 2015, we have introduced voluntary service
leave, enhanced our group insurance schemes and implemented
initiatives to promote staff wellness. To support a breastfeeding-
friendly workplace, we participated in the “Say Yes to Breastfeeding”
Community Support Campaign 2015/2016 launched by UNICEF HK
in collaboration with the Food and Health Bureau and Department of
Health.

The Group was presented with “The Best Practice Award 2015 in
Employee Care” by The Best Practice Management Group. The award
is a recognition of the Group’s commitment to promote work-life
balance which is an integral part of living a healthy life, enhancing
motivation and bringing about greater work satisfaction. We also
received “The Best Practice Award 2015 in Corporate Culture
Development” which recognizes the Group’s effort in building a
committed and engaged workforce aiming at improving the well-being
of our staff based on the Group’s 6 guiding principles and values.
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The Group is honoured to receive the “10+ years Caring Company”
award from the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition
of our commitment to corporate social responsibility. Also, we were
granted the “2014/15 Good MPF Employer Award” by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority as a recognition of the Group’s
efforts in enhancing the retirement benefits of employees.

To cope with business growth covering the Hong Kong, Macau and
China markets and the increasing demand for human resources
to strengthen our capabilities in both business units and support
functions, the Group’s headcount further increased in 2015, with the
total number of employees of our Group increasing from 2,687 at the
end of 2014 to 2,830 at the end of 2015.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the Management of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“Company” or “Group”) are committed
to the maintenance of good corporate governance standards, which
is essential for delivering sustainable value, enhancing a culture
of business integrity and maintaining investors’ confidence. Good
corporate governance promotes and safeguards the interests
of shareholders and other stakeholders, thereby enhancing the
credibility and reputation of the Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) with the exception
of code provision A.4.1 as explained in the following relevant section.
This Corporate Governance Report has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, and
explains how the Company applies the principles of the CG Code.

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company so as to promote its success and continued growth.
The Board is also responsible for ensuring that the Company has
sound systems of risk management, internal control and regulatory
compliance. The Directors, collectively and individually, have a duty to
act in good faith, and to take decisions objectively in the interests of
the Group. The Board sets the business objectives for the Company,
and monitors the execution of those objectives by the Management of
the Company.
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The Board (Continued)

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of running
the Group to the Management, and has delegated responsibility for
certain matters to a number of committees, which are described
more fully in the following sections. As defined in the Board’s
terms of reference, there are a number of matters which require
the deliberation of the full Board, and may not be delegated to the
committees of the Board or the Management. These reserved matters
include:

setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies of the
Group

approving annual budget and business plan, monitoring
performance and execution of plan

risk governance

appointment and oversight of senior management, and ensuring
competent management is in place

setting corporate values and standards

ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate structure

ensuring effective audit function and internal control

ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness in respect of the
structure, operation and risk management

matters involving conflict of interest of substantial shareholders
or any Director

material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in the ordinary
business or operation of the Company), investments and
business reorganization

appointment of Directors and also appointment of individual
Directors as the chairman or members of Board Committees

corporate governance functions in respect of the development
and review of policies and practices on corporate governance
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Board Composition

The Board comprises 11 Directors and 1 Alternate Director, namely
Messrs. David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman), Hon-Hing Wong (Derek
Wong) (Managing Director and Chief Executive), Gary Pak-Ling
Wang and Nicholas John Mayhew as Executive Directors (“EDs”),
Messrs. Takashi Morimura (Eiichi Yoshikawa as alternate), Toshihide
Motoshita and John Wai-Wai Chow as Non-Executive Directors
(“NEDs”), and Messrs. Robert Tsai-To Sze, Lon Dounn, Seiji
Nakamura and Blair Chilton Pickerell as Independent Non-Executive
Directors (“INEDs”). There is a strong independent element in the
Board to ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board’s
decision-making process as well as the thoroughness and impartiality
of the Board’s oversight of the Management.

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies and
personal qualities to discharge its responsibilities adequately
and effectively. In addition, the Board collectively has adequate
knowledge and expertise relevant to the business activities of the
Company in order to ensure effective governance and oversight. Brief
biographical particulars of the Directors, together with information
relating to the relationship among them, are set out on pages 6 to
11. The Company has maintained on websites of Dah Sing Bank
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited an updated list
of its Directors identifying their roles and functions and whether
they are INEDs. INEDs are also identified as such in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the Company’s Directors.

The independence of the INEDs has been assessed in accordance
with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Following such assessment, the Board considers all the INEDs to be
independent. Further, the Company has also received from each of
the INEDs an annual confirmation of his independence.

The Company issues appointment letters to each of the NEDs
(including INEDs), setting out the terms and conditions of their
appointment.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects of its
management — the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of its business, and that there should be a clear division
of these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance
of power and authority, so that no single individual should have
unfettered powers of decision.

The roles and objectives of the Chairman, Mr. David Shou-Yeh
Wong, and the Chief Executive, Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
are therefore separated and have been approved by the Board. The
Chairman mainly provides leadership for the Board to ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
The Chairman possesses the requisite experience, competencies and
personal qualities to fulfill these responsibilities. The Chief Executive
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company to
provide business direction and operational leadership for the benefit
of the Group’s businesses, enhance shareholder value and ensure
sound internal control.

NEDs (including INEDs)

The Company has 3 NEDs and 4 INEDs. Each of the INEDs has
provided to the Company confirmation of independence as required
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
Rule 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A with sufficient number of INEDs who
possess the appropriate professional qualifications and experience.

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, NEDs should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The NEDs of
the Company are not appointed for a specific term, but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings
in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association.

NEDs, as equal Board members, give the Board and any committees
on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation. They attend regular and special Board meetings,
and are encouraged to attend the general or special meeting of the
shareholders of the Company. The NEDs make valuable contribution
to the development of the Company’s strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed comments and suggestions.
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Board Process

Board meetings are held at least 4 times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals, and additional board meetings are held as
necessary. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings and
the annual general meeting in 2015 are set out in the following section
on Attendance Record.

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings to give
all Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice is given in advance. Directors may submit to
the Company Secretary, in writing, and at least 7 days in advance,
matters that they would like to include in the agenda for regular
Board meetings. Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board
are kept by the Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant
committees, and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

Other than regular Board meetings, the Chairman also meets with the
NEDs (including INEDs), without the presence of the EDs and other
Management staff, to facilitate open and frank discussion on issues
relating to the Company.

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense. In circumstances where Directors believe that independent
advice is needed, they should approach the Company Secretary or
the Chief Executive in the first instance with their request. No such
request will be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary
or the Chief Executive will endeavor to identify and engage an
appropriate professional adviser at the expense of the Company. The
Company maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

- To develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance

- To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management

- To review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

- To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors

- To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report

During 2015, the Board performed the following corporate
governance matters:

- Approved the Corporate Governance Report of 2014

- Reviewed and discussed the new requirements on CG Code on
Risk Management and Internal Control

- Established and approved board governance policy and
procedures

- Approved the revised Guideline on the Control and Disclosure of
Inside Information

- Approved the revised Policy on Intra-Group Exposures

- Approved the revised Group’s Code of Conduct for staff
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Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted its own code for directors’ securities
transactions (“Directors’ Dealing Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the prevailing required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
under Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry,
the Directors of the Company confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the Directors’
Dealing Code during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

A director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after his/her
appointment. Pursuant to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. All
new Directors are subject to election by shareholders of the Company
at the next annual general meeting after their appointments have
become effective. All other Directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Delegation by the Board

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee were set up under the authority of the Board, to assist the
Board in carrying out its responsibilities.
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Delegation by the Board (Continued)

The current composition of the Board, the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee is as follows:

= Board

HITES EDs

FPE(ERE) David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman)

EER(EERKERITHAR) Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) (Managing Director and Chief Executive)

FiaZ Gary Pak-Ling Wang

HEEE Nicholas John Mayhew

FBTES NEDs

SEAES Takashi Morimura

RTES Toshihide Motoshita

EEE John Wai-Wai Chow

BYFHITES INEDs

BB Robert Tsai-To Sze

4 Lon Dounn

FREIR Seiji Nakamura

*maE Blair Chilton Pickerell

TES Alternate Director
FNE—(FTNEZBEREES) Eiichi Yoshikawa (Alternate to Takashi Morimura)
Nomination and
RERFMZEE Remuneration Committee EXEES Audit Committee
B EHITES INEDs BIUFHTEE INEDs
B (ERE) Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman) sEF(EF)  Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman)
SV RPN Seiji Nakamura Eed] Lon Dounn
#*maE Blair Chilton Pickerell

BITES ED
FerE David Shou-Yeh Wong
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Induction and Training for Directors

A newly appointed Director is provided with a Director’s induction
handbook and materials relevant to the Company and briefed by the
Management to ensure that the Director has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he or she is
aware of his or her responsibilities under the laws and applicable
regulations. The Company also organized continuous professional
development and training to its Directors to ensure that they are fully
aware of their responsibilities under the applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

Directors participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company has organized board briefings for Directors. All Directors
provided to the Company Secretary a record of the training they
received in 2015.

The Directors received trainings on the following areas during the
year:

b
Training Areas
%/ 0%
TEER EERTE Ve it
Business/
Corporate Financial/
- Directors Governance Regulatory Management
BUFHTEE INEDs
2 EM Robert Tsai-To Sze v v v
E45 Lon Dounn v v -
FRER Seiji Nakamura v v v
EhE Blair Chilton Pickerell v v -
FHITEE NEDs
SFHE Takashi Morimura v v v
NN Toshihide Motoshita v v v
[EEE John Wai-Wai Chow v v v
HITEE EDs
F 7% David Shou-Yeh Wong v v v
BEH Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) v J /
B (=3 Gary Pak-Ling Wang v v v
B Nicholas John Mayhew v v v
BEFEE Alternate Director
S Eiichi Yoshikawa v/ v v/
(FRNEZBEER) (Alternate to Takashi Morimura)
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Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board sets out the requirement for a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment
of new directors to the Board. The terms of reference also explicitly
prohibit the delegation of decisions regarding the appointment of
new directors to sub-committees of the Board or to the management
of the Company, and require that such appointments are made after
deliberation by the full Board.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Company in
August 2005 with specific written terms of reference setting out its
roles and responsibilities. The Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Company
in August 2006 with a set of updated terms of reference. It is
responsible, among other things, for the review of the nomination of
new directors, approval of the remuneration of directors and senior
management. Since December 2010, the NRC’s terms of reference
have covered the following roles and responsibilities as well:

- To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility for the
design and operation of the Company’s remuneration system

- To review and make recommendation to the Board in respect of
the Company’s remuneration policy and practices

- To be delegated with the responsibility of the Board to
determine the specific remuneration packages of executive

directors and senior management

To ensure that regular review of the Company’s remuneration
system and its operation is conducted
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Corporate Governance Duties

The NRC also performs the following duties:

- To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board

- To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of
the functioning of the Board, particularly in respect of the
composition of Board members

- To approve the succession planning policy for Board members
and senior management, and make recommendations to the
Board on succession planning for these positions

- To review the Board Diversity Policy, the related measurable
objectives and progress on achieving these

The NRC is chaired by an INED and the majority of the members are

INEDs. The terms of reference for the NRC are available for inspection
at the Company’s registered office and the website of Dah Sing Bank.

The NRC held 3 meetings in 2015. The current members of the NRC
and their attendance record in 2015 are set out in the following section
on Attendance Records.

The work of the NRC during 2015 included:

- Determining and approving the remuneration levels for
executive directors and senior management

- Reviewing and endorsing the nomination of directors to the
Board

- Reviewing and endorsing the Group’s remuneration policy and
related systems and practices

- Reviewing the disclosure on the Company’s remuneration
systems and practices

- Reviewing the Board governance of the Company
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Corporate Governance Duties (Continued)

Reviewing the 2014 performance evaluation of individual INEDs
and the Board evaluation of Dah Sing Bank

- Endorsing the Director’s Fees for INEDs and NEDs

- Reviewing and endorsing the succession plan for senior
management positions of Dah Sing Bank

The Group’s Remuneration Policy

The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair and competitive
packages for its employees, which are commensurate with market
terms, and are based on business needs, expertise and quality of
the individuals, and with proper reference to industry practice and
regulatory guidelines.

For determining the level of fees paid to members of the Board of
Directors, market rates and factors such as each director’s workload
and required commitment will be taken into account. The following
factors are considered when determining the remuneration packages
of EDs:

- Business needs and performance

- The economy and business conditions in general

- Each individual’s contributions to the Group

- Risk related performance

- Reference to market pay level commensurate with the individual’s
responsibility

- Consideration of regulatory guidelines

Retention considerations and each individual’s potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director will be
involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) on 3

December 2013. The key terms of this Policy are set out as follows:

1.

Purpose

This Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Company’s Board in order to enhance the quality of
its performance which in turn benefits the Company and its
business as a whole.

Policy statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board in supporting the attainment of its business
objectives and sustainable development. Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the factors on personal
attributes outlined above, expectation on contribution to the
Board, and the benefit of diversity of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

The NRC will review and report annually, in the corporate
governance report to the Board, a summary of the Policy, the
measurable objectives to implement the Policy and progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

Review of the Policy

The NRC will review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of the Policy and discuss and recommend any
revisions that may be required to the Board for consideration
and approval.
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The Audit Committee (“AC”), established by the Board of the
Company, is responsible for ensuring the objectivity and credibility
of financial reporting, reviewing the internal control system and
compliance with regulatory requirements, and approving audit
plans and reviewing findings and reports of the internal and external
auditors, and that in presenting results to the shareholders, the
Directors have exercised the care, diligence and skills prescribed
by laws, and that appropriate accounting and financial reporting
standards are followed.

The AC makes recommendation to the Board on the selection,
oversight and remuneration of external auditors. The AC reviews and
monitors the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards.

The AC reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s annual
and interim financial statements, including significant financial
reporting judgments used in producing the financial statements.

The AC reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports its major
findings and comments to the Board. Descriptions of the Company’s
internal control system are set out below, whilst for risk management,
these are shown in the Supplementary Financial Information
under Risk Management and described with appropriate financial
quantification in the Financial Risk Management sections as notes to
the annual financial statements.

The terms of reference for the AC are available for inspection at the
Company'’s registered office and the website of Dah Sing Bank.

The members of the AC are Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman),
Mr. Lon Dounn and Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell. All of the members
of the AC are INEDs with extensive experience in banking, finance
and business management. The AC’s chairman, Mr. Sze, is a
qualified accountant and was a partner of a predecessor firm
of PricewaterhouseCoopers up to June 1996. None of the other
committee members are employed by or otherwise affiliated with the
former or existing external auditors of the Company.

The AC members meet at least 3 times a year with the Company’s
senior Management, the head of internal audit and the external
auditors. In 2015, a total of 3 meetings were held.
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The attendance record of individual directors at the AC meetings in
2015 is set out in the following section on Attendance Records.

To enable Directors to be informed of the discussions and decisions
of the AC, the minutes of the AC meetings are included in the board
papers of regular board meetings sent to Directors.

The following is a summary of the work of the AC during 2015 in
discharging its responsibilities:

a. Review of, and providing advice and recommendations to the
Board for the approval of the 2014 results announcements and
audited financial statements of the Group, and the 2015 interim
results and interim report;

b. Review of external auditors’ findings and comments, and
management’s reports on major accounting and financial
disclosure matters in respect of 2014 audit and financial

statements;

C. Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2014 for
inclusion in the Company’s 2014 annual report and the key
changes to the CG Code of the Listing Rules;

d. Approval of the reports to the Board providing a summary of the
issues, focuses and discussion reviewed and dealt with by the
AC in the second half of 2014 and the first half of 2015;

e. Review of connected party transactions and disclosure;

f. Review and approval of the appointment and remuneration of
external auditors;

g. Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit plan;

h. Review and approval of internal audit plan;

i Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and recommendations;

j Review of updates from the Legal and Compliance Division
of the Group on the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”)

examinations and regulatory concerns, management’s actions
in implementing the HKMA’s recommendations;
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K. Review of the highlights of major new accounting and financial
reporting standards and guidance issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and impact to the
Group on their adoption; and

I Review of significant accounting treatments for the preparation
of 2015 financial statements.

The attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings, Audit
Committee meetings, Nomination and Remuneration Committee
meetings and the 2015 Annual General Meeting held in 2015 are as
follows:

R2015 FRBHERY, BRAY
No. of meetings attended/meetings held in 2015

RERTH
Exg ERZEE Z8%8 RRBEFXE
Nomination and Annual
Audit Remuneration General
gz Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
BUFHTEE INEDs
£ EM Robert Tsai-To Sze 6/6 3/3 3/3 11
EE Lon Dounn 6/6 3/3 - 11
FRBEIR Seiji Nakamura 4/6 - 3/3 01
EmE Blair Chilton Pickerell 3/6 2/3 - 0/1
FHTEE NEDs
THE Takashi Morimura 2/6 - - 01
ATMEF Toshihide Motoshita 4/6 - - 11
BiE’ John Wai-Wai Chow 5/6 - - 11
HITEE EDs
TTE¥ David Shou-Yeh Wong 6/6 - 3/3 11
mEA Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 6/6 - - 11
FRE Gary Pak-Ling Wang 6/6 - - 11
BEEE Nicholas John Mayhew 6/6 - - 1/1
EHEE Alternate Director
HE— Eiichi Yoshikawa 3/6 - - 11
(FREZEEES) (Alternate to Takashi Morimura)
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Financial Reporting

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.

Management is responsible for providing sufficient explanation and
information to the Board to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. As at 31 December 2015, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Group on a going-concern basis.
The responsibility of the Group’s external auditor on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached to
the Group’s financial statements.

The Board is also responsible for providing a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment to annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, as well as to information required to
be disclosed pursuant to statutory or regulatory requirements.

Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility to
develop and maintain a sound internal control system. The internal
control system, operating through a framework of management and
operational controls, and risk management systems, is intended to
allow the Board to monitor the Group’s business performance and
financial positions, to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt
sound business practices, to obtain reasonable assurance on controls
against fraud and errors, to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, and to exercise oversight on and provide guidance
to management in achieving the Company’s objectives. However, it
should be recognized that the Group’s internal control procedures
can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material
errors, losses or fraud.
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AEBMB R HIE AT ERNI T - HER The key procedures that the Group has established to maintain an
IRERENT ¢ effective internal control system are as follows:
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A clear management organizational structure is set up with well-
defined lines of authority, accountability and responsibilities.

Specialized committees are formed to oversee and control
significant risk factors, such as credit risk, liquidity and interest
rate risks, operational risk and compliance risk.

Regular reporting of the performance of the Company’s businesses
to senior management and management committees. Actual
performance results against budgets are closely monitored. The
Board reviews the Group’s business and financial performance
on a quarterly basis.

Written policies and procedures are established to facilitate
proper assessment of customers, services to customers,
segregation of duties, accuracy and completeness of
transaction processing, safeguarding of assets, credit control
and risk monitoring, control of business exposures, compliance
control and monitoring (including anti-money laundering
(“AML")), staff training, IT development, IT governance and
information security, business continuity planning, financial
control (including accounting, regulatory reporting, financial
reporting to comply with regulatory and financial reporting
standards, management accounting and budget control,
reconciliation of accounts), and system of management
oversight including the operations of various functional
committees.

The independent internal audit function monitors compliance
with management policies and procedures, and regulatory
requirements; and will conduct a wide variety of internal
control reviews and audit activities such as compliance audits
and operations and systems reviews to ensure the integrity,
efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of control. The
Head of Internal Audit reports functionally to the AC and
administratively to the Chief Executive with direct access to the
Executive Committee.
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Internal Controls (Continued)

- The independent group risk function monitors and reports the
Group’s risk positions and analysis to senior management, Risk
Management and Compliance Committee and the Board, and
operates to sustain a sound asset quality and risk control in the
portfolio of the Group’s businesses with due consideration of a
proper risk and return balance.

- The Group’s business continues its ongoing upgrade of risk
management framework and capabilities to strengthen its risk
control and effectiveness, which are key to the maintenance of
sound internal control process of the Group.

- The Group Compliance Committee at the management level
serves to uphold a high level of awareness and accountability
of compliance requirements and is responsible for overseeing
and guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement
of compliance system, policies and practices to ensure
compliance with all statutory requirements and regulatory
guidelines. The Legal and Compliance Division of the Group
performs an independent on-going monitoring and advisory role
on the Group’s compliance with relevant rules and regulations,
while the AML and Financial Crime Risk Department manages
and oversees AML and financial crime risk of the Group.

Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system, the
Board has considered reviews performed by the AC and executive
management, and the findings of both internal and external auditors.

Under the direction of the AC, the Group’s Internal Audit in the year
conducted an assessment covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
practices. The 2015 reviews included an annual assessment of
internal control system with reference to the comments made by both
internal and external auditors, policies and procedures of the Group,
regulatory guidelines and the CG Code regarding internal controls.
The Group will continue to work to enhance its internal control system
and processes.
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The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the independence of
the Company’s external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”),
for performing the audit of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only when
the Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner and the
independence and objectivity of PwC as the Company’s external
auditors can be maintained. Otherwise, professional services from
other firms are used.

In addition to audit related services, PwC, based on agreed-upon
procedures, provided the Group non-audit services during 2015
including review of tax returns and computation, tax advisory
services, review of the Group’s interim financial disclosure, and review
of the update on the offering circular of Dah Sing Bank, Limited’s
US$2 Billion Euro Medium Term Note Programme, and independent
assessments of certain operational processes, risk management and
internal control of the Group.

The remuneration paid/payable to PwC in respect of audit services
and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set
out as follows:

eXft Bz EA
BARRA TR RE Services rendered for the Company Fee paid/payable
(F#&T)
(HK$°000)
EIZR Audit services 9,931
FRZAIMNRT Non-audit services:
o EHMEEHMEBIMNMISPHZETEI([5F o Review of the updated Euro Medium Term 270
2 ) RARFIRITIES Bl T BATH R EER Note Programme (the “Programme”) and
HEETE professional work on new subordinated note
issue of Dah Sing Bank under the Programme
o HEBREKEE  FHERAKREESIRMHE L o Compliance reviews and independent 2,922
é\%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&?@jéﬁz assessments on operational risk management,
technology risk management, etc.
. SPERAREE BRI 2 TSR BRI FIIEEE ¢ Tax compliance review on taxation computation 2,148
:ﬁﬂau?@ﬁﬁﬁ%zmﬁ%/\%ﬁﬁé and advisory service on compliance with new
tax regulations relevant to the Group
o Hfth e Others 2,888
aH# Total 18,159
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Effective Communication

The Board attaches great importance to communication with
shareholders. The Annual General Meeting provides a useful forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of the
Board and all Directors make a strong effort to attend. The Chairmen
of the Board Committees and a representative of the external auditors
also attend the Annual General Meeting to take shareholders’
questions.

The Management holds group meetings with analysts in connection
with the Company’s annual and interim results. Apart from the
above, designated senior executives maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s development, subject to compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations.

Moreover, the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com)
offers shareholders convenient access to the Company’s financial
information, announcements/circulars and information on the
Company’s corporate governance structure and practices, in addition
to business and corporate social responsibility activities of the Group.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights of
the Company may put forth requisition to convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting of the Company.

The requisition must (i) state the objectives of the meeting, (ii) be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and (iii) be deposited at the Company’s
registered office at 36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108
Gloucester Road, Hong Kong or in electronic form. It may also consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionist(s).

The requisition must also state (i) the name(s) of the requisitionist(s),
(i) the contact details of the requisitionist(s) and (iii) the number of
ordinary shares of the Company held by the requisitionist(s).

The Directors must proceed to convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition.
Such meeting should be held on a date not more than 28 days after
the date on which the notice convening the meeting is given.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting (Continued)

If the Directors fail to convene the Extraordinary General Meeting
as aforesaid, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene the meeting. Any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the date of the deposit of the
requisition.

A meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) by reason of
the failure of the Directors to duly convene a meeting shall be repaid
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders representing not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders, or not less than 50 shareholders, who are entitled
to vote on a resolution at a general meeting, may:

- put forward a proposal at a general meeting

- circulate to other shareholders a written statement with respect
to matters to be dealt with at a general meeting

Shareholders may refer to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for further details on
the shareholder qualifications and the procedures and timeline in
connection with the above.

Submission of enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s attention
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office at 36th
Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong.
Questions about the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General
Meeting may also be put to the Company Secretary.
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Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders Communication Policy
which sets out the Company’s practices in relation to communication
with shareholders and the investment community. The Policy is
available on the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com).

The Company has not changed its constitutional documents in 2015.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who possesses the relevant qualifications and experience
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. She has
taken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update
her skills and knowledge during the financial year ended 31 December
2015.



ER—RREBAEAELMABEEN
TRREEE  RA-EBNETERME
SEME - RMEARFAINOTRFNE K
FREBE UAREEBEENLEE
A ERFEBRERDNERREAZR - K
MEBREERTHERMEIRNFREEK
M2l cEEETEREEREERY
A HEREBARENEE -

REEMBITAERSEE  ASERS
REEARBESHEEEER - L/{E%i
MEBREMNBEEED - L THREF
MEMR 2015 FECELEETETEOE
%@J&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ BAKAE - RIRK ML B
HEEERRE o RIREIRAI R RITRIT
%Eﬁwww.dahsmg.comﬁﬁa o

BEENT
AERAAEE (BEARR REE EMH
BREDERERA—FXEEENEELRR

MEBRBEREEFZHHENEE K
AWM AEEEE2015F12 A31 B (F§f
Eﬁzifzma ¥HSEMLES  BER
m%ixﬁﬁ%uﬁﬁ/ﬂﬁiaa&zia.:a
@ o RMEHGEE RS EL AR - I
{EBARERE2015F 2 FR—2H o

HERES

AREDIRBEEEHRARZIAARREMR
oy ERAIM 827 2GR - LB REA
HEESD) ([R5 - e RERMEES )

HEDERBEREE

AR EZHBEIEERBAREEEBHLE
MEANCEHSELEPAZECES
HERMAE  TERERR HEREAR
SESINMASAEBY A EZRERDN
TH e AELTESRAEFBERTENE
% MPSRFI R BN R EBIL R EE
EA e

As a well-established financial services group with a long
history in Hong Kong, we are strongly committed to corporate
social responsibility (“CSR”), recognising that long-term
business success is dependent on our relationship with all of
our stakeholders - both inside and outside the Company, and
that adopting responsible management practices is essential.
At Dah Sing Group, CSR is about achieving commercial
success in ways that honour ethical values and respect people,
communities and the natural environment.

To be successful in carrying out CSR, we strive to embed
socially responsible values throughout the organisation,
influencing our day-to-day operations. The following report
highlights our key CSR activities and achievements which
demonstrates our commitment to CSR during 2015. This report
is also available via the website of Dah Sing Bank at www.
dahsing.com.

Report Profile

This report describes the initiatives of the Group comprising the
Company and its key subsidiaries as a responsible corporate
citizen operating in the financial sector and its relationship with
major stakeholders, covering the Group’s CSR activities in the
financial year ended 31 December 2015, including its focus on
environmental and social issues that are important to the Group.
This report supplements the Corporate Governance Report and
is included as a part of the Group’s 2015 Annual Report.

Reporting Guidelines

This report has been compiled with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG
Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules issued by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Report scope and coverage

The scope of this report was defined after taking into
consideration the materiality of the CSR activities or issues
arising from the business operations of the Group, it excludes
aspects stated in the ESG Guide which are not material or
relevant to the Group. This report has focused on the Group’s
business operations in Hong Kong and excludes the business
operations in Macau and Mainland China.
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HwEHAR Reporting period

RIREFMHERRE2015F1A1HE12 The information in this report covers the period from 1 January
A 31 HHME - to 31 December 2015.

B ER REE ERRAFTD KRR Our commitment to CSR and the overall sustainability of the
MECELSEERCENFTEHEZEREN Group’s development is embodied in our corporate mission and
K values/guiding principles:

fEin Mission

. RHEEER  BAARPRE o To create value for our customers by providing quality

products and excellent service

o AXKBELIE @ —REETKE . To grow with our employees through mutual commitment

. HIFBELOR - B HAEREIEE . To increase shareholder value through sustainable returns
on capital

5=/ EmERal Values/Guiding Principles

J B . Customer commitment

° BENREEFAE . Employer — employee mutual commitment

. EEERsT . Integrity

. BIE AN fE b B 18 . Financial strength & risk management

o LB e o Operational excellence

. ) ° Compliance
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The Group has adopted a corporate governance structure
to enable it to discharge its statutory duties while pursuing
its business objectives. Details of the corporate governance
structure including internal control and risk management are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report of the 2015 Annual
Report.

We have also formulated a Code of Conduct which encapsulates
our core values/guiding principles and sets high ethical
standards of behaviour expected of our staff members. We
focus on having the right culture, structures and processes in
place to ensure that we practise strong governance, provide
proper guidance to and supervision of our staff, and adopt
sound business practices.

4.1 Overall Approach and Principles

The CSR Committee, comprising members of Management
of the Group, is responsible for setting the CSR strategy
and directing the CSR activities. The Committee
also reviews, approves, supervises and monitors the
implementation of all CSR initiatives. Various support
teams working under the direction of the Committee are
responsible for promotion, support and organisation of
CSR activities.

4.2 CSR Activities

The Group’s CSR activities are in line with its strategy,
mission, guiding principles and values as well as its
corporate governance framework. Besides, the following
approach and principles are adopted for CSR activities in
different aspects:
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4.2

CSR Activities (Continued)

Workplace

Treat employees fairly and equally, respect their
human rights, ensure employment practices that
uphold equal opportunity and non-discrimination
are in place

Provide competitive and fair reward and recognition

Provide a safe and healthy working environment

Support employee wellness, work-life balance and
family-friendly practices

Encourage open communication and provide
channels for employees to express their concerns

Nurture talent and support continuous development
of employees

Marketplace

Uphold high standards of governance and a set
of core ethical values including honesty, integrity,
diligence, fairness, responsible citizenship and
accountability in conducting business

Provide a diverse range of products and services
to enable customers to select the solution that best
suits their needs

Provide clear and honest information to customers

to help them make informed decisions

Listen to customer feedback, continually enhance

customer service and customer satisfaction

Ensure privacy of customer data

Promote sustainable business practices through

assessing the potential environmental and social
impact when deciding to make a loan or investment
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4.2 CSR Activities (Continued)
Marketplace (Continued)
o Use suppliers that act in an environmentally, socially
and ethically responsible manner
Community
° Work with partners to support community

programmes that bring about positive social impact

° Provide resources to encourage and facilitate
employees to participate in volunteering service and
charitable activities

° Contribute to sustainable economic development
of Hong Kong and the Pearl River Delta region via
supporting SMEs, job creation, e.g. internship, and
raising financial literacy in the community

Environment

° Use eco-friendly materials and supplies

° Reduce waste production and consumption of
energy and natural resources

° Increase recycling
o Prevent pollution and reduce carbon footprint
° Promote environmentally responsible practices

among employees, customers, suppliers,
contractors and business partners

Workplace
Our People

Recognising that our people are important stakeholders
in our business, we are committed to providing equal
opportunity, competitive pay and benefits, training and
continuous development, and also promoting employee

wellness, work-life balance and family friendliness.
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4.2 CSR Activities (Continued)

Workplace (Continued)
Equal Opportunities for All

We believe that every individual has the right to work in
an environment that is free of discrimination, harassment,
victimisation or vilification on the grounds of gender,
marital status, pregnancy, disability, family status or
race. The Group encourages breaking down barriers and
building a harmonious working environment for all staff.
To support this, we have strong policies against sexual
harassment and racial discrimination in employment and
recruitment. Our terms and conditions of employment
comply fully with anti-discrimination ordinances. There
are clear channels, e.g. whistle-blowing and grievance
procedures, for employees to express any concerns.

Employee Assistance and Well-Being

The Group has pioneered the provision of an Employee
Assistance Program (“EAP”) since 2001. The EAP aims at
helping employees to prevent, identify and resolve their
personal, family or work-related concerns. Under the
EAP, employees can obtain professional counselling and
consultation services from an appointed service provider

on a confidential basis.

To promote the well-being of our employees, the Group
has organised a number of workshops and seminars on
various topics including good parenting, a safe home
environment for the elderly, financial planning and health.
Moreover, a series of activities were held during the Work-
Life Balance Week in October 2015.

We were awarded “The Best Practice Award 2015 in
Employee Care” by The Best Practice Management
Group. The award is in recognition of the Group’s
commitment to promote work-life balance which is an
integral part of living a healthy life, enhancing motivation
and bringing about greater work satisfaction. In addition,
we were presented “The Best Practice Award 2015 in
Corporate Culture Development” to recognize the Group’s
effort in building a committed and engaged workforce
aiming at improving the well-being of our staff based on
the Group’s 6 guiding principles and values.
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4.2 CSR Activities (Continued)

Workplace (Continued)
Employee Assistance and Well-Being (Continued)

We have also participated in the Hong Kong Council of
Social Services Caring Company Campaign since 2002 and
were among the first group of Hong Kong companies to be
awarded the “10+ years Caring Company” recognition.

In addition, we were given the “2014/15 Good MPF
Employer Award” by The Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority.

Family-Friendly

The Group is committed to fostering a family-friendly
work environment to support employee wellness and have
implemented various family-friendly practices.

To support a breastfeeding-friendly workplace, we
have joined the “Say Yes to Breastfeeding” Community
Support Campaign 2015/2016 launched by UNICEF HK
in collaboration with the Food and Health Bureau and
Department of Health.

Staff Training and Development

The Group encourages and sponsors employees to attend
training programmes for job-relevant knowledge and skills
to enhance their competence, upgrade their expertise for
performance, and improve their capabilities to take up
future challenges.

We offer education sponsorships for employees to
gain higher academic qualifications for their personal
development. Sponsorship and examination leave are
also given to employees to attend various professional
development programmes and examinations such as FLMI,
ACCA, HKICPA, HKIB, CFP, CFMP and CFA organized by
different professional bodies.
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4.2 CSR Activities (Continued)

Workplace (Continued)
Staff Training and Development (Continued)

To foster and promote continuous professional
development in the banking field, the Group continuously
supports the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers to provide
education and training to the banking community in the
region. With Hong Kong being an international financial
centre, it is essential that we contribute to the ongoing
learning and development of professionals in the rapidly
evolving banking industry.

In our insurance business, we also sponsor our life
insurance agents to participate in the “Registered
Financial Consultants” programme organised by
the International Association of Registered Financial
Consultants to encourage continuous education and
to uplift the professional standard of our insurance
consultants.

In 2015, we launched a number of new training
programmes and enhanced the existing programmes
to cope with the Group’s changing business needs,
and ran redesigned workshops to continue to reinforce
our corporate culture. During the year, our employees
received over 55,000 hours of training on topics including
financial knowledge, banking products and operations,
sales, customer service, business communication,
leadership and management skills, compliance, anti-
money laundering, etc.
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4.2

CSR Activities (Continued)
Workplace (Continued)
Nurture of Young Talent

We are committed to nurturing young talents. The Group’s
efforts in grooming talented young people are also
evidenced in the Graduate Trainee Programme which
has been running continuously since 2004. Professional
training is also provided to fresh graduates who want to
enter the banking industry through various programmes
such as our Financial Services Trainee and Customer
Services Trainee programmes. Awards are also given
to the employees to encourage continuous learning to
achieve higher professional qualifications in the banking
field.

Health and Safety

We are committed to providing a safe and healthy
workplace for employees. Our Guidelines on Occupational
Safety and Health provides information on some potential
health and safety hazards in office and the related
prevention measures. We have the Contingency Plan
for the Outbreak of an Infectious Disease which sets
out our responses to outbreaks of infectious diseases
and our approach to business continuity in the event
of a pandemic so that we are able to continue to serve
our customers. In addition, all health and safety risk
are assessed, managed and escalated according to the
Group’s risk management framework. Employee benefits
including medical and life insurance, discounted voluntary
dental plan and flu vaccinations, and health talks are
provided.
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4.2 CSR Activities (Continued)

Marketplace
Serving Our Customers

We strive to create value for our customers by providing
quality products and excellent services. We offer a
comprehensive range of banking products and insurance
products and services to meet the diverse needs of
customers. Apart from serving the mass public, we also
provide tailor-made banking services to specific market
segments. For example, VIP Banking tailored for the more
affluent market, SME Banking for the small-medium sized
companies and YOU Banking for the progressive, young
generation. Digital development is one of our key business
initiatives, with the recent launches of Mobile Banking and
Mobile Trading Services to help customers manage their
finances more conveniently. We serve our customers in a
wide array of channels, including a branch network of 45
branches, 21 VIP Centres, 35 Securities Centres, phone
banking service and internet/mobile channels in Hong
Kong.

We also helped vulnerable customers enjoy regular banking
services. Dah Sing Bank is a participating institution of
the Treat Customers Fairly Charter championed by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority. We offer low-balance
maintenance fee waiver to vulnerable customers (such
as senior citizens, minors, low-income customers, and
customers with physical or mental disabilities) and do not
charge dormant account fee.

Supporting SMEs and the Economy

SMEs are the lifeblood of the Hong Kong economy and
they form an important customer segment for the Group.
We believe that supporting SMEs is important not just
for the sustainable development of Hong Kong, but
also for the Pearl River Delta region as a whole. Among
many activities we organized for SMEs, we participated
in the SME Loan Guarantee Scheme launched by the
Government as well as the SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme (SFGS) operated by the Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation.
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4.2 CSR Activities (Continued)

Marketplace (Continued)
Supporting SMEs and the Economy (Continued)

In 2015, we organized an SME seminar in cooperation
with the Hong Kong Trade Development Council (HKTDC).
Moreover, we launched inspirational SME leaders video
series and invited prominent members of the Hong Kong
SME community to share their success stories.

We are also delighted to be a platinum sponsor of the
Hong Kong Award for Industry (HKAI) again in 2015.
The HKAI awards recognise companies that make
exceptional contributions to the industrial and commercial
development of Hong Kong.

Anti-Corruption

The Group’s anti-corruption policies are communicated
clearly to all employees in the Code of Conduct for staff,
which is available via the group’s intranet. All employees
are required to review the Code of Conduct on an annual
basis.

Employees are also provided with regular training in order
to ensure that they comply with the relevant regulatory
requirements in relation to anti-corruption and fraud, and
anti-money laundering matters.

Community
Community Donations & Sponsorships

In 2015, we continued to put our efforts to support
youth development and those in need in the community,
including:

° Dah Sing Bank sponsored a series of seminars
entitled “Life Journey” organised by the Hong
Kong Association of Youth Development, which
are designed to help youngsters adopt a positive
attitude towards life.
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4.2 CSR Activities (Continued)

Community (Continued)

Community Donations & Sponsorships (Continued)

Dah Sing Bank sponsored the Corporate Team
Challenge and supported its staff to form 6 teams
to join the Jessica Run 2015 which raised funds for
the Heep Hong Society, The Hong Kong Girl Guide
Association and the Yuen Kong Kindergarten.

Dah Sing Life supported the “Ten Thousand
Galloping Horses, United With One Heart”
Installation Art and Education Project organised
by The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups by
partnering with an illustrator to design a 6-ft tall
galloping horse to promote the spirit of spreading
love. Dah Sing Life staff and customers led over
1,500 basketball players to successfully shoot
78,624 basketball lay-ups in 12 hours to raise
fund for the “Beyond Special Needs Children’s
Fund” under the Hong Kong Adventist Hospital
Foundation.

Dah Sing Life’s “New Home Association Reading
Fun Program” aims to promote parent-child book
reading habits among families, encourage good
reading habits, share knowledge of juvenile financial
planning, preserve morality and establish good
parent-child relationships.

Dah Sing Insurance title-sponsored “Dah Sing Love
Love Run” which was a charity run and carnival for
spreading the spirit of loving and caring for AIDS
victims and encourage the public to support local
HIV prevention work. All funds raised were donated
to “AIDS Concern”.
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Dah Sing Charity Football Challenge for OSC

4.2 CSR Activities (Continued)

Community (Continued)

Community Donations & Sponsorships (Continued)
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Dingy Sing Charfty

The Group sponsored the “Konica Minolta Green
Concert: Extreme Power Generating Challenge
Event” aimed to raise public awareness of global
warming and extreme weather, and helped to
raise funds for the “Hong Kong Seeing Eye Dog
Services”. The challenge was held under simulated
conditions of extreme weather like earthquakes
and hurricanes, to help the public understand the
problems that may soon confront us all.

Dah Sing Charity Football Challenge was held
to raise funds for SCMP Operation Santa Claus
(“OSC”). The event included an internal staff football
match and gathered around 30 children from the
Inspiring HK Sports Foundation to enjoy several
football challenge games with 8 teams from our
staff. This was the third consecutive year Dah Sing
Group has supported OSC which raises funds for
Hong Kong charities and the underprivileged.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |

o



/8

42 HEHSETEH @
#HE &)
E TR

BMZBET2EETRY - BEhit
G LM EHE

4.2

CSR Activities (Continued)
Community (Continued)
Volunteer Services

We encourage our employees to undertake volunteer work
to help the underprivileged.
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° Dah Sing Bank sponsored the Hong Kong Youth
Arts Foundation in preparing the “Easter Kid Art
Fun” with a series of activities for kids in need. The
Bank management joined hands with the volunteers
to provide kids with special art experiences during
this meaningful event.

° Dah Sing Bank collaborated with the Heep Hong
Society and sponsored “Dah Sing Volunteers
Summer Job Challenge”, in which the Bank
management and volunteers helped kids in need to
plot their career paths through role-playing different
professions, such as cooks, firemen and flight
attendants, etc. at the Dream Come True Education
Park.



4.2

TEMEEEED @ 4.2 CSR Activities (Continued)

#EE () Community (Continued)
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Dah Sing Volunteers Mid-Autumn Activity 2015
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E B RIBIE B - A the duty of every business to manage the environmental
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BRIRETHRNTE - DELAB in order to help protect the biodiversity of the natural
AR BETR R E RS PER R EE environment. A business can reduce its impact by cutting
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greenhouse gases and waste it produces.
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4.2 CSR Activities (Continued)

Environment (Continued)
Eco-friendly Suppliers, Products and Projects

Environmental protection is one of the important criteria
we use in selecting our suppliers and products. Our
key service providers have 1ISO14001 environmental
management systems and standards and/or certified by
the Forest Stewardship Council (“FSC”). The Group also
selects office machines that minimise energy loss and
have less-CO2 emissions, relative to similar products in
the market.

We participated in a well-known environmental protection
award scheme, Hong Kong Green Organisation
Certification (“HKGOC?”), led by the Environmental
Campaign Committee alongside the Environmental
Protection Department. We focus on energy saving area
and have implemented a number of initiatives in order
to save energy, including the replacement of lighting
devices that will result in significant reduction in electricity
usage. Our achievement has been recognized by the
Environmental Campaign Committee with the award of
“Energywi$e Certificate — Good Level”. Moreover, we
have launched a “Happy & Green Life 2015” for our staff to
raise their awareness on Low Carbon Diet. We have also
sponsored the “Konica Minolta Green Concert: Extreme
Power Generating Challenge” event held in Nov/Dec 2015
with two teams of our staff to participate in the bicycle
riding competition to contribute to the support of green
environment and charity.

Eco-friendly Environment for Staff Members and
Customers

The Group endeavours to select Eco-friendly materials
and supplies for all offices and branches. These include
the use of LED, energy saving lamps and low-VOC
emission carpeting and furniture, which help to minimise
the possible damage to the environment and health risks
to staff and customers.
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4.2 CSR Activities (Continued)

Environment (Continued)
Recycling

In addition to using recycled paper, the Group also
collects used paper for recycling. In 2015, this amounted
to approximately 139,000 kg of used paper, printer
cartridges and toner bottles from more than 1,050 multi-
functional devices were sent for recycling. We have also
installed a waste separation bin at the Headquarters and
collected used and un-used red packets for recycling.
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Saving Trees

The Group adopts paperless processes where
practicable, for example, by replacing paper-based
reports with electronic reports. When paper-based reports
are necessary, we advocate printing on both sides to
reduce paper usage. The Group deploys more than 200
scanning devices in our offices and branches to facilitate
the electronic retention and transmission of records.

We constantly encourage our customers to make use of
our electronic banking services, including e-statements
and our state-of-the-art internet commercial banking
platform “DS Direct” to reduce paper usage.
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The following are the major awards received by the Group in
2015:

° “10+ years Caring Company” recognition by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service

° “Best Practice Award 2015 in Corporate Culture
Development” by The Best Practice Management Group

° “Best Practice Award 2015 in Employee Care” by The Best
Practice Management Group

° “2014/15 Good MPF Employer Award” by The Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority

o “Outstanding Financial Management Planner Award” by
the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers for sales and financial
planning colleagues

° Persistently Outstanding Service Outlet of the year (TKO
Metro City Branch) and Persistently Outstanding Service
Company of the year by TipTop Consultants Ltd.

o “2015 Best SME’s Partner Award” by The Hong Kong
General Chamber of Small and Medium Business

° “Corporate Social Responsibility Award” by CAPITAL

magazine
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The principal activity of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are shown in Note 31 to the financial statements. An
analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the reporting period by business and geographical
segments are set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 105.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.32 per share and

a total of HK$107,224,032 in cash was paid on 24 September 2015.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$1.00
per share in cash, totalling HK$335,075,100.

For determining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting:

2016 F5 A27 B (E2HA)E2016F5 A31 H(E# )
27 May 2016 (Friday) to 31 May 2016 (Tuesday)

201645 A26 H (E£8MM) TF 4K 305
4:30 p.m. on 26 May 2016 (Thursday)

2016 5 A31 H(EH )
31 May 2016 (Tuesday)

2016 5 A31 H(EH )
31 May 2016 (Tuesday)
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B LEPFIR AR (7 3B P F
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Record date
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For determining shareholders’ entitlement to receive the proposed
final dividend*:

20166 A7H(EH=)=2016F6 A10RH (EHT)
7 June 2016 (Tuesday) to 10 June 2016 (Friday)

2016F 6 A6 H (28 —) TH4K305
4:30 p.m. on 6 June 2016 (Monday)

2016 6 A10H (EHiH)
10 June 2016 (Friday)

201666 A20R (EH—)
20 June 2016 (Monday)

(*subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Shareholders, no share
transfers will be registered. For registration, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong before the relevant latest
time to lodge transfers.

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis
on the Group’s future business development are provided in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and the “Review of Operations” of this
Annual Report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing can also be found in the “Chairman’s
Statement” and the “Review of Operations” of this Annual Report.
The objectives and policies of financial risk management and the
risk management structure and framework of the Group can be
found in the “Notes to the Financial Statements” of this Annual
Report. Particulars of important events affecting the Company that
have occurred (if any) can be found in the “Notes to the Financial
Statements”. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the “Review
of Operations” of this Annual Report. In addition, discussions on
the Group’s environmental policies and relationships with the key
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have significant impact on the Group can be found in the
“Corporate Social Responsibility Report” and the “Corporate
Governance Report” of this Annual Report. The “Notes to the
Financial Statements” also contain description of the management
structures and framework to ensure compliance of various laws and
regulations which are applicable to the Group. The above sections
form part of this Report of the Directors.
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Details of the shares of the Company issued during the year are shown
in Note 45 to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$2,174,000.

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze*
Lon Dounn*

Seiji Nakamura*

Blair Chilton Pickerell*
Takashi Morimura
Toshihide Motoshita
John Wai-Wai Chow

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Nicholas John Mayhew

Eiichi Yoshikawa
Alternate to Takashi Morimura

* Independent Non-Executive Directors

In accordance with Article 122 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third (or the number nearest to but not exceeding
one-third) of the Directors (including Managing Director(s)) being
those who have been longest in office shall retire by rotation at each
annual general meeting. The Directors retiring under Article 122 are,
however, eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Messrs. David Shou-
Yeh Wong, Nicholas John Mayhew and Seiji Nakamura will retire,
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors as regards their continued
independence while serving as members of the Board of Directors
during the year, and the Company still considers all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual
general meeting are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent
together with this Annual Report.

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on the boards
of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this Report of the Directors is provided in the “Directors of
Subsidiaries” section which follows this Report of the Directors.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within 1 year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“SEHK”) pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they have taken on or are deemed to have
acquired under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the SEHK
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers and the code of conduct for directors’ securities
dealing adopted by the Company (collectively the “Securities Model
Code”) were as follows:
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B) TEARQNTIREEEBERGEZROES a) Interests in the shares of the Company and its
associated corporation
EERTRE
By oER
BAL
Percentage
of interests
RAEEA in the
Number of shares total
BARER EERER Htgs BitER number
Personal Corporate Other Total of issued
Bz Directors Interests Interests Interests Interests shares
BFEARREERRG Number of ordinary
shares in the Company
IF% David Shou-Yeh Wong - 11,096,4950 126,189,187 137,285,682 40.97
BEE John Wai-Wai Chow 1,223,231 - - 1,223,231 0.37
BFEAFRTEEERAR Number of ordinary
EERRSA shares in Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited
TrE David Shou-Yeh Wong - 1,045,626,955% - 1,045,626,955 74.58
R John Wai-Wai Chow 208,741 - - 208,741 0.01
Rime Nicholas John Mayhew! 24,640 - - 24,640 0.00
i Notes:

=

@)

EENEERRTDIERERBRAS ErliEs =
DZ—HALBRREZ RRIAFA B

WA Th R R E T EREREK 8 Mz
ZERERIFRNELRBRETARAABERS
Ao

IR BEA R RFRAE AFRITEEFRAA
(TRF|ITERE ) 74.57% ZH#am - MREGE
HEHBRIDEXVENEERETERB AR
F140.97% B 5 2 1) H AR (E TR 32 BB KRR 1T
SERGH LB - ARBETEEREIE
ZARRA 2 B -

W EHFT B 2 RETIRTT SR E I - ZRIEE
DSE Investment Services Limited ([ DSE |) 75
BHEE 7008 T2 BERMDER - DSETIARTA]
ZEAMBRR  RREEE -

4)

The corporate interests are in respect of shares held by companies in
which the director controls one third or more of the voting powers at
general meetings.

Such shares are indirectly held by HSBC International Trustee Limited, a
trustee of a discretionary trust established for the benefit of David Shou-
Yeh Wong and his family members.

Such shares include the indirect corporate interests of David Shou-Yeh
Wong in Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) under Part XV of the
SFO by virtue of his beneficial interests of 40.97% in the Company which
currently holds a controlling interest of 74.57% in DSBG and interests in
DSBG held through a company controlled by David Shou-Yeh Wong.

In addition to the interests in DSBG disclosed above, Nicholas John
Mayhew is also beneficiary interested in all of the preference shares of
DSE Investment Services Limited (“DSE”) in issue totalling HK$700. DSE
is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is currently inactive.
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b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation

i) Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 28 April
2005 (the “Old DSFH Option Scheme”) had expired on 28
April 2015. On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New
DSFH Option Scheme”). No further options can be offered
under the Old DSFH Option Scheme after its expiration but the
provisions of the Old DSFH Option Scheme remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to exercise of all
options granted prior to the expiration of the Old DSFH Option
Scheme but not yet exercised at the time of expiration.

In accordance with the requirements of The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), a summary of the Old DSFH Option
Scheme and the New DSFH Option Scheme (collectively the
“DSFH Schemes”) is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the DSFH Schemes:

The purpose of the DSFH Schemes is to provide an
incentive and/or reward to grantees for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the
Group.

(2) Participants of the DSFH Schemes:

Any director, manager, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial or supervisory position in the Group
as the Board may in its sole discretion determine to be
eligible to participate in the DSFH Schemes.
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Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

i)
3)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Total number of shares available for issue under the DSFH
Schemes and percentage of total number of issued shares
as at the date of this Report of the Directors:

Following the expiration of the Old DSFH Option Scheme,
no further share options can be granted under the Old
DSFH Option Scheme.

The number of shares available for issue under the
New DSFH Option Scheme and any other schemes is
16,753,755 shares, representing 5% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at the date of this Report
of the Directors.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the DSFH
Schemes:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the DSFH Schemes and the
Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of
the Company, and is specified when related options are
granted. Shares under the options must be taken up within
10 years from the date of grant. All the existing options
under the Old DSFH Option Scheme shall be exercisable
upon vesting in 5 equal tranches between the first and fifth
anniversaries from the date of grant.
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b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(6)  Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of the Company, and is specified when related
options are granted. None of the existing share options
under the Old DSFH Option Scheme shall be exercisable
within 1 year from the date of grant.

(7)  Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 21 days upon offer of granting of
options or the date on which the conditions (if any) for the
offer are satisfied.

(8) Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of the Company on the basis no less exacting
than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing
Rules and is determined as no less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the
SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The basis of nominal value of the Company’s shares
for determining exercise price under the Old DSFH
Option Scheme was not applicable since the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into force on 3 March 2014.
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Z) EARQTIREBLIEMERARERZS b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

(%) Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

] A ELZFRAR 1B Z) (4) i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

9) ZEAFLBEHZ LB (99 Remaining life of the DSFH Schemes:
RF LR E ARSI R 2015F The Old DSFH Option Scheme had expired on 28 April
4828 Em  FTEREATSHE 2015 and all outstanding share options granted under the
AT R T AR TE 2R Old DSFH Option Scheme and yet to be exercised shall
RERN o KETE RN ESTEIA remain valid. The New DSFH Option Scheme shall be valid
20155 427 HE:T10FE R B K - and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from 27
2202595 A 26 HfEm ° May 2015 and expiring at the close of 26 May 2025.

KSR RARETE BN BEEZE 2015 No share options had been granted under the New DSFH Option

F12 4318 WETRZEEREATS Scheme since the date of adoption to 31 December 2015.

%E %ﬁ HILAHX*?E% u+ ilJ TX t'j °

ARG TELEWNBARNE TESEE Certain directors of the Company’s major operating subsidiaries
KL R DI HE ST B RIS TR HE - 1 were granted options under the Old DSFH Option Scheme.
Ao e RiEst e TRTE 2R Details of the movements during the year ended, and the status
RN TR MO ERNE Z2015F 12 A31H 1 as at, 31 December 2015 of the Company’s outstanding share
FEERNYBE N ERES T SBNT options which have been granted under the Old DSFH Option

Scheme are as follows:

AREaL 2 AN RRHEE
Number of the Company’s shares in the options

Ro015% WM5FM  2015FR  R215E

1A1R 2015%A it HEE/%% 12R%A
b2 R Exercised  Cancelled/ 58 frEEn T
Held at Granted during lapsed Held at Exercise RitA Exercise
ARA Grantee 1/1/20159  during 2015 2015  during 2015 311212015 price  Grant date period
(81) (B/R/%) (R/R/%)
(HKS) (O/MAY) (DY)
fEssge Aggregate of employees ® 782,301 - - (260,767) 521,034 3835 12122011 121122012 -
1211212017
447221 - - (104,307) 312,920 3188 21122012 211122013 -
21/12/2018

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |



92

i

)

Ht
i[5
%UH
Off
I

ERQATRABEESRRERS
(&)

) ARE BT E ()

(1)  EERQER2014F 4 A 2 B mED
FE o RATEH20144F4 529 B pLiARE
FAEMBIELH AR -

@ RBEDIERTETEERER ®REAX
RATELEMBRARANES SEEHE
ABREBE - YRBEBREEOT [EE
BH] TENEER -

(@) FMARBAMERERKEFTETREZ
REENE T AEFE1EZFSERFED
5t PG BRI AT T ATTLE

@) RBEEECEEFBRIRMIEREME
50 -

i) ARE]EENEEE - ARTTEE
BIRAF]2 BT &)

AR RRFBITEEBR QR ([ KRFR
TEE ) REHN 201455 A 27 BE1TH
BRRAFASBBIEFRARTRITER
2R B ([ K IRIT R B RAR#E
FHEID - WER B RRKIERFRITEER
2004 F6 A 12 BERM 2 R &R ([ K3
RITEBERRIETE]) - KHFRITER
ERWRERTEIRIE - TSR ETEI#E—
SEROEMRIRE HAFRITEERER
RIS 2 X HRN B BLRIEAIERERE
A IERE D ARITE 2 2 503 m S - 1D
BEH+REHRER -

BECEMARADZ ER - KFRITEEE
RARRERT B R R RITE B TR AR E T &
(EBIZERMBITEEE D BFEQ
T

RIeREEERAA |

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Adjusted as a result of the Rights Issue of the Company
completed in April 2014. The key summary of related adjustments
had been announced by the Company on 29 April 2014.

) Share options were granted to certain eligible employees, who
are directors, senior executives or officers of major operating
subsidiaries of the Company and are working under employment
contracts that are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the
purpose of the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

3 All the existing share options granted under the Old DSFH Option
Scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches
between the first and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

4) Details of the computation of the value of options are shown in
Note 50 to the financial statements.

i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
a majority owned subsidiary of the Company

The respective shareholders of the Company and Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), approved the adoption of a
new share option scheme of DSBG (the “New DSBG Option
Scheme”) and, at the same time, the termination of the share
option scheme adopted by DSBG on 12 June 2004 (the “Old
DSBG Option Scheme”) at the respective annual general
meeting held on 27 May 2014. No further options can be offered
under the Old DSBG Option Scheme after its termination but the
provisions of the Old DSBG Option Scheme remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to exercise of all
options granted prior to the termination of the Old DSBG Option
Scheme but not yet exercised at the time of termination.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, a
summary of the Old DSBG Option Scheme and the New DSBG
Option Scheme (collectively the “DSBG Schemes”) is disclosed
as follows:



Z) EXRRTRARMAEBEERERREES
(40

i) AREEENEREE - AIRTTE
BIRRFZ B EETE (8)

(1) ZERHRITEEAENER

FZERFMITEBE SN E NER
i ﬁ@&%m=E%HﬁAEM%
RIRITEBEE T R BB ER M
® o

@ EEAFRTEBHBHSEA

FZERBITEEFE S ER2EA
BRERFRTEBEIMBRARZES
REEEERLZES -

®) %%K%ﬁﬁ%lﬁ%¢7?%ﬁm
BB EERAEZERES A
ME?H&@@@%E”T-

BEE ARTIRTT SR B E R AR Bl L
& I AR ] SRR AT AR SRR FT SR 1T
BERBE S-SR -

MAZEGREEZAH - AFBRTE
EE R AE ST & AT b5t EI T /)
FEIT 2RO EE £70,098,591 % -
IERFIRITEED B TR BE5EY -

@) ZRERMBTREFETERLSEA
AR LR

TAEERATHER TRBEATR
BzBROETER  MERTHESH
TRBETZBRNBEERTEBER
Pt B4R E AFHRE 1208 A Bk B8
SETROHN1%  AT2ERTR
Pt - EfE—TETRR LR ZR
PrEZRB TR EARIRITRER &2
R R R AEHERT 2 LT AR RIDATAY
D

i
Ht
T8>
—|>_;IKU|+
DfF
It

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

ii) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

(1)  Purpose of the DSBG Schemes:

The purpose of the DSBG Schemes is to attract, motivate
and retain high quality executives to contribute to the
business and growth of DSBG group of companies.

(2) Participants of the DSBG Schemes:

Eligible participants of the DSBG Schemes included
directors and employees holding supervisory positions in
DSBG and its subsidiaries.

(3)  Total number of shares available for issue under the DSBG
Schemes and percentage of total number of issued shares
as at the date of this Report of the Directors:

Following the termination of the Old DSBG Option
Scheme, no further share options can be granted under
the Old DSBG Option Scheme.

The number of shares available for issue under the
New DSBG Option Scheme and any other schemes is
70,098,591 shares, representing 5% of the total number of
issued shares of DSBG as at the date of this Report of the
Directors.

(4)  Maximum entitlement of each participant under the DSBG
Schemes:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the DSBG Schemes and the
Listing Rules as amended from time to time.
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b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

ii)

()

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of DSBG,
and is specified when related options are granted. Shares
under the options must be taken up within 10 years from
the date of grant. All the existing share options under
the Old DSBG Option Scheme shall be exercisable upon
vesting in 5 equal tranches between the first and fifth
anniversaries from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSBG, and is specified when related options are
granted. None of the existing share options under the Old
DSBG Option Scheme shall be exercisable within 1 year
from the date of grant.

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 21 days upon offer of granting of
options or the date on which the conditions (if any) for the
offer are satisfied.
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Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

ii)

@)

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of DSBG on the basis no less exacting than the
requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules
and is determined as no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK on
the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing prices of
DSBG'’s shares traded on the SEHK for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. For options
granted before the commencement of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3 March 2014, the nominal
value of the shares of HK$1 each in the capital of DSBG
had been taken into account in determining the exercise
price per option share. (The Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) adopts a mandatory system of no nominal value for
all Hong Kong incorporated companies having a share
capital and abolishes the concept of nominal value for
all shares. With effect from 3 March 2014, the shares of
DSBG have no nominal value.)

Remaining life of the DSBG Schemes:

The Old DSBG Option Scheme was terminated on 27 May
2014 and all outstanding share options granted under the
Old DSBG Option Scheme and yet to be exercised shall
remain valid. The New DSBG Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
from 27 May 2014 and expiring at the close of 26 May
2024.
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Z) EXRRTAIREBLIBREARERZS b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
(%) Company and its associated corporation (Continued)
i) ARE]E BB - AFTIRTTE i)  Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
BR 272 SRR E) (&) a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)
RFBITEEFRRESEERMBRE No share options had been granted under the New DSBG
2015412 A31H - WEIAZREERIE KX Option Scheme since the date of adoption to 31 December
FRTEEIRREBIRL - 2015.
KB EE R B @Pﬁ%“ﬂ OB Cert‘j:li.n I?irectors of the Cor.npany and its major operati'ng
THBMEXHEEARRRRNEN IS ol e e 00 0556 orin
gi%ifﬁiﬁfﬁ;ﬁ%ﬁiiWZJHIXE?Z the statu§ as at, .31 December 2015 of DSBG’s outstanding
share options which have been granted under the Old DSBG
HERIE 2016512 ABT RIEFRAZE Option Scheme are as follows:
NELEHRZFBWOT -
ARBREZ AHRAKEROHE
Number of DSBG's shares in the options
Ro015% N155R  RAO15F
1B1B 0158  015%h  EE/AM 128318
20l Rit T Cancelled/ BE frEEn i)
Held at Granted Exercised lapsed Held at Exercise RiA Exercise
ERA Grantee 1172015"  during 2015 during 2015  during 2015 31/12/2015 price™  Grant date period
(81) (B/R/%) (B/R/%)
(HKS) (D/MAY) (DIMAY)
Bz Directors
Tl Gary Pak-Ling Wang 2,700,218 - - - 2700218 891 121202011 12112/2012-
1211212017
934,691 - - - 934,691 796 21/12/2012  21/12/2013-
21/12/2018
Bge Nicholas John Mayhew 2,492,510 - - - 2492510 891 121122011 1212/2012 -
1211212017
830,836 - - - 830,836 796 211122012 2112/2013-
21/12/2018
EftEBAEY  Aggregate of other employees® 2,907,927 - - - 2907927 891 12/42/2011 1211202012 -
1211212017
1,973,236 - (207,710)® - 1765526 796 211122012 21142/2013-
21/12/2018
311,564 - (62,313 @ - 249,251 11.68  26/03/2014  26/03/2015-
26/03/2020
A erEEFRAR |
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Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

ii) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Adjusted as a result of the Rights Issue of DSBG completed in
May 2014. The key summary of related adjustments had been
announced by DSBG on 8 May 2014.

) Share options were granted to certain eligible employees, who
are directors, senior executives or officers of major operating
subsidiaries of DSBG and are working under employment
contracts that are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the
purpose of the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

(3) The weighted average closing price of the shares of DSBG
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised
during the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$15.745.

(4) All the existing share options granted under the Old DSBG Option
Scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches
between the first and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

(5) Details of the computation of the value of options are shown in
Note 50 to the financial statements.
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All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
December 2015, none of the Directors or Chief Executive of the
Company held any short positions as defined under the SFO which
are required to be recorded in the register of directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company and their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the SEHK pursuant to the Securities Model Code.

Save for the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed
above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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As of 31 December 2015, the following are the persons, other than
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company whose interests are
disclosed above, who had interests or short positions in the shares
sz and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of

P~
oo =

shareholders’ interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or otherwise known to the

Company.
HERT
RpEHZ
EEERLO
Percentage of
interests in
FERMEE the total
BRE 54 Number of number of
Shareholder Capacity shares held issued shares®
ITBEE FAHEBEEATREER
MR e A
Christine Yen Wong Deemed interests by virtue of 137,285,682 40.97*
her spouse having a notifiable interest
ELEBREFEARAA FEEAREEER
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee and corporate interests 126,199,187@ 37.66*
EEAREEER
DSI Limited Trustee and corporate interests 61,205,583@ 18.27*
EEAREEER
DSI Group Limited Trustee and corporate interests 45,068,894 13.45*
BEEAREEER
DSl Holding Limited Trustee and corporate interests 19,914,710© 5.94*
ZZURJ & EE EERER
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. Corporate interests 50,870,777 15.18
=ZRRUFJIRTT EnfEn
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.  Beneficial interests 50,870,777 15.18
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc REAKE
REEPEE 2 HERE
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc Investment manager 18,755,131 5.60
and its associates under mandates
RERKE
Aberdeen Asset Management Investment manager 18,048,800 5.39

Asia Limited
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Notes:

(©)

Each of the interests of HSBC International Trustee Limited, DSI Limited,
DSI Group Limited and DSI Holding Limited forms part of the shares
held by David Shou-Yeh Wong in the Company as disclosed under the
heading “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive”. The interests of
Christine Yen Wong represent the whole of such shares. Therefore,
these shareholdings should not be aggregated, and rather form part or
whole of the same share interests of David Shou-Yeh Wong held in the
Company.

Such shares represent deemed interests of Christine Yen Wong by virtue
of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a substantial shareholder
of the Company having a notifiable interest in the relevant share capital
of the Company (under the interpretation of section 316(1) of the SFO).
These interests comprise the same shares held by David Shou-Yeh
Wong under the heading “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive”
above.

Out of these shares, 126,189,187 shares are mainly comprised of the
interests indirectly held by HSBC International Trustee Limited in trust for
a discretionary trust established for the benefit of David Shou-Yeh Wong
and his family members.

Such shares are mainly comprised of the interests indirectly held by
DSI Limited, DSI Group Limited and DSI Holding Limited in trust for a
discretionary trust established for the benefit of David Shou-Yeh Wong
and his family members.

Percentage of interests held by each named shareholder was calculated
with reference to the total number of issued shares of the Company as
at 31 December 2015.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31

December 2015, no short positions were recorded in the register of

shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions maintained by

the Company.
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Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
and officer shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted
by the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Group.

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2015,
calculated under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), amounted to HK$1,173,033,000 (2014:
HK$1,245,271,000).

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015 have been set out in Note 49 to the financial

statements.
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The published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last 5 years are included in the section of the annual report under
“Financial Summary”.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group derived less
than 30% of interest income and other operating income from its 5
largest customers.

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in information
required to be disclosed by the Directors since the publication of the
2015 Interim Report of the Company are set out below:

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

- Appointed as a Member of Supervisory Committee of Tracker
Fund of Hong Kong with effect from 1 October 2015

- Appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director and a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of Link Real Estate Investment Trust with effect from
1 April 2016

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

The accompanying financial statements comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the
preceding 3 years.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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REZE2015F 12 A31 HIEFEMNEZE 2016 F 3 The names of the directors and alternate director who have served on
A23H(BIARRIZAFEEEEMREEZAH) -
B HEARRARZWBARESENESLY

EEEFZHEWT

the boards of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2015 and up to 23 March 2016, being the date of the
Report of the Directors of Company for the year, are set out below:
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(IKEXHLCRFHES)

Eric Edmund BARNETT

(in alphabetical order)

Eric Edmund BARNETT

R 35 71 CHAN Seng-Lee

ek == M CHAN Sou-Chao (Kenneth CHAN)
b= CHIK Yiu-Kai (Steven CHIK)*

HRiEE CHIU Yuk-Fai Alick

Bk CHOW Wing-Kay (Eleonore CHOW)*
L Lon DOUNN

Michael Gordon FRITH
Christopher George GARROD (¥ /7 &%)
FHESR

TL R KONG Yiu-Fai (Eddie KONG)

2ipK LAU Shing-Tat Eddie

FEHTIE LAW See-Chan Embrose

REE LEUNG Kwan-Yuen Andrew

FEE LI Hau-Tak (Gary LI)

R * LI Koon-Sing (Patrick LI)*

BiEX LO Tat-Man (Diamond LO)

SRR MA Wai-Kin Thomas*

LR Nicholas John MAYHEW

RIRH NG Yuen-Tin

Richard Alexander OLLIVER Richard Alexander OLLIVER

BRI POON Clement

EEE POON Kwok-Fai

EESR POON Wing-Fai Jimmy

Andrew Charles SALTON Andrew Charles SALTON

sER SZE Tsai-To Robert

M TO King-Yan Adam

BEx TSANG Yuk-Fong Elly

FirZ WANG Pak-Ling Gary

=E M WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)

TEE WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe

S 3 WONG Shou-Yeh David

F 16 B WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

FE4 WONG Wai-Nar Doris

WOOCO NOMINEES LIMITED* WOOCO NOMINEES LIMITED*

=S YAU Ho-Wing Vincent

RIEE YU Yuk-Wing Kenneth

RizE YUEN Tat-To (Henry YUEN)

RkE* ZHANG Fu*

* DERHE THBETARREEHB AR EER * Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant subsidiary(ies)
7% e of the Company.
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Michael Gordon FRITH
Christopher George GARROQOD (alternate director)
Shoji HIRAI



HZE2015F12 A31 HILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ire Wash

BT
Note 2015 2014
FILEWA Interest income 5,357,305 5,223,202
FEXH Interest expense (1,704,012)  (1,930,250)
FBREWA Net interest income 7 3,653,293 3,292,952
BRI5Z& KB WA Fee and commission income 1,027,774 971,913
REERASSH Fee and commission expense (224,325) (226,318)
FREERASKA Net fee and commission income 8 803,449 745,595
FEBERA Net trading income 9 31,710 711,098
FRE REAMA Net insurance premium and other income 10 2,029,310 2,238,790
Hip& s A Other operating income 11 74,981 70,581
EEKRA Operating income 6,592,743 7,059,016
RIERERS HFHE Net insurance claims and expenses 12 (1,306,042)  (2,436,101)
HIBRRBRREZEBRA Total operating income net of insurance claims 5,286,701 4,622,915
BEY H Operating expenses 13 (2,534,297)  (2,389,693)
HBRIALE R 5 51 2 & B A Operating profit before impairment losses 2,752,404 2,233,222
EXREREREMEERE Loan impairment losses and other
credit provisions 16 (496,352) (472,962)
HIRETREREEEE 2 W& Operating profit before gains and losses
kBB 2 EERF on certain investments and fixed assets 2,256,052 1,760,260
HEHMEEEE 2 FEE Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (1,427) (3,198)
REMELNTEARZZF (BB),/ M Net (loss)/gain on fair value adjustment of
investment properties (74,863) 93,239
HERFIRE 2 F W= Net gain on disposal of investments in securities 17 43,563 19,051
RELEHE R FIRE CEE Loss on deemed disposal of investment
in an associate 19 (47,617) -
BaMBEAHRE 2R EBERE Impairment losses charged on investment
in equity securities (10,970) -
il e Share of results of an associate 665,942 602,299
FEMLHRIETI B 2 XA Share of results of jointly controlled entities 21,945 20,657
BRBLATEF Profit before taxation 2,852,625 2,492,308
Hi1E Taxation 18 (344,815) (245,786)
FERF Profit for the year 2,507,810 2,246,522
DECEAT Attributable to:
R PEIRERR R Non-controlling interests 560,343 519,635
RAERE Shareholders of the Company 1,947,467 1,726,887
FEER Profit for the year 2,507,810 2,246,522
BRE Dividends
Bk HRE Interim dividend paid 20 107,224 100,523
BRAHREBIRARLBABRS Proposed final dividend/final dividend paid 20 335,075 318,321
442,299 418,844
BREF Earnings per share
LN Basic 21 HK$5.81 HK$5.29
] Diluted 21 HK$5.81 HK$5.28
FII1HE2F3068 2T iR ARz 7 — The notes on pages 111 to 306 are an integral part of these

ok

B o

consolidated financial statements.
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HZE2015F12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015
(LABETThHIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2015 2014
FEEF Profit for the year 2,507,810 2,246,522
FEHMZEKE Other comprehensive income for the year
HEg T gsMnREmRa ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to
WasfRAIEE - the consolidated income statement:
B Premises
REEMDBTERREMSE Reserves arising from reclassification of premises
2 to investment properties 1,393 36,533
AEgEN I EE Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated
fFEWERIER ¢ income statement:
BHRE Investments in securities
RN A & F S Fair value gains on available-for-sale securities
AEEREE recognised in equity 73,114 297,824
AFE W) BEER R Fair value (gain)/loss realised and transferred to
B E W income statement upon:
—HENHNEES — Disposal of available-for-sale securities (43,563) (23,707)
— N ERARR AL S8R+ - Disposal of investments in securities included in the
BENMABEREEER loans and receivables category which were
K EW IR R 2 BHIRE previously reclassified from the
available-for-sale category - 3,756
— AN EESFZRE - Impairment of available-for-sale securities 10,970 -
REBAFBEEE 2 ETERIE Deferred income tax on movements in investment
revaluation reserve 4,689 (85,285)
45,210 242,588
BREBIMEM B RROELEZR Exchange differences arising on translation of the
financial statements of foreign entities (209,766) (108,599)
MRBEE 2 FEAMEE Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year,

(E18) W= net of tax (163,163) 170,522
HRBERZEEZAREAE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,344,647 2,417,044
DEAT : Attributable to:

R PEHIERR R Non-controlling interests 519,690 554,257

AN/NGT ) 3] Shareholders of the Company 1,824,957 1,862,787
HRBEE2FEZERGEEE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,344,647 2,417,044
FI1EEFI068 M I ALRAE ISRz 2 — The notes on pages 111 to 306 are an integral part of these consolidated
&5 o financial statements.
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2015412 A31H
(PABEETITALTR)

Are IR R

As at 31 December 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BsE
Note 2015 2014
BE ASSETS
& R IRITH AR Cash and balances with banks 22 17,631,716 15,063,006
fERIT1 2128 A AR HIFR Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 7,714,421 5,626,019
HIEEBERZNES Trading securities 23 8,766,304 7,082,517
EENAFEFZBESE Financial assets designated at fair value
AR EREE through profit or loss 23 11,000,786 9,627,563
PTESRTAE Derivative financial instruments 24 1,100,710 831,566
ZHEERNMEMER Advances and other accounts 25 120,776,773 118,593,929
AN ERES Available-for-sale securities 26 24,533,819 23,724,503
R B S Held-to-maturity securities 27 10,698,859 11,047,201
IR NAIRE Investment in an associate 29 4,099,217 3,746,918
HEEG T BN E Investments in jointly controlled entities 30 71,119 65,694
EES Goodwill 32 950,992 950,992
B EAE Intangible assets 32 82,480 84,519
TEREMEEEE Premises and other fixed assets 33 2,222,465 2,074,058
WAV Investment properties 34 886,664 786,703
BB IR & B Current income tax assets 5,784 3,995
FREFRTEE = Deferred income tax assets 43 83,473 80,591
RHISBREB 2B RIREEE Value of in-force long-term life
assurance business BO) 2,166,695 2,018,068
EESG Total assets 212,792,277 201,407,842
8f& LIABILITIES
RITIFR Deposits from banks 1,550,911 1,572,467
PTEemMTA Derivative financial instruments 24 1,500,591 1,217,118
HIEEERZMNEE Trading liabilities 37 6,270,630 5,597,614
BEFPEFER Deposits from customers 38 149,264,197 140,916,635
BEITHIF R Certificates of deposit issued 39 6,231,837 6,109,777
‘BB Subordinated notes 40 5,279,340 5,391,357
Bk E RIER Other accounts and accruals 41 5,785,899 5,971,301
BNEAfiIE B & Current income tax liabilities 208,046 213,984
FERIR A& Deferred income tax liabilities 43 95,950 94,398
HRRBREOREFBEAZARE Liabilities to policyholders under
long-term insurance contracts 42 10,695,944 10,205,811
SE& Total liabilities 186,883,345 177,290,462
= EQUITY
R PE IR R Non-controlling interests 5,463,846 5,071,933
AN TRRELERE Equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders
A&7 Share capital 45 4,248,559 4,248,559
Hhf#E (BERE&F) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 46 16,196,527 14,796,888
BRES Shareholders’ funds 20,445,086 19,045,447
EREE Total equity 25,908,932 24,117,380
EnkBEE Total equity and liabilities 212,792,277 201,407,842

EFEN 201643 A 23 Bt/ RIBELE M -

EFE HEH
EF EF R

F111 B EE306 B 2T ARG E

#5 -

MRz —

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
March 2016.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Director

Hon-Hing Wong
Managing Director

The notes on pages 111 to 306 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |

107



108

HZE2015F12 A31 HILFE
(APS¥E T 7ThL5R)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FAARRESES
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Company
R
e
Ba  HEftEE  REEA Non-  BHAR

Share Other Retained  controlling Total

capital reserves earnings interests equity

2015%1 A1 R&& Balance at 1 January 2015 4,248,559 1,159,879 13,637,009 5,071,933 24,117,380

FEREYREE Total comprehensive income for the year - (122,510) 1,947,467 519,690 2,344,647

—ERE AR 2R Capital contribution by non-controlling interests

BRREBABRK of a subsidiary - - - 605 605
BRREZH TR -RENEAR Additional net assets in a subsidiary acquired via

BAENFEE share option arrangement - (1,431) = 3,207 1,776

DA S AR A fE B RS SN 2 B4E  Provision for equity-settled share-based compensation - 1,658 - 303 1,961

—FENBARREFEHERERERE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary - - - (131,892  (131,892)

014 ERHRE 2014 final dividend - - (318,321) - (318,321)

2015 EHERE 2015 interim dividend - - (107,224) - (107,224)

2015F 128 31 BEth Balance at 31 December 2015 4,248,559 1,037,596 15,158,931 5,463,846 25,908,932

BZ12831 BLEE

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014

BENMRABFIA BRRERS Proposed final dividend included in retained earnings 335,075 318,321

RFeREEERAA |




HZE2015F12 A31 BIEFE (&)

(CABEE T ThFIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ARARREL R

Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

e\ /gy

=) o
SrEEmE

ED)P

REIE
Rx
e RiFEE Eftrite REET Non- R
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves eamings interests equity
2014511048 Balance at 1 January 2014 593,053 2,764,288 1,028,491 12,315,563 4,332,731 21,034,126
R201453A3H Transition to no-par regime
BEZEZEEMNE on 3 March 2014 2,764,288 (2,764,289) - - - =
FERANGER Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 135,900 1,726,887 554,257 2,417,044
BTHRARN Issue of shares under rights issue
(EMBETROER) (net of share issue expenses) 891,218 - - - - 891,218
—RHBARZREE Capital contribution by non-controlling
RREARA interests of a subsidiary - - - - 305,542 305,542
TfeR—TAME A 7l g Exercise of share options in a subsidiary - - (110) - 110 -
BRRERH TR -ARBLR Additional net assets in a subsidiary
BABNFEE acquired via share option arrangement - - (761) - 1,748 987
R—HRBA RSN Deficit arising upon additional investment
RESBmER in a subsidiary - - (6,552) - (2,232) (8,784)
DA FDARR 1A Provision for equity-settled share-based
fEBEREM BB compensation - - 2,911 - 843 3,754
—EMBARNL SR ERERERS  Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary - - - - (121,066) (121,066)
RS S 2013 final dividend - - - (304,918) - (304,918)
2014 ERERE 2014 interim dividend - - - (100,523) - (100,523)
2014512 431 AR Balance at 31 December 2014 4,248,559 - 1159879 13637009 507193 24117380

FI1EEFE3068 2 e I AL EMERER 2 —

consolidated financial statements.
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HZE2015F12 A31 HILFE
(APS¥E T 7ThL5R)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L
Note 2015 2014
RETFH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
L EERAR TR Net cash from operating activities 47(a) 2,412,661 5,495,844
RETBHZHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BETE  REVER Purchase of premises, investment
HibEE & E properties and other fixed assets (506,262) (158,873)
HETE  "HEMEREM Proceeds from disposal of premises,
E & ESRIA investment properties and other
fixed assets 37 193
WEEEFTRAIR & F 5 Net cash used in investing activities (506,225) (158,680)
RETECRESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BATE R Issue of ordinary shares
(BEHMRETRNHER) (net of share issue expenses) - 891,218
BITIREER Issue of subordinated notes = 1,731,250
&l (E 758 5 Debt securities redeemed - (775,285)
—RE AR 2 R H Capital contribution by non-controlling
A% BRI ARG AR interests of a subsidiary 605 305,542
SIBEITRERR Interest paid on subordinated notes and
REREZZ N E debt securities issued (276,005) (244,005)
— 3Bt 8 & Rl i) EDR A% il #EAR 3R Dividends paid to non-controlling
IREERR B interests of a subsidiary (131,892) (121,066)
k3 E AR S Dividends paid on ordinary shares (425,545) (405,441)
BMEES (TR, RABEESFE Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (832,837) 1,382,213
ReRERRELERIEMFELRE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,073,599 6,719,377
FRERERHREEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 16,339,878 9,704,933
[ERE S 7 & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (127,630) (84,432)
FRESRERESIER Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 47(b) 17,285,847 16,339,878

FINMEEEI6AZMFIAGA

By e

RFeREEERAA |

B HmRZ—

consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 111 to 306 are an integral part of these



(LAEREFThz5I7R)

AFEMEEBFRAR(ARE ) BEHE QA
(R [REE ) EERE  RPIRPBRIEHRT -
R~ S B R EACRRERE

RRB T —RAEEBZMAOREZER AR i
WA RE BB ELITE 1085k KF & BH L 36
o

BB AERN 0 IR A B RERE S E T Tz
HI/R > WER2016F3 A23 HEE T i %
ﬁ °

AT RREAMBEREARAN ERGEBR
BB AT - EBEM B FERAE B -

2.1 mEE%E

AEEZGEMHERRERELSHMAE(E
BEFMAE])) ARBZMBERTENBRE
RA(TEEHBREER] - REEMBERE
RAHBERBHHEREED  BEGFHER(EES
SAEADAREREZSE)  EEEBRAZ
ST RAIRES R AHEGIMRS

A MBRRTDIBIBEELKATRERE - A
RIREYME  AIREEZEREE  KIEEER
BEREERERABNEENAAFHENER
HEHFTARGNEREERERAR(BREN
ATR) ZE[MEHAE - WIRAFEIE -

P E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) provide banking, insurance,
financial and other related services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the
People’s Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 23 March 2016.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities held for trading, and financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) designated at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.
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AR5 RRP oE

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

2.1 wEE%Em)

RENABBYBRELEN M BHRRACHE
FTEEZEHE NEAEEECEANEEE
RS EL A E - RABZBREFBZEME
AR EZSME M BRRENEATE - &
EEREARNRREEBNRE RAEE 2%
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H S EE R EE - RESAMBRRTE
BAZBREME » TR 4 HIREE -

(FF) Fr&ERAIFH(6228)

BB A RHEDI(622F ) ([FT A RHEDI )5
9D HRE REZIZREBAMBFERE
R GEMBHRERAETERZZII R
RERMELER -

(Z) ZEBEFRRZF RAEEETER

AR AREBR201591 1 Bk A% A
2R E R R 2 ERERT

BBMBHRE LN 2010F £ 2012 F A
BN FEEER BB BREELE85R
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N
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Sh - T ZEFTHASBA BEAZE -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have
a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the
assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying
assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial
statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@ New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (“NCO”) come
into operation during the financial year, as a result, there are
changes to presentation and disclosures of certain information
in the consolidated financial statements.

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning on or
after 1 January 2015:

Amendments from annual improvements to HKFRSs - 2010-
2012 Cycle, on HKFRS 8, “Operating segments”, HKAS 16,
“Property, plant and equipment” and HKAS 38, “Intangible
assets” and HKAS 24, “Related party disclosures”.

Amendments from annual improvements to HKFRSs - 2011-
2013 Cycle, on HKFRS 3, “Business combinations”, HKFRS 13,
“Fair value measurement” and HKAS 40, “Investment property”.

The adoption of the improvements made in the 2010-2012 Cycle
has required additional disclosures in the segment note. Other
than that, the remaining amendments are not material to the
Group.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and

interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after

1 January 2015, and have not been early adopted in preparing

these consolidated financial statements. None of these is

expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated

financial statements of the Group, except for the following

standards:

(i)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities. The complete version
of HKFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces the
guidance in HKAS 39 that relates to the classification
and measurement of financial instruments. HKFRS 9
retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model
and establishes three primary measurement categories
for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income and fair value through
profit or loss. The basis of classification depends on the
entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in
equity instruments are required to be measured at fair
value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option
at inception to present changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income not recycling. There is now a new
expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred
loss impairment model used in HKAS 39. For financial
liabilities there were no changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition of changes
in own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.
HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness
by replacing the bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It
requires an economic relationship between the hedged
item and hedging instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to
be the same as the one management actually use for risk
management purposes.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

Contemporaneous documentation is still required but is
different to that currently prepared under HKAS 39. The
Group has already commenced the assessment of the
full impact and so far has not decided to early adopt the
standard, which shall be effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers”
deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles
for reporting useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an
entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised
when a customer obtains control of a good or service
and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain
the benefits from the good or service. The standard
replaces HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction
contracts” and related interpretations. HKFRS 15 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 and earlier application is permitted. The
Group is assessing the impact of HKFRS 15.



P E

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.2 FREMBEHE 2.2 Consolidation

BEMBRREERNRAREMERBRATEZE The consolidated financial statements include the financial

12 431 BlL 2 Bk - statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December.

(FF) B@gxa]

MEARRAKE G2 B (BREEE
HER) AREAZEHZERREELAE
EE B2 HZ B S oA A &
ME®R BARNEEHZRBERBZIENY
EZE0® - AENEBRTASEER
EHB L W’F? FTE - RIS
Iz BT BERAFE

AEBARBEE/AREZEEA G
SRR - W —RMBRRMNEHZRER
EEBEE AEZABRRAKERETZ
a2 NFE - ITHRERREARA
REZPF2EELBBEZAFE - WER
BMzBERRNELRXH EXBAER
TEREAKREATRRABRERAEZAE
RERABE  AREBE RREQATEE
AT E - AREREBEZBRBELER
RN ERLEF R REBEREBEEE
BB Z L DI R 1% R & 2 R 2l
PR R b AR o

PR 2 RAB - (008 28 il A R AR A 15
BEESARERBE SN REBEER
Z N ER AN 5R B R A AT AR R AR A
FEEZAVE BIRREE - nEE
RE - R IFERE S MR EER
BT 7 40 R B (B AR W R P U B
MEBARFEENATE EEZBERER
EERERERARER -

(@)  Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@)  Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the Company. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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(AT TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.2 FEMBEHER @) 2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
() BERA (c) Associates
BENRREARERHEEEBEEATE Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
BRI HIN AT « BENTISE AR influence but not control. Investments in associates are
@Aﬁ ERE  RUIERAARR - AEEZ accounted for using the equity method of accounting and

BN RIS A B 5 R R 2 B E (1K are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an

FRIREREERE) associate includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment

loss) identified on acquisition.

7N £ E FE(H B A B) I B 18 B R B Bk B iE The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
HEWHEDER  KEBRBMEEWRER or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
HENEICEAEENRBERER - IKEH of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
BEE IR 2 BB B ERE - B IE reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
REBEABE ARIREREERESSE adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
Fo BRIBAREEELE SR RINEEE the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
BB EBREBEARNER (BFEE its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
IR R B - AEENEEREEIN receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
BES1E o it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.
AEEgRNSREMBEHE A ARREAD The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
BB EE E%?ETEE@%’T o WIEBNBE any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
AREBIZBL AT OWSERHIEmME impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
2 ERERE /DME BB [EGEE AR impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
LR | RN YRR o of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the

amount adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the
income statement.

ANEFBBEAEBENRIBRL S 2SR IE Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
RAEBEEEE QRSN ET MR associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
He RIZRGRHEBREEREZE in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
B REIREEIN T AR - B2 Ra 2 the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
SHBREELEZBENBREREE asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
AN BREE— B o changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

RSN R 2 Be i a REEER R Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
R - income statement.

ERRRZHBEARRRA » BERAIKE In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments
IR NBR R E B S ER o AR 7] B in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
ENREEN ST EESRE KRR EIKR losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the
ZIRBAHK © Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and
the consolidated statement of financial position includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained
a part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants.
Wealth management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised
rateably over the period the service is provided.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets
2.6.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, except for
subsequent reclassification meeting specified definition of relevant
asset reclassification.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group designates a financial asset upon initial recognition

as designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value
option) if the following criteria are met:
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

2.6.1 Classification (Continued)

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases;

(ii) A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
this is the basis on which information about the assets is
provided internally to the key management personnel such
as the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(iii)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are
recognised in the statement of financial position as “Financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held
for trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-
for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration.
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2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.1 Classification (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity.

2.6.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held-for-trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial
assets are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading
category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that
is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet
the definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading
or available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention and
ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity at the date of reclassification. The Group may also reclassify
financial assets that no longer qualify for recognition as loans and
receivables to available-for-sale if the financial assets become quoted
in active market.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date
are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases
in estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require
adjustment to the effective interest rates prospectively.
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2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.2 Reclassification (Continued)

On reclassification of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through
profit or loss” category, all embedded derivatives are re-assessed
and, if necessary, separately accounted for.

2.6.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set
out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value at inception are included directly in the income statement
and are reported as part of “Net trading income”. Interest
income and expense derived from and incurred on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are included under “Net
interest income” in the income statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For loans and receivables that are subject
to fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements of the
loans and receivables hedged are carried at fair value.
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2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

P E

2.6.3 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value which is the cash given including any transaction
costs. They are measured subsequently at fair value with
gains and losses (except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets classified
as available-for-sale) recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity until the financial assets
are derecognised. Upon derecognition, the gains and losses
previously recognised in equity are reclassified into the income
statement.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
equity is reclassified into the income statement.

Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised in the income statement. Foreign currency gains and
losses on monetary assets classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement
under “Other operating income” when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows have expired.

Interest is included in the income statement and is reported
as “Net interest income”. If a held-to-maturity investment
is determined to be impaired, the impairment is reported as
a deduction from the carrying value of the investment and
recognised in the income statement as impairment charge on
held-to-maturity investments.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.7

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is

objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

o Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or
interest;
° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for

example, high debt-to-equity ratio, low net income as a
percentage of sales);

. Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
° Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

o Downgrading below investment grade level.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes that asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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2.7

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by
being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not currently exist.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.7

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of
losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of the allowances for loan impairment in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.
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2.7

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered in determining whether the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

(c) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment
or individually significant and whose terms have been
renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are
treated as new loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if past due
again is considered to be and disclosed as past due loans.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.8 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial

liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and

recognised initially at fair value and are derecognised when the

obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires. The bases for the

determination of fair value of financial liabilities are set out in Note

3.5(a).

@

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held

for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or

loss at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred

principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It

is carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in

fair value are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through

profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

@i

(ii)

(i)

It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases; or

A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)

(@) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
include the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised under “Net trading
income” in the income statement.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the
statement of financial position, and the difference between
the carrying amount of a liability and the consideration paid is
accounted for as a gain or loss in the income statement.

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The bases for the determination of fair
value of derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 3.5(a). All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such
as the conversion option in a convertible bond where it is not settled
by exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of own equity instrument, are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement unless the Group chooses to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities. Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement under “Net trading income — Net gain/loss arising
from financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are
attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to
profit or loss over the period to maturity and remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the hedged item.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

(b)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement under “Net trading income”.
For derivatives that are managed in conjunction with designated
financial assets or financial liabilities, the gains and losses
arising from changes in their fair value are included under “Net
trading income — Net gain/loss arising from financial instruments

designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.
The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading
liability.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.12 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position
with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case
of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed
and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or
court orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed
to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets
held for resale are included in “Advances and other accounts — Other
assets”.

2.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs
being eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining operating
segment performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury,
Overseas Banking, Insurance Business, and Others.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation
currency and the functional and presentation currency of the
Company and major part of the Group.
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(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within
the corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses
on other comprehensive income items are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within the corresponding
item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as available-for-sale,
a distinction is made between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes
in the carrying amount of the assets. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
income statement, and those related to changes in the carrying
amount, except for impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(i)  income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:
- Premises Over the shorter of 50 years or
remaining period of lease

- Furniture, fittings, equipment  Over the estimated useful lives
and motor vehicles generally between 3 and
10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.18).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the

proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income
statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.16 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating lease and
buildings held under finance lease.

Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International Valuation
Standards Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which the market has
become less active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.16 Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.
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2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised
separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured
reliably. They include core deposits, contracts and customer
relationships intangible assets, and trade names. Intangible assets
are stated at cost less amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated based on estimated useful life
ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing balance method.

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Company’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon
receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the
Company’s share of the total comprehensive income of that entity
concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Company’s statement of financial position
exceeds the Company’s share of the carrying amount of that entity’s
net assets including goodwill in its consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
In such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income
within the corresponding item.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity,
is also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.20 Employee benefits

(@)  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
the fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at
each reporting period with any change in the cost recognised
in the income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When
the options are exercised, the Company will issue new shares
to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount from the
“Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share capital”

account.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

(d)  Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions

are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |

141



142

817

BRI

(CABREFThz5I7R)

222 8

(FF) 2HE

HEANREERRR kB R AERE
REETRE - KEHERN 2T (IR
MEHEAZENES)  REEHENE
R RP S -

RELEHE  HAKBREHEAR - 7
MEBZ BEESEWBHRRRIIBEE
BE ZSEERBERBETEEEZE

REFBFHERFHAFE - HEKA
? Bia T ABEAZERBERABLER
HEHR AR -

(Z2) BEHE

WAKREE A MFERAEZAERR K
O3 FHEEHERREARENEE
BEREEHEMRKREENEZRF
BEERREHRENRZRETRIEEFE
Elt - SRBEENFEABERRE S HE
EH DA ZEBORER A R R R EE S
Ko MERMEXHRABZEERTNE
ERAEA - REREHEMREZRE
MEZERTFEIE

MAEEABMEMELAAR  HEERET
Z FEAFRIE (F0BR R AR AT 2 BB W)
RREMIR - AIIA [REERFEMAR
BIREA - REEEERURR ZBEK
AREESMRBEAKER  NEREES
AR AREE 2 REFEZEE O RE -

RFeREEERAA |

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.22 Leases

(@) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets
leased out are included in fixed assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned
fixed assets. Rental income (net of any incentives given to
lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included as liabilities. The investment properties acquired under
finance leases are carried at their fair value.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding for each accounting period.



(CABREFThz5I7R)

2.23 ZEEK

REB—RUREAREMERSTANTE KK
A EEREMEBERAERFEEE - ANZ
SEENEMEEANBALFREBZEE @ &
NERAREE BRI o

2.24 R

EREEMNESBAER - BITHROEEZH
X RERBRERERER NG - X25R
EHIRA -

BB D 2B EMERER AR A Z 8
BERRAIE -

225 ReRkERRESER

HRRERNERME - RERERREIERDBES

BABEIEARNI PGSR  BERE R

TREMEREEER BEEES  HUaER

BEFEBRGFRERAFERH TS RERRR
BHERE -

P e

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded
from the Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the
Group.

2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.

2.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and
certificates of deposit and investment securities which are readily
convertible to cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import
duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets” and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the

control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.28 Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that contain insurance risk or both
insurance and financial risks. Insurance contracts are those contracts
that transfer significant insurance risk. Such contract may also
transfer financial risk. As a general guideline, the Group defines as
significant insurance risk the possibility of having to pay benefits on
the occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10% or more than
the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

Insurance contracts are accounted for as follows:

(@ Premiums

Premiums for long-term insurance business are recognised
as revenue when they become due. Premiums for general
insurance business are accounted for in the period in which
the risk commences. Unearned premium is provided and is
calculated on a time-apportioned basis as the proportion of
the business underwritten in the accounting year relating to the
period of risk after the end of the reporting period. Reinsurance
premiums are accounted for on the same basis as gross
premiums.

(b) Commission expenses

Commission expenses for securing new contracts are charged
to the income statement on a basis consistent with premium
revenue recognition and are presented in the income statement
under “Net insurance claims and expenses”.

(c) Claims and benefits

Claims for general insurance business consist of paid claims
and movement in provisions for outstanding claims with related
claims handling expenses. For long-term insurance business,
claims and benefits are accounted for on notification of claims
or when benefits become payable. Liabilities to policyholders
under long-term insurance contracts are the amount recognised
for future claims and benefits of life insurance contracts as
estimated by appointed actuary in compliance with regulatory
requirements. Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for on the
same basis as the related claims or benefits.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.28 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(d)  Value of in-force long-term life assurance business

The value of in-force long-term life assurance business is the
present value of expected future earnings to be generated from
in-force business, using appropriate assumptions. Movements
in the value of in-force long-term life assurance business are
reported as “Net insurance premium and other income”.

(e) Liability adequacy test

At each end of the reporting period, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities. In
performing these tests, current best estimates of future cash
flows relating to insurance contracts and claims handling and
administration expenses, as well as investment income from the
assets backing such liabilities, are used.

() Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under
which the Group is compensated for losses on one or more
contracts issued by the Group and that meet the classification
requirement for insurance contracts are classified as

reinsurance contracts held.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers,
as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related
reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts
associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in
accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract.
Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for
reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when

due.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.28 Insurance contracts (Continued)
()  Reinsurance contracts held (Continued)

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on an
annual basis. If there is objective evidence that the reinsurance
asset is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of
the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises
that impairment loss in the income statement. The Group
decides whether an insurance receivable is impaired based on
its age and relevant information on the financial health of the
counter party. If the Group deems an insurance receivable to be
impaired, a full and specific provision will be made against the
balance in question.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking
risk is core to the financial business, and operational risks are an
inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return
and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management
and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the authority delegated
by the Board oversee and guide the management of different risks
which are more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group
Risk Division (“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition,
Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that
also covers the Group’s Risk Appetite Statement. The Risk Strategy
sets out the core values and high level risk management direction
of the Group, taking account of the overall business strategy and
direction. As for the Risk Appetite Statement, it sets out the tolerance
for the assumption of risk by the Group in the pursuit of return and
key corporate objectives and covers the areas including target
returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency and other key
risk measures. The GRD is responsible for the ongoing monitoring
of the compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement and the regular
reporting of the status to the RMCC and the Board.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk, operational risk and insurance risk. Market risk includes currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risks.

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of
assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating
short-term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its
lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds
and other bonds.
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3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments,
including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market
movements in equities and bonds and in currency and interest rate.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can
be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the
use of derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash
amounts required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in
interest rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate
assets or increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of
these financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and
the terms of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates,
hedge period and purpose are determined and documented at the
inception of each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed
at inception on a prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing
basis, based on actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge
relationships that do not meet the effectiveness test requirement
of hedge accounting are discontinued with effect from the date of
ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge.

3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving
major credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”)
and the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the
committees responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio
monitoring of the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These
committees are all chaired by the Chief Executive with certain
Executive Directors and senior business and credit officers as
members. Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and
monitoring requirements are detailed in credit policies.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |

149



150

AR5 RRPoE

(CABBEFThz5I7R)

3.2 FERK@m

AEBUEEAREEZRUNGEERR - F8
MWEARBRECEBRRAREZLE A XL E
BHRBREIEEANBILELE 218 5| R -
BEE -  FEZEghKERRBECHERR
ZHEERRKD - FERBEIREEEER - A&
B BRI EERREEBRAEREER
BOR - R Fr KR E RSB AELKE -

AEBECHTERREBEY T EAEZNIEN
MBERERF - TEHETEERR  ATRE
BRI EEND  REMBEBRRSTH
ALER -

321 FEREEE
() B#R#Z%

AEBENERZZHFRANZF P MR
TREMEREEZERRBRZEER
B SPERZIERER()FEPHR
FEF2EERR  (DEPERZHFZ
RERBRE & (i) mEERERE -

() AEBIZETETE 2 NE TR AR
ERERPZEERE - %5 HER
NEIHE - #BE—RIEESTEE
FEABZHE - BEIKRABZE
BHEBRE Y BITHL - AEEEF
14815 & 13 1848 BN 55 4 /2 3 RATAR
MR 25| AKIFE3.2.3K - EE XK
AEERETHREERITEER
HEREEBEESTREERA KT
TIER o FEBITERFHBEEERNE

BREBEH -

BEABZFZEEREEEREEBRR
FHEEEERRERRZINBTIHE
BIEH Y - BERRITEGER
BEAREEA LERBEBRERIASE

BEMETER -

RFeREEERAA |

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis.
Credits are extended within the parameters set out in the credit
policies and are approved by different levels of management based
upon established guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit
exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and
controlled by management, credit committees and GRD. The Group’s
internal auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits to ensure
compliance with credit policies and procedures, and regulatory
guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval
and review of new products and activities, and credit policies
with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and
impairment policies.

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement
(@) Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and
to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,
the Group focuses on three components, namely (i) credit risk
of the client or counterparty; (ii) current exposures to client or
counterparty; and (iii) the amount of impairment allowances.

(i) The Group assesses the credit quality of corporate clients
using an internal rating tool. It is developed internally
and combines general credit analysis and judgements
of credit officers, and is reviewed, where applicable, by
comparison with externally available data. The Group’s
rating scale has 13 grades which are segmented into
three broad rating classes as shown in Note 3.2.3.
Credit exposures migrate between credit grades and
rating classes as the assessment of credit quality on the
borrower and business environment changes. The rating
tool is kept under review and upgraded as necessary.

Credit quality of personal clients is assessed using
established criteria in credit policies and external
market data from credit bureau. Loans to individuals not
relating to commercial banking business are monitored
on portfolio basis primarily based on their delinquency
status.
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3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)
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(@) Loans and advances (Continued)

(i)  Current exposure represents the actual utilisation of a
credit facility and contractual obligations including both
outstanding exposure and undrawn commitment.

(ili)  The assessment of individual and collective impairment is
detailed in Note 3.2.3.

(b)  Credit-related commitments

Credit related commitments include bank guarantee, documentary
letter of credit, standby letter of credit and undrawn commitment
on legally bound facilities. Their credit risk is similar to loans except
for documentary letters of credit which are usually short term
and self-liquidating and carry a low level of credit risk and capital
charge.

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external credit ratings
from international credit rating agencies such as Standard &
Poor’s are used to assist in credit risk assessment on top of
internal credit analysis. These investments help to diversify
risk exposures and income streams, and to maintain a readily
available source of liquidity to the Group.

(d) Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps
and options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange
and equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for
both trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in
using derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by
acting as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to
risks and to generate revenues through trading activities within
acceptable limits.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

The Group is exposed to counterparty risk arising from its
positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either
“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market
gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled
settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not
receiving the expected cash flow of a derivative transaction
upon the expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.

The notional amounts of financial instruments do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current
fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit market
conditions. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of
derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which
instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities,
can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the
amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding.
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentrations risk with respect to individual borrower or
counterparty group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower
or counterparty group, industry or country are in place and their
exposures are monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are
capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the
overall credit portfolio. Country limits are also set up with reference to
the sovereign credit rating from international credit rating agencies. All
these limits aim to achieve a more balanced portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and
uses established market practices on credit support and collateral
settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties.
Overall credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty,
including valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the
GCC with reference to the financial strength and credit rating of
individual counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral and their
characteristics are established within the credit policies, as are the
respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal documentation
establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and unconditional
recourse to any collateral, security or other credit enhancements
provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not
expose the Group to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are

based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow
position and ability to repay.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

(@) Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral for securing loans and advances. The
principal collateral types are:

o Mortgages over properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory
and accounts receivable;

° Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities; and

o Charges over deposits.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will,
where possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual
loans and advances.

(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured,
with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
instruments or underlying assets.

(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires all derivative contract counterparties to enter
into International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement
or analogous master agreement in order to follow the
standardised market practice of close-out netting arrangement
in the event of default or early termination.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

Impairment allowances are recognised for loans, securities and
derivative exposures which have objective evidence of impairment at
the end of the reporting period for financial reporting purposes (see
Note 2.7).

In determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists under
HKAS 39, the following criteria are assessed:

o Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
. Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to
debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

o Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
° Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above pre-set thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances warrant. Individual impairment
allowances on all individually significant accounts are determined by
an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period
on a case-by-case basis. The assessment normally encompasses
collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and
the anticipated receipts from liquidating collaterals for that individual

account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for:
(i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below
materiality thresholds; and (ii) assets that are individually assessed but
do not have individual impairment.

The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s on-balance
sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated
impairment allowances (both individually and collectively assessed)
covering on- and off-balance sheet amounts for each of the three
broad internal rating classes.
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

2015 2014
WEERE BB
IEERERE IEEREREE
ERREBX Botk ERRBX ERaNsd
B2tE  Impairment B2 Impairment
Loans allowance Loans allowance
and as a % of and as a % of
advances loan balance advances loan balance
% % % %
487 Class
1—1E% 1 - pass 98.6 0.3 99.2 0.2
2—HRlEEE 2 — special mention 0.3 8.9 0.2 10.1
3— IR IAT 3 - sub-standard or below 1.1 29.9 0.6 41.7
100.0 100.0
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As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,
the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal loan
grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the
Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking
into account the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that
are considered uncollectible after all collection options have been
exhausted.
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

or other credit enhancements

2015 2014
FHEEABERNEEZFERBRENT : Credit risk exposures relating to
on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
Re RIERITR AR Cash and balances with banks 17,631,716 15,063,006
ERIT1 =128 A B Placements with banks maturing
EORESN between one and twelve months 7,714,421 5,626,019
FEEERBRNES Trading securities 8,766,304 7,082,517
BEUATFENEBEES ABE Financial assets designated at fair
HEemEE value through profit or loss 11,000,786 9,627,563
THESRT A Derivative financial instruments 1,100,710 831,566
EFEERRBR Loans and advances to customers
EYNE C/ONET S Loans and advances to individuals
—fERAFR - Credit cards 4,706,017 4,057,656
—RIBER - Mortgages 31,273,079 29,109,305
— HAth - Others 9,729,001 8,660,111
EBERRBR Loans and advances to
corporate entities
—GBHER - Term loans 29,150,773 29,903,231
—RIBER - Mortgages 16,016,536 14,074,495
—Eo5mE - Trade finance 7,986,955 7,135,572
— EAth - Others 10,762,963 12,289,676
BH5EE Trade bills 6,469,899 7,384,057
Hh &z Other assets 5,396,317 6,514,742
AfHERS Available-for-sale securities
— B E 5 - Debt securities 23,774,250 23,001,837
B S Held-to-maturity securities 10,698,859 11,047,201
202,178,586 191,408,554
EHREEABERINEE 2EERBENT Credit risk exposures relating to
off-balance sheet items are as follows:
HBEREEMEERB 2N EE Financial guarantees and other credit
related contingent liabilities 1,215,161 1,487,700
EFURIEREMEERRE 2 A&E Loan commitments and other credit
related commitments 69,244,002 69,193,856
70,459,163 70,681,556
12AH31H At 31 December 272,637,749 262,090,110
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure for the Group at 31 December 2015 and 2014, without taking
into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements
attached.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets recognised
on the statement of assets and liabilities is the carrying amount.
For contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the instrument is
called upon. For undrawn facilities, the maximum exposure to credit
risk is the full amount of the undrawn credit facilities granted to

customers.

The Group’s exposures to credit risk, measured using the expected
gross credit exposures that will arise upon a default of the end obligor,
are shown in the disclosures required under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules.

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further
assessed with reference to the following:

° 4% of the loans and advances portfolio are categorised in the
top grade of the internal rating system (2014: 5%);

° Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

. 98% of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be
neither past due nor individually impaired (2014: 98%);

o Loans and advances to customers that are either individually
or collectively impaired constituted 0.75% (2014: 0.35%) of the
total loans and advances to customers; and

. 73% (2014: 70%) of the investments in debt securities and other
bills have at least an A- credit rating.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.25 Loans and advances

B RARPoE

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

2015 2014
e B I A (E R DRUE Neither past due nor
individually impaired 107,020,778 103,540,813
B BB R E R E Past due but not individually
impaired 1,808,227 1,340,946
B RRE Individually impaired 796,319 348,287
1EEE Gross 109,625,324 105,230,046
R REERE Less: allowance for impairment (686,025) (508,813)
Pt Net 108,939,299 104,721,233
2015 2014
IBEE R KRR Impaired loans and advances
— &R IRE (E () — Individually impaired (Note (a)) 796,319 348,287
—FEREGE(2)) - Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 21,815 20,179
818,134 368,466
B Impairment allowances made
—{ERIFHE (£ (A)) - Individually assessed (Note (c)) (327,953) (217,744)
— e (GE(2)) - Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (20,026) (18,578)
(347,979) (236,322)
470,155 132,144
FEEFRRAFE Fair value of collaterals held* 582,726 169,394
BEEREBREEFERK Impaired loans and advances
BRBRE AN as a % of total loans and
advances to customers 0.75% 0.35%
* ERRATEDREERAEGMERERRERS * Fair value of collaterals is determined at the lower of the market value of

B MEPREEETE

collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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HEVEER RN E2HRE B BHMRERBRHIORL
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BEEFTDERGARBEERN 5D °

LA EERREERE Z BB BERN12A31BE
ZEAmEE -

N 2 5% 2 R B ZE 1 48 FH 5 686,025,000 78

7t (2014 % : 508,813,000 7t ) © & 1% 4 & 7
B E B 3 2 % 15327,953,0005% 7T (2014 4F -
217,744,00078 70) R A A ETHHNER

2 e BB 4R A YE 358,072,000 T (2014 4F :

291,069,000/ 7T) ° fIFE25RREEZ AR P ERK
KRR B AR B R 2 BEEEER -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2

3.2.5

Note:

Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances (Continued)

Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be
reliably estimated.

Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date.
The collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a
part of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances is
HK$686,025,000 (2014: HK$508,813,000), comprising an allowance
of HK$327,953,000 (2014: HK$217,744,000) for the individually
impaired loans and the overall collective impairment allowances
of HK$358,072,000 (2014: HK$291,069,000) provided on loans

assessed on a collective basis. Further information on the impairment

allowances maintained for each of loans and advances to customers,

and other accounts is provided in Note 25.



B RARPoE

(AR F o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3.2 FERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BEF KRB &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(FF) A RS EZ B RN (@ Loans and advances neither past due nor individually
impaired
EXRBTAET EEEE AR L E The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that
& BB T — AR BRI 52 3.2.3 5 e R AY 3 K were neither past due nor individually impaired is normally
EHVERE - assessed based on the three broad gradings mentioned in Note
3.2.8.
RRERR
A (ZEEF) i BReR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
ERF E5RE and
Credit  RBEX At BHER  HBER Trade At advancesto
0155125318 At 31 December 2015 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
a5l Class:
1-I% 1 - pass 4,651,874 30,761,014 9,542,438 28917171 15,713,957 7,542,065 9,824,553 106,953,072
-HHIER 2 - special mention - - 10,963 4,000 2,869 34,961 12,589 65,382
3-RBFUT 3 - sub-standard or below = 613 1,660 = 59 = = 2,32
A Total 4,651,874 30,761,627 9,555,061 28921171 15,716,877 7,577,026 9,837,142 107,020,778
RPERR
fIA(ZEZR) % Be%
Indlividual (etail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
iR B5mE and
Credt  %BER i EHER  REER Trade £t advancesto
145127318 At 31 December 2014 cards  Mortgages Others ~ Termloans ~ Mortgages finance Others  customers
@5 Class:
1% 1- pass 4001781 28709991 8495604 29800290 13923338 6,847,063  11,644961 103,423,048
2-RAlEE 2 - special mention - - - 18,500 31,923 37,122 16,689 104,234
3= KBS 3 - sub-standard o below - 297 954 11,184 1,026 = 70 13,531
At Total 4,001,781 28,710,288 8,496,578 29,829,974 13,956,287 6,884,185 11,661,720 103,540,813
TERBHATHR ZIRIBEREEZEEHK Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were
WaZBWERETEAKRBE assessed as not impaired after taking into consideration the

value and recovery of collaterals.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired

RFERR
A (ZERF) ¥ EE e
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
ERF 5% and
Credit  RBEX A FHER BRER Trade £ft  advances to
20155128318 At 31 December 2015 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
LB ERINUT Past due up to 1 month 32,555 422,907 135,387 10,649 170,200 4,775 517,262 1,363,735
AB1ERNLEZIEA Past due more than 1 month
and up to 3 months 11,000 61,160 25,094 5,037 18,779 6,532 90,016 217,618
BEH3ERLZ6MA Past due more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 6,105 - 8,901 7,850 - 1,219 51,238 75,373
a6 AN Past due more than 6 months 4,483 16,995 5 37,168 21,284 240 71,326 151,501
=H Total 54,143 501,062 169,387 60,704 210,263 82,826 729842 1,808,227
FRERRATE" Fair value of collaterals* - 500,661 4,523 59,259 205,800 25,115 653554 1,448,912
RPEHR
EA(ZERR) % B
Indlividual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
ERR ECEL and
Credt  HREEH e BHER  HBER Trade Eft advances to
0145124318 At 31 December 2014 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
LB ERINUT Past due up to 1 month 33,321 355,169 129,107 13,059 101,648 48,782 449440 1,130,526
AB1ERNLEZIEA Past due more than 1 month
and up to 3 months 11,654 24,033 22,858 - 8,237 24,294 52,159 143,235
BE3ERLEZ6MA Past due more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 6,566 10,669 6,309 - - - 12,444 35,988
BE6MANL Past due more than 6 months 4,334 4,761 5 - - 240 21,857 31,197
=H Total 55,875 394,632 158,279 13,059 109,885 73,316 535,900 1,340,946
FRERRZATE" Fair value of collaterals* - 390,398 3,367 3,469 109,623 12,987 463,764 983,608
* ERR 2 AFEDBRBEERGHERER * Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market

RNEEES > MEPREEME -

IR ERE R R BRE - HEERR A
FEDKBEFEBREEZGET AN
o BERHE BB AFENZE
M5 ERFEEEERm R -

RIeREEERAA |

value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the associated
collateral is valued based on valuation techniques for the
particular assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value of such
collateral is updated by reference to market price or indexes of

similar assets.



P E

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BEFRB5 &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
() 1EFREZ ZFEHRBH (c) Loans and advances to customers individually impaired
REBRFTARBFAFERR 2R RA The individually impaired loans and advances to customers of
ZEARBERFPER M B A 796,319,000 the Group before taking into consideration the cash flows from
BT (2014 4F : 348,287,000/ 7T) ° collateral held is HK$796,319,000 (2014: HK$348,287,000).
BERRBEE SRR 2 85 A B The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans
EER 2 EEERR AT ERER S A and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
K collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows.
HEEE-
EA(RERF) % {ERI¥E
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
B5RE allowances -
REE Bt BHER  REEX Trade Eft & individual
20155128318 At 31 December 2015 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
{ERIAEER Individually impaired loans 10,390 4,553 168,898 89,396 327,103 195,979 796,319 327,953
REERR ATE Fair value of collaterals® 10,365 3,001 118,088 79,433 220,273 151,566 582,726
EER-
[EA(ZEZR) % AR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
EUET allowances-
REE A AHER  REER Trade i A3 individual
0145124318 At 31 December 2014 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
BRIRESS Individually impaired loans 4,385 5,254 60,198 8328 178071 0056 38287 217744
REERm ATE" Fair value of collaterals* 4,385 3,391 6,509 7,304 91,168 56,637 169,394
* EIRG 2 AFEDBREEBRTERER * Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market
KREEHEH  MEPREEME value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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3.2 FERK@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

325 B REBS (&)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(T) B3 18 AU Lz EZF RS (d)  Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
)y BWHREEERERE ()  Gross amount of overdue loans
2015 2014
BHIREE AR (EE
BERBEE EuEsE
Gross Gross
amount of {54%  amount of Ih4aEE
overdue Bkt overdue Aokt
loans % of total loans % of total
REBRFER Gross advances to customers
4REE - miHp which have been overdue for:
—3EAALEZE6EA — six months or less but over
three months 229,892 0.21 97,112 0.09
—6fHANLEZ=1F — one year or less but over
six months 260,593 0.24 39,052 0.04
—1FUE - over one year 209,635 0.19 185,726 0.18
700,120 0.64 321,890 0.31

RFeREEERAA |
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(d) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(Continued)

(i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances

s if mE against overdue loans and advances

ERRER Efm BEER-

KEBRHE B il ERm g fB R

Outstanding Current  FrAEDH ReEREDH EBRHEEE  Impairment

amount of market Portion  Portion not Other allowances -

loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by credit risk individual

2015§12831A At 31 December 2015 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation  assessment
AEAEEEPENREN  Overdue loans and

advances to customers 700,120 1,196,607 525,584 174,536 - 213,854

ERREH it HEEE-

AEEHH B ERR ERR AfbfEE {ERIZF i

Outstanding Curent  FrAERMn ReAEDH ERFERZRE  Imparment

amount of market Portion Portion not Other  allowances -

loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by credit risk individual

2014512431 H At 31 December 2014 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation  assessment
BEAEEEPENREN  Overdue loans and

advances to customers 321,890 233,734 160,454 161,436 - 146,562

PR RIR M E R RER TR RIRIBYME -

Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits and

mortgage over properties.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

() Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in

HE) overdue advances shown above
h#8%E 1h#B%E
Botk B
2015 % of total 2014 % of total
TEER Advances to customers 243,284 0.22 171,817 0.16
TRE %S Impairment allowances 15,825 =
326 EZZ 3.2.6 Trade bills

M2015F 12 A31H » @ EAKREESE AN £
ZeEAARCEAAUNLEE1EZESER SR A
1,975,000 77T & 3,070,000 B T MW ERE
SEE (20145 ) o

327 WEIHE#m
REREFE 2 WEHEBHOT -

As at 31 December 2015, there were trade bills overdue for six months
or less but over three months and for one year or less but over six
months of HK$1,975,000 and HK$3,070,000 respectively and no trade
bills were impaired (2014: Nil).

3.2.7 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

2015 2014

BELE Nature of assets
I{ELYES Repossessed properties 140,163 69,680
HAth Others 7,464 315
147,627 69,995

WEHERRRATERAERHE - BUGKIBAMN
WIEB R Z BRAREEET -

& 57 0] # IR 42 {8 /5 63,255,000 7% 7T (2014 7F :
66,228,000,% T ) 2 1£ F B A1 3 19 5 T H )
¥ DAKEIREFEAMEREM 2 AL MAT
E LA B R B o XK @ 3 2 3R P KT 52 36
ZTHMEEI B THHIERLEZEE - Bl
BB AR LR -

RFeREEERAA |

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$63,255,000 (2014: HK$66,228,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the
Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note
36. The relevant loans had been derecognised.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating

B RARPoE

agency designation at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

BIFEE EEN THEERE BEIBRE
REEE ATEGE Available- Held-to-

Trading Designated for-sale maturity CHI
20156128318 At 31 December 2015 assets at fair value investments investments Total
AAA AAA 249 667,007 997,458 - 1,664,714
AA-Z AA+ AA- to AA+ 8,572,098 1,750,700 7,104,515 1,414,155 18,841,468
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 47 3,058,651 10,722,537 2,851,636 16,632,871
BREERA- Rated but lower than A- - 1,382,496 2,756,536 2,232,201 6,371,233
RETR Unrated - 646,913 2,193,204 4,200,867 7,040,984
ait Total 8,572,394 7,505,767 23,774,250 10,698,859 50,551,270

HIEEE TRTE M ML ERE HEIBRE
RtEE ATERE Available- Held-to-

Trading Designated for-sale maturity At
2014F12 4318 At 31 December 2014 assets at fair value investments investments Total
AAA AAA 245 269,232 1,072,104 11,911 1,353,492
AA-Z A+ AA- to AA+ 6,849,743 665,474 6,120,273 1,618,200 15,253,690
A-EA+ A-to A+ 374 3,021,922 9,950,640 3,601,529 16,574,465
B AERA- Rated but lower than A- - 1,376,079 3,939,888 1,780,292 7,096,259
AETH Unrated - 1,334,635 1,918,932 4,035,269 7,288,836
At Total 6,850,362 6,667,342 23,001,837 11,047,201 47,566,742
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

exposure

(@ Geographical sectors

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified

according to the location of the borrowers after taking into

account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies

when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area

which is different from that of the borrower.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers by

geographical area.

20154 2014 &
12A31H 12 A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

REERBTE Gross advances to customers
—&B8 - Hong Kong 88,670,794 83,856,418
— - China 7,374,771 8,278,746
— B8P - Macau 12,007,126 11,435,277
—Efth - Others 1,572,633 1,659,605
109,625,324 105,230,046

RFeREEERAA |




B RARPoE

(AR F o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 EERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

329 WMEECGEREBZTMEEZRMRE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HEE (&) exposure (Continued)

(Z) 7%

EFERBB—BIEREFRENIR

(b)  Industry sectors

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

2015 2014
EEBFERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEs Rt Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEERE - Property development 1,909,605 1,741,185
—EKE - Property investment 16,136,906 15,752,867
— R - Financial concerns 1,118,110 821,938
—BREL&L - Stockbrokers 965,931 133,234
—BEETERE — Wholesale and retail trade 4,144,996 4,497,466
— B - Manufacturing 3,026,032 2,971,483
— B BB - Transport and transport equipment 3,713,584 4,612,041
—FREEE - Recreational activities 262,522 277,832
— BB - Information technology 72,019 22,938
—HAh — Others 5,454,602 5,036,198
36,804,307 35,867,182
A Individuals
—-BE [FEAEEFE] - — Loans for the purchase of flats in
[RAZEERETE Home Ownership Scheme, Private
M IHEEEREE] Sector Participation Scheme and
BFER Tenants Purchase Scheme 869,023 962,720
—BEEMFEDERR - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 21,260,300 19,451,578
—fERARER — Credit card advances 4,465,225 3,838,208
— HAh - Others 9,217,401 8,355,472
35,811,949 32,607,978
EEAFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 72,616,256 68,475,160
BE5mE (7(1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 7,394,880 6,517,342
EBRBAIMERNER (@) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 20,614,188 30,237,544
109,625,324 105,230,046
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(b)  Industry sectors (Continued)

Note:

(1) Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance
of imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong
Kong and merchandising trade classified with reference to the
relevant guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?).

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”)) totalling HK$592,075,000 (31 December
2014: HK$618,230,000) are classified under Loans for use outside
Hong Kong.

) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance

sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
GRD, as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed
within an acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and
sanctioned by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or
the Board as stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of DSB, run their
treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies
and within the overall market risk controls set by DSB. The RMCD of
DSB oversees and controls the market risk arising from the treasury
operations of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking
books.

3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

The following descriptions relate to DSB and BCM.

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and
control market risk are outlined below.

(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of

extreme market movements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(@

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value at risk (Continued)

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of
the market risk factors over an observation period of one
calendar year using a method known as parametric VaR
methodology.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR,
are monitored against limits on a daily basis by RMCD.
Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading activities
during the year was HK$2,368,000 (2014: HK$1,821,000).
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3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(@

(b)

BZ2015F12H31H

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to each risk
category; and scenario stress testing, which includes
applying possible stress events to specific positions or
portfolios. Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading
portfolio is measured to evaluate the expected size of
extreme trading loss beyond a specified confidence level
and over a longer holding period. In addition, reverse-
stress tests are performed as a useful tool to evaluate the
maximum size of market stress that the Group can endure
before hitting the prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board

and its delegated committees regularly.

VaR summary of trading portfolio

HZE2014F12 A31H

11218 A IE121E A

12 months to 31 December 2015 12 months to 31 December 2014

F15 BS BIK 15 = 5 4i

Average High Low Average High Low

e Foreign exchange risk 1,397 2,137 732 1,396 2,166 706
) 2 [ e Interest rate risk 471 1,459 181 1,089 3,201 240
el All risks 2,368 3,563 1,573 1,821 3,460 1,120
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3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated
with positions in debt and equity securities.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities.
In addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including
reverse-stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest
rates on the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions
and credit spreads on the Group’s investment securities are
regularly performed to gauge the market risk inherent in the
Group’s banking book portfolios and manage it against the
established control measures.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and
control the market risk of the banking book.

(b)  Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries
in Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by
the Treasury Division of the Group on a daily basis within
established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.
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3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$14 million higher (2014: HK$10 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$14 million lower (2014: HK$10 million lower).

(i)  Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in its
Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate Risk
Management. From an earnings perspective, interest rate
risk is the risk that the net income arising from future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. From an economic value
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the economic
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on
interest rate risk from both perspectives in the banking
book. As such, the interest margins or net interest income
and the economic value of the capital may increase or
decrease as a result of such changes or in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The Board and the Asset
and Liability Management Committee (“ALCQO”) set limits
on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may
be undertaken, which are monitored regularly by RMCD.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had been 200 basis points higher with other
variables held constant, the profit after tax over the next
12 months and the equity would have been HK$46 million
lower (2014: HK$201 million lower) and HK$748 million
lower (2014: HK$843 million lower) respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
on the same basis for both 2014 and 2015.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk, the Group’s investments in debt securities and
equity securities are also exposed to other price risks.
Consequently, the value of such investments could
change significantly depending on a variety of factors
including liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events
that might affect individual or portfolios of exposures.



B RARPoE
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3.3 WEEE@m 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 JME R R 3.3.3 Currency risk
TRT| AN E B EEE S KA E[ETD| L > The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and
TMEENMAGE  UREBEBBERIMEERZEF liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit
BREEREZSHE - commitments translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by
currency.
BT ES bk AR% it &5t

2015%12 8318 At 31 December 2015 HKD usD MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
Re RERITHER Cash and balances with banks 5,656,320 7,821,632 500,790 2,098,527 1,554,447 17,631,716
EFT1E12HAR Placements with banks maturing

Bl o between one and twelve months 394,106 5,099,488 83,750 1,825,588 311,489 7,714,421
BEEERENES Trading securities 8,633,939 127,714 - 47 4,604 8,766,304
BENATENEAEES Financial assets designated at fair

TABRNSHEAE value through profit or loss 2,381,534 8,456,862 - 52,141 110,249 11,000,786
ITHEERTA Derivative financial instruments 42,882 994,999 = 84 62,745 1,100,710
FEERRA KA Advances and other accounts 85,532,315 17,587,230 6,149,480 10,561,550 946,198 120,776,773
NEHEES Available-for-sale securities 3,634,849 20,203,570 636 456,016 238748 24,533,819
FESES Held-to-maturity securities 566,127 6,709,921 1,994,338 1,132,754 295719 10,698,859
SREEAH Total financial assets 106,842,072 67,001,416 8,728,994 16,126,707 3,524,199 202,223,388
8% Liabilities
FITER Deposits from banks 103,918 1,446,107 152 112 622 1,550,911
ITHEERTA Derivative financial instruments 29,639 1,432,529 = 581 37,842 1,500,591
FIEEERENER Trading liabilities 6,270,630 - - - - 6,270,630
REER Deposits from customers 106,556,887 15,355,211 8,337,518 13,469,958 5,544,623 149,264,197
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 5,945,244 286,593 = = = 6,231,837
BERS Subordinated notes - 4,056,156 - = 1,023,184 5,279,340
Hifk B RFER Other accounts and accruals 3,533,538 1,198,601 485,094 470,932 97,734 5,785,899
SREESH Total financial liabilities 122,439,856 23,775,197 8,822,764 13,941,583 6,904,005 175,883,405
BEERRNERTE Net on-balance sheet positions (15,597,784) 43,226,219 (93,7700 2185124  (3,379,806) 26,339,983

BESERIMEREZETFE" Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 29,612,545 (32,872,942 - (304,212) 3,376,491 (188,118)
FEAE Credit commitments 60,704,881 6,288,507 902,569 2,461,184 102,022 70,459,163
* BEABRINIEZR FHETZANREAE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
ENEZERB 2 IECRITETANERTF amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which
oo are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency
movements.
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3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

B e il ARE it At
2014512 4318 At 31 December 2014 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
Ré RERINER Cash and balances with banks 2,339,219 8,898,780 387,453 2,650,887 786,667 15,063,006
ERT1E12(HAR Placements with banks maturing
B lif:ole o between one and twelve months 184,815 3,259,490 77,670 1,970,543 133,501 5,626,019
FIEEERBNES Trading securities 6,923,639 153,633 - 374 4,871 7,082,517
RENATEAEAEED Financial assets designated at
TABRNSHEAE fair value through profit or loss 1,813,901 7,473,710 - 102,725 237227 9,627,563
fTALRIA Derivative financial instruments 28,878 740,731 = 691 61,266 831,566
ZEEFREERE Advances and other accounts 82,122,900 15,985,975 5812619 13,844,343 828,092 118,593,929
AEHEES Available-for-sale securities 2,142,558 20,585,775 636 673,141 322393 23,724,503
RIS Held-to-maturity securities 1,225,354 7,401,151 920,497 1,139,908 360,201 11,047,201
SREEAT Total financial assets 96,781264 64,499,245 7,198,875 20,382,612 2,734,308 191,596,304
B Liabilities
FIER Deposits from banks 60,580 1,505,241 101 255 6,290 1,572,467
fTASRIA Derivative financial instruments 25,820 1,088,035 - 77 103,186 1,217,118
BIEEERBNEE Trading liabilities 5,597,614 - - - - 5597614
XFPEH Deposits from customers 94434033 15,340,525 7,172,810 18,004,345 5964922 140,916,635
BEANERE Certificates of deposit issued 5,799,744 310,033 = = = 6,109,777
BERK Subordinated notes - 4,090,005 = - 1301352 5,391,357
HilR B RER Other accounts and accruals 3,216,529 1,626,521 512,120 538,458 77,673 5,971,301
CEHEEAR Total financial liabilities 109,134,320 23,960,360 7,685,031 18,543,135 7,453,423 166,776,269
BEARRAHETE Net on-balance sheet positions (12,353,056) 40,538,885 (486,156) 1,839,477 (4,719,115) 24,820,035
BEABRRINGREEFE Off-balance sheet net notional
positions* 25,959,998 (31,542,058) - 350,426 5,169,750 (61,884)
EERE Credit commitments 62,216,083 3,930,806 495194 3,848,740 190,733 70,681,556
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.3 WEEE@m
3.34 FIEEE

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk

Ti‘%$ﬁi§lj$% B AREAR o RABRENERFRR The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate
HeHtEveREERAR  WKEEEE risks. Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and
SEHIR (AR EAX%E) DHE - liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.
3EANL 1)L
38R ZE B5E
HUT Over Over SERE 8
3 months 3 months 1 year Over  Non-interest &t
155128318 At 31 December 2015 or less to1year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
R RIER(TH AR Cash and balances with banks 15,930,216 1,111,202 - - 590,298 17,631,716
ERT1E120ERR Placements with banks maturing
HENER between one and twelve months 4,463,088 3,250,433 - - - 7,714,401
RIEEERRVES Trading securities 2,421,056 6,121,951 29,387 = 193,910 8,766,304
EENATEHEEEEY Financial assets designated at fair
HABRHERAE value through proft or loss 241,008 126,126 1,739,417 5,382,716 3,511,519 11,000,786
@TE%EME Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,100,710 1,100,710
BEEHREMERA Advances and other accounts 96,238,542 8,019,404 8,099,579 1,678,326 6740922 120,776,773
Wbﬂ 5 Available-for-sale securities 2,782,122 2,160,406 12,331,000 6,495,804 764,397 24,533,819
RENEES Held-to-maturity securities 3,505,618 677,165 6,504,495 11,581 - 10,698,859
cHEEST Total financial assets 125,582,550 21,466,687 28,703,878 13,568,517 12,001,756 202,223,388
8f Liabilities
SR Deposits from hanks 686,709 - 813,755 - 50,447 1,550,911
TEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,500,591 1,500,591
HEEERRNER Trading liabilties 703,526 5,504,770 62,334 - - 6,270,630
EPEH Deposits from customers 115,813,586 27,596,091 747,174 - 5107,346 149,264,197
BEANERE Certficates of deposit issued 3,160,688 1,616,677 1,454,472 - - 6,231,837
hEER Subordinated notes - - 5,279,340 - - 5,079,340
HinfRA RER Other accounts and accruals - - - - 5,785,899 5,785,899
cHaRAT Total financial liabilities 120,364,509 34,717,538 8,357,075 - 12,444283 175,883,405
NEgBEEAT (REHR) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* 5,218,041 (13,250,851)) 20,346,803 13,568,517
REffE TR EE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 2,825,721 795,495 2,326,751 (6,105,877)
NEgBEEAT (S52)" Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 8043762 (12455356) 22,673,554 7,462,640
* RN EREE VIR EAERABRANEEMN * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of
BENEEEET - KRN EBGREEDEA on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
FUREF ERE R M ETHRERTET RSN takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
B into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

3EANE 180 E
3fdA E1E E5%
T Over Over SENE AHE
3 months 3 months 1 year Over  Non-interest At

0145124318 At 31 December 2014 or less to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
AE Assets
e RERTHEE Cash and balances with banks 12,772,888 615,806 - - 1,674,312 15,063,006
ERT1Z12(8ARA Placements with banks maturing

I between one and twelve months 2,379,505 3246514 - - - 5,626,019
HEEERANES Trading securities 2,051,864 4,769,256 29,04 - 232,155 7,082,517
KENATEI2AES Financial assets designated at fair

TABRRMEHEE value through profit or loss 113,889 125,781 2,072,332 4,345 520 2,970,041 9,607,563
fEEMIR Derivative financial instruments - - - - 831,566 831,566
EEEHRAMEE Advances and other accounts 83,365,215 10,576,771 11,120,258 6,104,592 7,427,093 118,593,929
ARLERS Available-for-sale securities 2,417,059 2,094,641 12,465,601 6,034,710 712,49 23,724,503
BEHEES Held-to-maturity securities 2,239,146 2,217,820 6,560,573 29,662 - 11,047,201
SREERH Total financial assets 105,339,566 23,646,589 32,248,006 16,514,484 13,847,659 191,596,304
af Liabilties
$E Deposits from banks 1,501,734 - - - 70,733 1,572,467
TEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1217,118 1217,118
HEEERANER Trading liabilities 3,016,569 2,533,351 47,694 - - 5,597,614
BFEH Deposits from customers 117,085,242 19,203732 789,799 - 3817862 140,916,635
BEANERE Certificates of deposit issued 2,460,682 1,014,801 2,634,204 - - 6,100,777
REBEH% Subordinated notes - - 3,516,676 1,874,681 - 5,391,357
HiniRA kB Other accounts and accruals - - - - 5,071,301 5,071,301
ERERAS Total financial liabilties 124,084,227 22,771,884 6,988,463 1,874,681 1,077,014 166,776,269
HEgREEE A (REAE)" Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* (18,724,661) 874,705 25,059,543 14,639,803
MEfTETARHZZE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 2,646,315 409,492 712,526 (3,842,627)
HegEERA (BH%) Total interest sensitivity gap (acjusted)" (16,078,346) 1,284,197 25,072,069 10,797,176
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standard and to ensure that there is an
adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand a prolonged period of liquidity stress of
not less than a month. Starting from 1 January 2015, the Group has
adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) introduced by the
HKMA to replace the liquidity ratio as a regulatory standard as part of
the implementation of Basel Ill liquidity regime in Hong Kong. During
the period, the Group had maintained a sufficiently high LMR well
above the statutory minimum of 25%.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk
management framework in accordance with the requirements set
forth in the SPM LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity
Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in April 2011. The SPM LM-2
is developed to implement the liquidity sound principles formulated by
the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”) to
strengthen the liquidity risk management standards of banks.

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements and
projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including the
LMR and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. Appropriate limits
or triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient liquid assets
are held to ensure that the Group can meet all short-term funding
requirements. The Treasury Division is responsible for the day-to-
day management of funding and liquidity position while the RMCD
is responsible for the measurement and monitoring of liquidity risk
exposures on a daily and monthly basis, and also conducting liquidity
analysis and stress testing. The Financial Control Division handles
regulatory reporting in relation to liquidity risk, and coordinates the
regular forecast of loans and deposits, and LMR, budget and analysis
relating to liquidity and funding management.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune time in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank
market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow measurements
and projections for different time horizons, including the next day,
week and month, which are key periods for liquidity management.
The starting point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual
maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as well as the
expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based on historical
observations. The cash flow projections also take into account the
historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including undrawn
lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as standby
letters of credit and guarantees. A liquid asset portfolio is held to
withstand unexpected shortfall in net cash flow. Debt securities
held are marked to the market on daily basis to ensure their market
liquidity. The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes
an institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario
and a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the
potential impact on its liquidity position under stressed market
conditions and has formulated a contingency plan that sets out
strategies for dealing with liquidity problems and the procedures
for making up cash flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions
or liquidation of assets held for liquidity risk management purpose)
in emergency situations. Intragroup transactions are conducted on
arm’s length basis and are treated the same way as other third party
transactions for the purpose of cash flow projection under normal
scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are required to manage their
liquidity positions to meet their needs under both normal and stressed
conditions.
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3.4 RBELER @) 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

342 FRIHTH 3.4.2 Maturity analysis

TEROMAEEIZRERREEHSHE AR The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
HERAEEE (NER) ZRGEHE EZ EEK relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
BfE - end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where

applicable, the earliest callable date.

1ERNL SEANE

EREEEEDYN BE 1E0L
PHEE  1fERENAT  Smonthsor Over B5F
Repayable Upto lessbutover Imonths  Over1 year SENE gl it
015512531 At 31 December 2015 on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
gE Assets
Re RERNER Cash and balances with banks 2,332,609 15,209,107 - - - - - 17,631,716
ERT1Z120AR Placements with banks maturing
Bl between one and twelve months - 9,709 4,424,119 3,201,288 78,705 - - 1,714,421
RIEEERENES Trading securities - 970,485 1,866,083 5,685,617 49,609 = 193,910 8,766,304
EEMATENEELEY  Financial assets designated at fair
TABRNEHAR value through proft or loss - 230,889 14,208 122,039 1,730,417 5,399,214 3,495,021 11,000,786
fEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 127,618 61,352 321,734 533,053 56,053 - 1,100,710
REEFREMES Advances and other accounts 8,539,060 13,573,361 13,966,723 16,991,100 29,351,714 35,731,946 2,622,869 120,776,773
ARHERS Available-for-sale securities - 272,680 1,801,792 2,614,612 11,994,247 7,086,091 764,397 24,533,819
BRHEES Held-to-maturity securities - 1,421,783 634,405 1,865,857 6,757,601 13,213 - 10,698,859
BENTIRE Investment in an associate - - - - - = 4099217 4099217
LEZHERRE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 71,119 7119
BE Goodwill - - - - - - 950,992 950,992
EAE Intangible assets - - - - - - 82,480 82,480
EREMERAE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - = 2,222,465 2,222,465
REn% Investment properties - - - - - = 886,664 886,664
Current income tax assets - - - 5,784 - - - 5,784
Deferred income tax assets - - - - 83473 - - 83473
A Value of in-force long-term life
BHREEE assurance business - - - - - - 2,166,695 2,166,695
BEAH Total assets 10,871,669 31,911,632 22,769,880 30,808,031 50,588,719 48,286,517 17,555,829 212,192,217
&f Liabilities
RER Deposits from banks 21,047 96,303 40,000 581,254 812,307 - - 1,550,911
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 90,088 62,248 357,804 780,618 209,743 - 1,500,591
RIEEERENAE Trading liabilties - 436,010 267,504 5,504,770 62,346 = = 6,270,630
REEH Deposits from customers 57,178,634 31,736,911 32,004,267 271,597,211 47174 - - 149,264,197
BEINENE Certificates of deposit issued - 1,310,093 1,850,594 1,616,677 1,454,473 - - 6,231,837
hERR Subordinated notes - - - - 5,279,340 - - 5,279,340
AR RER Qther accounts and accruals 235,847 990,814 699,757 938,646 662,058 - 2,268,717 5,785,899
fEmasE Current income tax liablities - - - 208,046 = = = 208,046
EthEak Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 95,950 = = 95,950
HRERBANREFEA  Liabilties to policyholders under
8% long-term insurance contracts - - - - - - 10,695,944 10,695,944
8ERi Total liabilities 57,435,528 34,660,219 34,924,370 36,804,498 9,894,266 209,743 12,954,721 186,883,345
FhRBHEE Net liquidity gap (46,563,859) (2,748,587) (12,154,490) (5,996,467) 40,694,453 48,076,774 4,601,108 25,908,932
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3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

1EANE SEANE
B3EAZNT EE 1M E
DEEE  1ERIMT  Imonthsor Over 35%
Repayable Upto  lessbut over Imonths  Over 1 year SENE gl fi

MUERRA At 31 December 2014 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
gE Assets
BERERONLS Cash and balances with banks 2,816,990 12,095,209 100,495 50312 - - - 15,063,006
T Z120AR Placements with banks maturing

S| between one and twelve months - 15,307 2,208,455 3,314,351 67,906 - - 5,626,019
REEERENES Trading securities - 366,993 1,676,964 4761,251 45,154 - 232,155 7,082,517
EEUAFEIFSEEEY  Financial assets designated at fai

HABRNAHEE value trough profit orloss - 100,456 13,433 105781 2023 435341 2960220 9627563
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 50,517 38,998 107,571 387,731 246,749 - 831,566
EEEHREMES Advances and other accounts 7,632,213 13,170,101 13,002,564 18,422,263 30,254,556 33,185,899 2,926,333 118,593,929
AfHERS Available-for-sale securities - 248,532 1,829,698 2,172,191 12,341,821 6,414,769 7,492 23,724,503
RENEES Held-to-maturity securities - 561,653 58,116 3,174,808 7,215,141 37,483 - 11,047,201
AELNTRE Investment in an associate - - - = = = 3746918 3746918
LR EERE Investments in jointly controlled entiies - - - - - - 65,694 65,694
HE Goodwil - - - - - - 950,992 950992
EVAE Intangible assets = - - = = = 84,519 84519
EREMEREE Premises and other fied assets - - - - - - 2,074,058 2,074,058
REN% Investment properties - - = s s - 786,703 786,703
fEmEEE Current income tax assets - - - 399 - - - 3995
ERfEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 80,591 - = 80,591
REEREHL Valug of in-forcg long-term lfe

CELL assurance business - - 5 - - - 2,018,068 2,018,068
EEA Total assets 10449203 26608768 18948723 32132503 52465280 44240041 16563152 201,407,842
&f Liabiltes
ROFER Deposits from banks 41,679 142,433 - 806,727 581,628 - - 1,572,467
TEeRIE Derivative financial instruments - 41,982 65,343 121,808 784,398 203,587 - 1217118
RIEEERENAE Trading liabilties - 98,500 2,918,069 2533351 47,69 - - 5507614
RPEH Deposits from customers 51,095,661 42,965,732 26,941,481 19,123,962 789,799 - - 140916635
BEIEE Certificates of deposit issued - 501,056 840,079 2,134,348 2,634,004 - - 6,109,777
L Subordinated notes - - - - 5,391,357 - - 5,391,357
AR A RER Other accounts and accruals 187,886 1,289,354 633,765 926,067 634,596 - 2,299,633 5,971,301
LT Current income tax liabilties - - - 213,984 - - - 213,984
BEiEak Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 94,398 - - 94,398
HRERRANRERAA  Liabilities to policyholders under

LB long-term insurance contracts - - - - - - 10,205,811 10,205,811
Bfias Totalliabiltes 51825006 45000057 31398787 25860247 10,958,164 03587 12505444 177,090462
FratEn Net liquidity gap (40,876,023) (18,430,289) (12,450,014) 6,272,216 41,507,068 44,036,654 4,067,708 24,117,380
AT emEEBERAR |
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3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to

contractual maturity, is shown as follows:

1EANL 3EANL
{B3EAIAT Bf 1E0E
NEEE  1@ERINT  3monthsor Over B5%
Repayable Upto lessbutover Imonths  Over1 year SENE #HAH it
on demand 1 month 1 month to1year to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
01512431 A At 31 December 2015
5 A Certificates of deposit held
included in:
REHEES Held-to-maturity securities - 378,578 - 498,955 300,000 - - 1,177,533
01412 A 31 A At 31 December 2014
5 A Certificates of deposit held
included in:
RENSES Held-to-maturity securities - 124762 - 1,822,615 - - - 1,947,377

BERAGEHRRAENEREMZIEOERE S
BEEETHEE HRNETHEBRZILEE
THEER BB R TRERN - HRTHE - 248
REAE RN ER - TMERAFERAEIEe A
Flge ) - B mnEaREE o
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KREXESHAERBRNERRAR

AEE— BT ERAE=HeREFEBEEZEE
RES - Fﬁﬁﬁ%fﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BIE N AT AR
TRBESRRELREENSTE - AR REZEE
AERIISSRIEBBESAES - AARNE
HREBEZEEAENRENEGNBSEARVER
HErBEEERR -

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and
interest rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the
management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely
matched, as businesses transacted are often of uncertain term
and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances
profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual or expected
maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group
manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted
cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

° Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps;
° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency

interest rate swaps; and
. Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual or expected

BREW ) maturities (Continued)
1EAULE AL
IBAHIUT BE 18N L
1fAZUT 3 months or Over B5E
Upto1 less but over 3months  Over 1 year 5N E &t
2015%12A31 8 At 31 December 2015 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
FHETARER Non-derivative cash flow
=4 Liabilities
BITER Deposits from banks 157,502 977 581,766 812,307 - 1,552,552
EFEH Deposits from customers 89,122,956 32,666,490 27,914,588 1,362,298 - 151,066,332
HEEERENAE Trading liabilities 436,000 267,620 5,505,473 62,724 - 6,271,817
BRTNERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,318,436 1,859,906 1,657,069 1,491,721 = 6,327,132
&(ERE% Subordinated notes 46,791 102,125 147471 5844,812 - 6,141,199
HESRBRANREFGAZARE  Liabiliies to policyholders under
long-term insurance contracts 47,595 108,476 621,268 2,918,149 29,463,144 33,158,632
HiaE Other liabilities 1,085,652 413,006 501,764 616,086 54,463 2,670,971
RRAE(G02HAR) Total liabilities (contractual
maturity dates) 92,214932  35418,600 36,929,399 13,108,097 29,517,607 207,188,635
fTETARSR Derivative cash flow
BEBEE TESRTE Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis 6,690 4,848 (25,200) (52,892) (2,158) (68,712)
RABEE/TESRIEA Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
ke Total outflow 34,372,894 18,995,925 29,679,102 3,031,745 503,610 86,583,276
MALE Total inflow (34,414,618) | | (18,995,176) | | (29,437,748) || (2,602,438) (249,458) | | (85,699,438)
(41,724) 749 241,354 429,307 254,152 883,838
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3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual or expected

188

BREW ) maturities (Continued)
1EANEE  3EAME
3EAFIUT ZE 1€ML E
1AZ%LT 3 months or Over B5E
Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year 5ENE A
20145124318 At 31 December 2014 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Total
FTETARSR Non-derivative cash flow
afE Liabilities
RITHER Deposits from banks 186,562 2,925 808,988 581,649 - 1,580,124
EFREH Deposits from customers 94,300,024 27,541,804 19,486,567 911,746 - 142,249,231
FEEERRNAR Trading liabilities 98,500 2,918,086 2,533,739 49,166 - 5,599,491
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 508,734 856,259 2,197,660 2,717,075 = 6,279,728
1&(ERE% Subordinated notes 46,821 104,203 149670 4,373,224 1,762,569 6,436,487
HESRBRANREFGAZARE  Liabiliies to policyholders under
long-term insurance contracts 45,749 113,682 410,740 2,958,002 26,107,143 29,635,316
HiaE Other liabilities 1,263,032 338,968 541,841 573,138 - 2,716,979
RS (5 02HAR) Total liabilities (contractual
maturity dates) 96,458,422 31,876,017 26,129,205 12,164,000 27,869,712 194,497,356
(TETARSR Derivative cash flow
BREREEZITEERIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis (19,344) (24,331) (36,475) (38,454) (2,933) (121,537)
RABEE/TESRIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
ket Total outflow 30,822,145 15,467,794 14,157,906 3,608,184 625,232 64,681,261
MALE Total inflow (31,151,886) | | (15,434,730) || (13,944,027) || (3,048,822) (360,394) | | (63,939,859)
(329,741) 33,064 213,879 559,362 264,838 741,402
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3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

B RARPoE

Included in the table below are the following items:

o Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

s REHRAABARGRNBXN ZHBE c

&

o AREEASFABEAZTAIBURKE L ALE S
MAREXN Z HZEHENHRERE - &

s BEFEMRBIENASE

o
L]

Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the

reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments

where a Group company is the lessee; and

Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and

equipment.
1EH0R 150 E 5E
No later ZB5E Over &t
2015§12A31H At 31 December 2015 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRURIE Loan commitments 66,145,095 2,958,451 140,456 69,244,002
R ALK Guarantees, acceptances and
Hi © FARTS other financial facilities
— &, - Acceptances = = - -
—ERRERER - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 356,891 417,443 2,178 776,512
—REREEERT - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 438,649 - - 438,649
IR TR I Operating lease commitments 175,570 469,127 349,332 994,029
B Capital commitments 169,814 - = 169,814
&&t Total 67,286,019 3,845,021 491,966 71,623,006
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3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

1ELR 1ENE 5
No later E5F Over &t
2014912 A31H At 31 December 2014 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
ERuRyE Loan commitments 65,609,969 3,571,018 12,869 69,193,856
R ALK Guarantees, acceptances and
H fth & gh AR 7S other financial facilities
— &5 - Acceptances 24,061 - - 24,061
—ERRERER - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 773,616 129,244 83,315 986,175
—REREEERT - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 477,089 B - 477,464
IR TR A Operating lease commitments 151,124 105,181 47,428 303,733
BAH I Capital commitments 146,928 - - 146,928
B&f Total 67,182,787 3,805,818 143,612 71,132,217

35 TRMEEREEBZAYE

(FF) AFEZEFE

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(@) Determination of fair value
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Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility
for overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to
the TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and
where appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified
valuers and actuaries and the valuation results are periodically
verified to ensure the integrity of the fair value measurement
process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation
technique.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (cContinued)

(@)  Determination of fair value (Continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques
and standard option pricing models. In applying valuation
techniques for these financial instruments, the Group maximises
the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and
minimises the use of unobservable inputs. For example, the
fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows, the fair value of foreign
exchange forward contracts is generally based on current
forward rates and the fair value of option contracts is derived
using appropriate pricing models, such as Black-Scholes
model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit
spreads in determining the current value of its financial liabilities
and other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option.
When the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises
a gain on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
decreased. When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group
recognises a loss on these liabilities because the value of the
liabilities has increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (cContinued)
(b)  Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the observable and unobservable
inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level Descriptions

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts.

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.



(CABBEFThz5I7R)

3.5 SREEREBBEZAFE®@
(Z) RFEZRE)

BATEAEZEERERE

2015%12A31H

B RARPoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (cContinued)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

E1R FoH F3IR =5
At 31 December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AA Descriptions
WATETEEEES Financial assets at fair value
TABRNEREE through profit or loss
HEBERR Held for trading
(B &5 Debt securities - 8,572,394 - 8,572,394
R EES Equity securities 188,507 5,403 - 193,910
EENAAFEFERH Designated at fair value
2E) AER through profit or loss
E#E Debt securities - 7,505,767 - 7,505,767
BnltES Equity securities 2,007,423 1,112,888 374,708 3,495,019
PTEERIA Derivative financial instruments
RIEEERZ Held for trading 42 906,109 = 906,151
A R{EEH Held for hedging - 194,559 - 194,559
AtHEsSREE Available-for-sale financial assets
BRER Debt securities - 23,769,422 4,828 23,774,250
EmtESH Equity securities 438,700 245,834 75,035 759,569
BATEFEZEEAR Total assets measured at fair value 2,634,672 42,312,376 454,571 45,401,619
AAFEFEREEE) Financial liabilities at fair value
FABENERERE through profit or loss
BIEEERR Held for trading - 6,270,630 - 6,270,630
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments
BEEERR Held for trading - 981,303 - 981,303
BEREL Held for hedging - 519,288 = 519,288
BATEFEZ8EAR Total liabilities measured at fair value = 7,771,221 = 7,771,221
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3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (cContinued)

(b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

The available-for-sale financial assets classified as Level 3
assets represent investments in unlisted equity securities and
debentures. They are stated at cost which is considered to be a
reasonable approximation of fair value.

For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
out of the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in carrying
value represent the revaluation gains/losses.

The financial asset designated at fair value through profit or
loss classified as a Level 3 asset as at 31 December 2014
represented investment in the equity securities of an unlisted
insurance company with a fair value of HK$238,000,000. It was
valued on the basis of the appraisal value of the life assurance
business of the insurance company.

On 31 December 2015, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company
Limited (“DSLA”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
contracted with two of the existing shareholders (the
“Purchasers”) of an insurance company to sell to them its
entire holdings of shares in the insurance company at a price
of RMB1.88 per share. The sale is to be completed on or
before 30 June 2016 unless DSLA and the Purchasers agree
on a later date. The selling price was determined as a result
of negotiations amongst DSLA and the Purchasers, which
are independent of one another, on an arm’s length basis.
Consequently, this selling price has been used as the basis for
valuing the investment as at 31 December 2015.
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3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (cContinued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

BATEtEZEERABE  (8) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

F1H F2H ESRN CHI
201412 A31H At 31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FS Descriptions
NAFEAEREE Financial assets at fair value
FABENEREE through profit or loss
HEEERR Held for trading
ERES Debt securities - 6,850,362 = 6,850,362
BnltES Equity securities 225,695 6,460 - 232,155
BENATFEFEEH Designated at fair value
ZH AER through profit or loss
B E S Debt securities - 6,667,342 - 6,667,342
R ES Equity securities 1,871,491 850,730 238,000 2,960,221
fTHEERTA Derivative financial instruments
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 615,178 = 615,178
AR Held for hedging - 216,388 = 216,388
AHEZSRERE Available-for-sale financial assets
BE S Debt securities - 22,997,009 4,828 23,001,837
BRI ER Equity securities 425,663 221,890 75,113 722,666
BRATEFEZEEA Total assets measured at fair value 2,522,849 38,425,359 317,941 41,266,149
WFEstE B HE Financial liabilities at fair
FABRNEREE value through profit or loss
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 5,597,614 = 5,597,614
PTESRIA Derivative financial instruments
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 731,535 = 731,535
BB REL Held for hedging - 485,583 - 485,583
BATEFEZBEST Total liabilities measured at fair value = 6,814,732 = 6,814,732

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |

195



196

AR5 RRPoE

(CABEEFThL5IR)

3.5 SREEREBBEZAFE®@
(Z) RFEZRE)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (cContinued)

(b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

EEUDFEFE
BHSBHEA
BRMemEE
Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
TR M 7R 35

Equity securities

20155181 H1
NP ERE

20151231 H
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At 1 January 2015 238,000
Fair value gain 136,708
At 31 December 2015 374,708

At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 238,000

Total gain for the year included in profit or loss for
Level 3 assets held at 31 December 2015
136,708
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3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (cContinued)

(c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair

values of those financial assets and liabilities not presented

in the Group’s statement of financial position at their fair

value. For disclosure purposes, these fair values have been

estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at

the current market interest rate that is available to the Group

WEBEFE o for similar financial instruments, if applicable, or in the case of
investment securities, determined based on market prices or
price quotations.

BREE AVE
Carrying value Fair value
2015 2014 2015 2014

SREE Financial assets
Re RERITHE R Cash and balances with banks 17,631,716 15,063,006 17,633,301 15,067,880
ERT1E12f8AR Placements with banks maturing

FEE TR between one and twelve months 7,714,421 5,626,019 7,720,657 5,647,144
BEFEERRBHN Loans and advances to customers

(EUN=E 95N Loans and advances to individuals

—EAR - Credit cards 4,706,017 4,057,656 4,706,498 4,058,213

—RIBER - Mortgages 31,273,079 29,109,305 31,273,004 29,109,232

—Hft - Others 9,729,001 8,660,111 9,732,804 8,662,133

TEERRBR Loans and advances to

corporate entities

—BHER - Term loans 29,150,773 29,903,231 29,149,405 29,904,055

—ZBER - Mortgages 16,016,536 14,074,495 16,016,789 14,074,520

—BoRE - Trade finance 7,986,955 7,135,572 7,986,955 7,136,859

—Hft - Others 10,762,963 12,289,676 10,769,582 12,289,649
EEES Trade bills 6,469,899 7,384,057 6,504,322 7,461,102
BEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 10,698,859 11,047,201 10,714,534 11,085,381
SRERE Financial liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 1,550,911 1,572,467 1,569,956 1,572,372
EYSVES S Deposits from customers 149,264,197 140,916,635 149,314,961 140,922,045
BEITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 6,231,837 6,109,777 6,235,944 6,096,361
& Subordinated notes 5,279,340 5,391,357 5,410,826 5,532,529
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3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (cContinued)

(c)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)
(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(i)  Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(iii)  Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the held-to-maturity category. Fair value of
held-to-maturity assets is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is
not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits,
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated
fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings not quoted in an active market is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity.

(v)  Debt securities in issue including subordinated
notes issued

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for
the remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.
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3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking and
insurance regulators in the markets where the entities within the
Group operate;

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

° To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits
to other stakeholders; and

° To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

3.6.1 Banking business

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Hong Kong banking subsidiary is monitored regularly by the Group’s
management, employing techniques based on the guidelines
developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the HKMA, for
supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the HKMA
on a quarterly basis.

As Basel |ll has become effective from January 2013 in Hong
Kong, DSB is required to meet three ratios, namely, the Common
Equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively
against risk-weighted assets. The internationally agreed minimum
of these three ratios starting from 1 January 2015 are set at 4.5%,
6.0% and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In
order to comply with HKMA'’s requirements as stated in the SPM
CA-G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process”, DSB is required to set
further buffers, to reflect material risks not included in the minimum
regulatory capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements,
internal assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under
the Pillar Il capital requirement. In addition, the capital conservation
buffer, countercyclical capital buffer and higher loss absorbency
(“HLA”) capital requirements introduced by the Basel Committee
will be implemented from 1 January 2016 in Hong Kong. In line with
the international standards, the HKMA also adopts the phase-in
arrangements for new capital requirements in relation to the Common
Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio, capital buffers and HLA
capital requirements as set by the Basel Committee and will achieve
full implementation by 1 January 2019. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio
that forms part of Basel Ill implementation is under parallel run
until 2017 and relevant information has been submitted by DSB for
regulatory monitoring.
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3.6 Capital management (Continued)
3.6.1 Banking business (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by
the HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation.
Off-balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent
amounts by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each
exposure, before being classified and risk-weighted as if they were
on-balance sheet exposures.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China,
DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) respectively for supervisory
purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by
DSB China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires
BCM and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own
funds or capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital
adequacy ratio) not lower than the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such
as the Securities and Futures Commission.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.6 Capital management (Continued)
3.6.2 Insurance business

In each market in which the Group’s insurance subsidiaries operate,
the local insurance regulator specifies the minimum amount and type
of capital that must be held by each of the subsidiaries in addition
to their insurance liabilities. The minimum required capital must be
maintained at all times throughout the year. The Group’s subsidiaries
are subject to insurance solvency regulations in the markets in
which they issue insurance and investment contracts, and where
they have to comply with the local solvency regulations. The Group
has embedded in its asset and liability management framework the
necessary tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with such
regulations. The solvency requirement of each insurance company in
each market is subject to local requirements, which may differ from
jurisdiction to jurisdiction.

In Hong Kong, the required margin of solvency for the Group’s life
insurance subsidiary, DSLA, is determined by the Group’s appointed
actuary in accordance with the Hong Kong Insurance Companies
(Margin of Solvency) Regulation. In addition, dynamic solvency test is
also required by Insurance Authority to identify the solvency position
of the company on a going concern basis and plausible threats to
satisfactory financial condition. For both 2015 and 2014, the results of
dynamic solvency test are satisfactory.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety
of financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary
capacity are not included in the Group’s financial statements. These
services could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of
mal-administration.
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3.8 Insurance risk
3.8.1 Frequency and severity of claims

For contracts where death is the insured risk, the most significant
factors that could increase the overall frequency of claims are
epidemics or wide spread changes in lifestyle, resulting in earlier or
more claims than expected.

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits and fixed future
premiums, there are no mitigating terms and conditions that reduce
the insurance risk accepted. For contracts with discretionary
participating features, the participating nature of these contracts
results in a significant portion of the insurance and financial risks
being shared with the insured party.

The Group charges for mortality risk on a monthly basis for all
insurance contracts without a fixed term. It has the right to alter
these charges based on its mortality experience and hence minimise
its exposure to mortality risk. Delays in implementing increases in
charges and market or regulatory restraints over the extent of the
increases may reduce its mitigating effect.

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and
reinsurance arrangements.

The Group’s underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a
balanced portfolio and is based on a portfolio of similar risks over
a number of years and, as such, it is believed that this reduces the
variability of the outcome. Premium pricing is set at an appropriate
level that corresponds with the underlying exposure of the risks
underwritten. The Group has a company-wide retention limit on any
single life insured. The Group reinsures the excess of the insured
benefit over the limit for standard risks (from a medical point of view)

under an excess of loss reinsurance arrangement.

Within the insurance process, concentrations of risk may arise where
a particular event or series of events could impact heavily upon
the Group’s liabilities. Such concentrations may arise from a single
insurance contract or through a small number of related contracts,
and relate to circumstances where significant liabilities could arise.

The Group is subject to concentration risk arising from accidents
or epidemics on policies taken out by its policyholders. Therefore,
to cover the risk, catastrophe reinsurance arrangements have been
made by the Group.
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3.8 Insurance risk (Continued)

3.8.2 Sources of uncertainty in the estimate of future benefit
payments and premium receipts

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and
premium receipts for long-term insurance contracts arises from the
unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality and
the variability in contract holder behaviour.

The Group uses appropriate industry tables of standard mortality
adjusted according to the type of contract being written. An
investigation into the actual experience of the Group is carried out
annually. Realistic estimates of future mortality are made based on
standard industry tables adjusted for the Group’s overall experience
with appropriate margins.

3.8.3 Assumptions and sensitivity of long-term insurance
contracts

Estimates are made in calculating the future insurance liabilities under
insurance contracts.

Key assumptions are summarised below:
— Mortality

An appropriate table of standard mortality is chosen with adjustment
for the Group’s own experience with appropriate margins.

— Valuation interest rates
The valuation interest rates as at 31 December 2015 range from

1.23% to 3.37% (2014: 1.23% to 3.37%) depending on type of plans
and varies with changes in the appropriate risk free rates.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |

203



204

AR5 RRPoE

(CABBEFThz5I7R)

3.8 {RExE @)
383 RAIRESHZIEHRRHEE &)

HEFEEESRERRERERRT R 2 &
MmEEEE - 18 FR2014412 A31 H £2015

F12A31 B M &l 2 EEmT - [HEFRE
2015 7 B F ) F-0.23% = +0.26% (2014
& -0.48% £ +0.02%) o HEMEZ ZF R E
N EEBRR B2 FEEHN2015F 12 A
31 BRI E 4 2 RRR R B ER D K5 I35 a0
197,517,0008 7T (201445 : {RER G %) 2 R Rk b
B EIE N s MRk > 421,597,000 78 7T) ©

HEE DT

Ti\%%ﬁlﬂ% RAENZARRBEEHARGER
BRNARFRABZIERRED 2 B
yg c

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.8 Insurance risk (Continued)

3.8.3 Assumptions and sensitivity of long-term insurance
contracts (Continued)

Change in assumption

The valuation interest rates change with variations in the appropriate
risk free rates at each end of the reporting period. Valuation interest
rates in 2015 changed by -0.23% to +0.26% (2014: -0.48% to
+0.02%) depending on types of plans from 31 December 2014 to
31 December 2015. The impact of changes in valuation rates and
other changes in actuarial assumption reduced the future insurance
liabilities under insurance contracts as at 31 December 2015 and
increased the net profit for 2015 by HK$197,517,000 (2014: increased
the future insurance liabilities under insurance contracts and reduced
the net profit for 2014 by HK$421,597,000).

Sensitivity analysis

The following table sets out the sensitivity of value of future insurance
liabilities under insurance contracts to movements in the key
assumptions used in the estimation of future insurance liabilities

under insurance contracts.

2015 2014

REREE AR

=8t BEEH

Change in Change in
""""" pet g future FRFEH future 3@ I E)
Change in insurance Change in insurance Change in
variable liabilities net profit liabilities net profit
BT ERE(L Worsening of mortality +1% +8,075 -8,058 +8,032 -8,019

HEFETHE Decrease in valuation

interest rates -0.1% +171,138 -170,695 +187,089 -186,483

RS FRE—ABRLREDTAE R B

B TETEN - BB EERTATES
B - TR T RS A A —PImA
BRTERD | KUA ORI RED -

RFeREEERAA |

The above analyses are based on a change in an assumption while
holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to
occur, and change in some of the assumptions may be correlated — for
example, change in interest rate and change in market values; change
in lapses and future mortality.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Changes in estimates and assumptions may
have a significant impact on the results of the Group in the periods
when changes are made. The application and selection of different
estimates and assumptions, and their subsequent changes, could
affect the Group’s profit and net asset value in the future. The Group,
based on its high-level assessment of the sensitivity impacts on the
reported assets and liabilities of the Group arising from the changes
in critical accounting estimates and assumptions, believes that the
estimates and assumptions adopted are appropriate and reasonable,
and the financial results and positions presented in the Group’s
financial statements are fair and reasonable in all material respects.

(@) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio.
This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the Group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of
recoverable amounts. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.
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4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets caused
by the 2008 global financial crisis, the Group had witnessed
observable declines in market liquidity and the range of market
quotations for certain securities have widened. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation
for valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range
of observable quotations, recent observable transactions, the
reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the value of
securities of a similar nature.

(c) Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition
of goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits
to be generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates
which could be caused by major changes in market conditions
and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values
of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower
than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would
have to be recognised.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(@)

Value of in-force long-term life assurance business

Estimates are made in calculating the value of in-force long-

term life assurance business.

Key assumptions are summarised below:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Mortality. An appropriate base table of standard
mortality is chosen with adjustment for the Group’s own

experience.

Discount rate. A discount rate of 8.30% (2014: 8.05%)
being the risk free rate plus an appropriate equity risk
premium is applied.

Investment return. Investment return assumption ranges
from 3.10% to 5.45% per annum (2014: 3.10% to
5.20% per annum) depending on risk characteristics of
investments matching the liabilities of different plans.

Renewal expenses. Renewal expenses based on actual
experience and with reference to future business plan are
adopted.

Change in assumptions

Assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted

based on the actual experience and new forecasts.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(d)  Value of in-force long-term life assurance business (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table represents the sensitivity of value of in-force
long-term life assurance business to movements in the key

assumptions used in the estimation of value of in-force long-

term life assurance business.

2015 2014
ZERRE ZENRE
EE2E EBEZ
Change in Change in
value of value of
in-force in-force
bt o long-term FRASE long-term FRHEE
Change in assurance Change in assurance Change in
variable business net profit business net profit
8RR Increase in discount rate +1% (251,548) (251,133) (229,966) (229,482)
BTz Worsening of mortality +1% (4,904) (4,901) (4,130) (4,128)
RERERZ TH Decrease in investment retum 0.1% (109,801) (109,551) (106,929) (106,604)
BRI 2 M Increase in renewal expense 10% (25,547) (25,483) (27,493) (27,386)
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4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(e) Estimate of future benefit payments and premiums arising
from long-term insurance contracts

The determination of the liabilities under long-term insurance
contracts is dependent on estimates made by the Group.
Valuation interest rates are determined from a prudent
assessment of the yield on existing assets and the expected
yield taking into account the Insurance Companies
(Determination of Long Term Liabilities) Regulation. Estimates
are made as to the expected number of deaths for each of the
years in which the Group is exposed to risk. The Group bases
these estimates on standard industry mortality tables that reflect
recent historical mortality experience with margin, adjusted
where appropriate to reflect the Group’s own experience. The
estimated number of deaths determines the value of the benefit
payments and the value of the valuation premiums. A main
source of uncertainty is that epidemics such as AIDS, SARS
and wide ranging lifestyle changes, such as in eating, smoking
and exercise habits, could result in future mortality being
significantly worse than in the past for the age groups in which
the Group has significant exposure to mortality risk offset by
continuing improvements in medical care and social conditions.

For contracts without fixed terms, the Group will be able to
increase mortality risk charges in future years in line with
emerging mortality experience.

Estimate of critical iliness related morbidity is based on industry
data with margin, adjusted where appropriate to reflect the
Group’s own experience. The uncertainty is greater for mortality
due to a smaller pool of insured, shorter history of the coverage,
medical advances and change in treatment as well as wide-
ranging lifestyle changes, such as in eating, smoking and
exercise habits.

The Group reserves the right to increase the premium rates in
future years for all contracts providing such coverage during the
premium term.
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4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting

policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance
lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
to supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories as of the
end of the year and up to the date of the approval of the financial
statements of the Group. Assessment for any impairment, on
individual and collective basis, is made with reference to the
financial strength and credit rating of each issuer, industry
development and market conditions, and historical loss
experience of a portfolio of similar credits provided by rating
agencies. The Group has concluded that there are no objective
or specific indications that any of its investments in debt
securities included in the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
categories is individually impaired as at 31 December 2015.

Given the continuing uncertain conditions in global credit
markets, the Group has conducted an assessment of its debt
securities on a collective basis. Based on its judgement, the
Group identified certain information indicating a possible
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a certain
group of debt securities, even though the decrease cannot
yet be identified with an individual debt security. The
judgement formed by the Group takes into account the
nature of the securities held and its evaluation of the impact
of market volatility, changes in credit conditions and market
developments on the recoverable amounts. Based on its
evaluation, a collective impairment allowance had been
recognised for a group of debt securities since 2011. As at
31 December 2014, the amount of such collective impairment
allowance was HK$15 million. Due to the recovery of bond
market and default risk of the Group’s debt securities is
assessed to be low, the Group decided to write back the
collective impairment allowance of HK$15 million in the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included
in the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories
(Continued)

For the available-for-sale equity securities, the Group
has identified certain equity investments that exhibited a
significant decline in their fair value below their purchase
cost for a prolonged period of over 12 months and there is
no other observable data that the cost of these investments
can be fully recovered. The Group has concluded that these
equity investments are impaired and the cumulative loss of
HK$10,970,000 at 31 December 2015 previously accumulated
in equity was reclassified into the income statement.

(c)  Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount
close to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire
class as available-for-sale. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value, not amortised cost.
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4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)
(d)  Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgement is needed to determine if provision for compensation
to certain customers who had bought structured investments
distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the Group
need to be recorded in accordance with the requirements of
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the
information relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood
and estimated amount of outflow of resources which may be
incurred to settle the obligation after considering factors such as
recent settlement experiences and advice from legal counsel.

(e) Impairment assessment of the investment in an associate,
Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment
against the higher of management’s estimate of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of
the value in use is based on a discounted cash flow projection
which contains certain assumptions derived from management
and observable market information. This estimate is subject
to application of management judgment and is sensitive to
assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising
from the holding of this investment and from its ultimate
disposal.

As at 31 December 2015, management’s estimate of the value in
use is higher than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ.
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
A TR R R Statement of Financial Position of the Company
12431 H
As at 31 December
2015 2014
B ARIEE Investments in subsidiaries 4,986,558 5,044,140
mMENE = Current assets
RITEERR Bank balances 19 19
B —REH B AR Z SRITAE B4 Bank balances with
a subsidiary 20,887 7,962
FEUAR M ELA AR B Accounts receivable and
other accounts 3,639 3,684
i NGO Amounts due from subsidiaries 872,392 941,536
896,937 953,201
mENARE Current liabilities
TEIRB R MEMRE Accrued expenses and
other accounts 26,717 15,305
NI ENGIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 179,159 232,179
205,876 247,484
FRBEE Net current assets 691,061 705,717
5,677,619 5,749,857
s EQUITY
N Share capital 4,248,559 4,248,559
HAb Other reserves (including
(RERBABF) = () retained earnings) Note (a) 1,429,060 1,501,298
EREE Total equity 5,677,619 5,749,857
EEESHN 20164 3 A 23 Bt MIRAEI M o Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
March 2016.
EERSE HEHE David Shou-Yeh Wong Hon-Hing Wong
- EE g Director Managing Director
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Note:
(a) Reserve movement of the Company

BHEE EXHEE RERF

Share Capital  Retained &5t
Premium Reserve Earnings Total
201441 A18 At 1 January 2014 2,764,288 256,027 1,312,405 4,332,720
K2014F3 A3 HBEE Transition to no-par regime
EERZEETE on 3 March 2014 (2,764,288) - - (2,764,288)
FEE A Profit for the year - - 338,307 338,307
2013 FFRHAR S 2013 final dividend - - (304,918) (304,918)
2014 SFR EARR 2 2014 interim dividend - - (100,523)  (100,523)
2014412 A31H At 31 December 2014 - 256,027 1,245,271 1,501,298
201541 818 a0k At 1 January 2015, as above - 256,027 1,245,271 1,501,298
FEE A Profit for the year - - 353,307 353,307
2014 SFREAR S 2014 final dividend - - (318,321) (318,321)
2015 FHHARR & 2015 interim dividend - - (107,224)  (107,224)
2015512431 R At 31 December 2015 - 256,027 1,173,033 1,429,060

BIR1993F 12 A1 BB IFRIRZES « WHEE
M 1993F 12 A 20 HH BB &Z = ARtz - A2
AR A9 i 1B B35 256,027,000 7 T 3F 85 1 = B K
BRI ° %2 256,027,000 8 JLiH BB R ER G
AR B R R 8 o

By a special resolution passed on 1 December 1993 and subsequently
approved by the Supreme Court of Hong Kong on 20 December 1993,
the share premium of the Company was reduced by HK$256,027,000
and this amount was transferred to a capital reserve account. On
consolidation the reserve of HK$256,027,000 has been applied
against goodwill.
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ARERBEEEVHERELAESHF(EERLED
BEORBNDERSE - AEETHREAR MEMHTT
ZEEREZIBEERRAZRMIERERD
RREEFEREZEN  DIRRITEBERRR
EG 2 ERERFETE - NIRITEB 2 2 BRRIX
BB - MBIMRITEBZ BERBIRE
BHBEDN - BRRRE - BREENRANE
RENREHNEEERNER -

@%Eﬂ$m¥%2§ﬁﬁ‘éﬁ&%%'§@
REMERR  AEES2EXKE IR TIIZ
WA

. BARTERREEIBAAREER &
EEFHEBER  LAEFR  BXMNER
RERF - (RERFETSHSHE IR E R -

s RBERRTRBEREXGENR BEXR - &E&
BEoREREIRE  HEFRELBE
BEPIERTHERBBILETR

s WMEEBIBZBFINERE PREFR
TER NERERER BHFAREEER
SEERCZEASERER -

o BIMRITERBIEARMMNRPMTAE S
SN A AR 2 EARITA R ERITE
BRAEER —HEERBER L 2 EERIT
R ©

RFeREEERAA |

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC
members, for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, is determined on the basis of banking business and
insurance business. For banking business, operating performances
are analysed by business activities for local banking business, and on
business entity basis for overseas banking business. For insurance
business, resources allocation and performance evaluation are based
on insurance business entity basis.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following
reportable segments:

o Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft and credit card
services, the provision of insurance sales and investment

services.

o Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers,

and the provision of trade financing.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralised cash management for deposit taking
and lending, interest rate risk management, management of
investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

° Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.
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s RBEBEEAREZAZRBRRE KRR
BH) TR o AEBEBURNEEZENE
DA R YER 96% a2 R PP 2 Bl R
—RINAB R RM 2 E 5 KRS o

s HMBEREATEERERNEMEZ/RAERZ
HEXE  SEREREBED (BHERE
&%) -

HEBESEREME - WAl EERARSHEB S
BHZRABP « EmEBRBEA - SEEZ2HR
BENE: MHoBZHENESERARESERM
EENBAMESKAE  REBMSHE 2 #%
BREHSEESHE - DEEZR S TERERE
TEZESHE=ERGHZRBKNERE - H1A
MZBASE EREGERAENE - & THRET
EEIIAFER2015FEEA & BB ERK
HRETRABS R 2

FIETRN A EERXBBEERNABNDED
B MERAXRESBFAFA KBRS IEE
BEAZBERRTEEMDELERA - DEE
TRW DA REM ° TaEA B DB ES DIH
EmMEAPFIZEREDRAS  AERERX
25N THEMI BT -

P E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

° Insurance business includes the Group’s life assurance and
general insurance businesses. Through the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiaries in Hong Kong and 96% owned subsidiaries
in Macau, the Group offers a variety of life and general insurance
products and services.

° Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
segments are reported directly under respective segments, while
revenue and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding
operation and funding resources are allocated to segments by way
of transfer pricing mechanism with reference to market interest rates.
Transactions within segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-segment income
or expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Certain comparative
amounts have been revised to conform to the changes in funds
transfer pricing mechanism and certain income reallocation adopted
in 2015.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions
are grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BZE2015F12831 ALLEE For the year ended 31 December 2015

218

BARS BERT BIMRAT REBEH #iER
Personal  Commercial ~ B1E%H%  Overseas  Insurance it Inter- &t
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Business Others segment Total
FHSRA/ (ZiE) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,367,555 1,149,755 377,085 508,611 314,418 (64,131) - 3653293
FHEMA/ (ZiH) Non-interest income/(expenses) 632,469 213,035 190,476 126,657 410,193 104,479 (43,901) 1,633,408
MhRBZE 2ENA Total operating income net of
insurance claims 2,000,024 1,362,790 567,561 635,268 724,611 40,348 (43,901) 5,286,701
BETH Operating expenses (1,260121)  (378,778) (140,878  (469,366)  (280,995) (48,060) 43901 (2,534,297)
MERESE Operating profit/(loss) before
REt{E SRR impairment losses and other
LEERT/(BE) credit provisions 739,903 984,012 426,683 165,002 443616 (7,712 - 2750404
EREER Loan impairment losses and
REMEEERE other credit provisions
(i2h)/mR (charged)/written back (230,256)  (237,955) 15,000 (43,141) - - - (496,352
bl Operating proft/loss) after
REMESEEE impairment losses and
LEERT /() other credit provisions 509,647 746,057 441,683 122,761 43616 (7,712 - 2,256,052
ﬁ’%&iﬁ%%&ﬁfﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁ Net (l0ss)/gain on disposal
HATERE and fair value adjustment
LE(ER) W& of investment properties
and other fixed assets (1,283 (12) (13) 7 (89,489) 14,499 - (76,290)
HEFSRE s Net gain on disposal of
investments in securities - - 16,568 - 7,992 19,008 - 43,563
RELERERDREBIE Loss on deemed disposal of
investment in an associate - - - (47,617) - - - (47,617)
EattZrRE HERARA Impairment losses charged on
investment in equity securities - - - - - (10,970) - (10,970)
[ NG A <+ Share of results of an associate - - - 665,042 - - - 665,942
EhiREEE 28 Share of results of ointly
controlled entities - - - - - 21,945 - 21,945
K biATRA Profit before taxation 508,364 746,045 458,288 741,003 362,120 36,765 - 2850625
BA(LH)/ B Taxation (expenses)/credit (83,868 (123,097 (75,609) (25,064) (37,391) 214 - (344815)
iyl Profit after taxation 424,496 622,048 382,629 716,029 324,729 36,979 - 2507810
HEW15F For the year ended
12A31BLEE 31 December 2015
NEREEER Depreciation and amortisation 58,882 12,246 6,759 40,746 15,179 43,041 - 176,853
R2015512 4318 At 31 December 2015
PRAE Segment assets 44238858 55,906,000 63,141,488 31,842,489 18,638,943 4,851,310  (5,826,811) 212,792,277
HREE Segment liabilities 85,575,624 37,962,644 16,816,776 23,429,044 14233827 14,692,241  (5,826,811) 186,883,345

AITREEERA

al
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

HZE2014F12 A31 HILEE (KE5) For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Restated)

EIN:iSh EESiG] MRS [Rax% EIER
Personal ~ Commercial BIZ%E  Overseas  Insurance =0 Inter- 5
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Business Others segment Total
FHSMA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,253,240 986,439 277,843 537,362 300,287 (62,219) - 3292952
FHIEMA/ (i) Non-nterest incomel(expenses) 544320 202995 223,043 121,551 176,166 120529 (59541) 1,329,963
MhRBZE 2ENA Total operating income net
of insurance claims 1,797,560 1,189,434 501,786 658,913 476,453 58,310 (59,541) 4,622,915
BiER Operating expenses (1,157,834)  (350,022) (187219)  (486,161)  (265,175) (52,823) 50541 (2,389,693)
NBRESER Operating profit before
AtrEER R impairment losses and other
LEERT credit provisions 639,726 839,412 364,567 172,752 211,278 5,487 - 2,233,222
ERREERER Loan impairment losses and
AREEEE other credit provisions
(i2h)/m& (charged)/written back (201,779) (63,229) 60,000  (267960) - - - {12962
hAEEER Operating profit/loss) after
EfEERER Y impairment losses and
L35/ (5R) other credit provisions 437,947 776,189 424,567 (95,208) 211,278 5,487 - 1,760,260
HERBNFREGEREE Net (loss)/gain on disposal
REATERE and fair value adjustment of
L3 (BR) s investment properties and
other fixed assets (844) (60) 9 (46) 62,468 28,532 - 90,041
HEZSRE s Net gain on disposal of
investments in securities - - 17,036 - - 2,015 - 19,051
ElEBENT $E Share of results of an associate - - - 602,209 - - - 602,299
EhiREEE 28 Share of results of ointly
controlled entities - - - - - 20,657 - 20,657
Bt anE Profit before taxation 437,103 776,129 441,594 507,045 273,746 56,691 - 2,492,308
B (i) /B Taxation (expenses)/credit (10,565 (128,061) (72,863) 32,324 (21,331) 14,710 - (245,786)
Rk RA Profit after taxation 366,538 648,068 368,731 539,369 250,415 71,401 - 22852
HENUE For the year ended
12A31 ALLEE 31 December 2014
MEREHER Depreciation and amortisation 51,198 10,561 6,218 42,831 12,943 37,299 - 161,050
R2014%E12 A31H At 31 December 2014
PEAE Segment assets 41988779 54,596,171 55550,630 33581542 17,982,755 4343972  (6,636,007) 201,407,842
PERfR Segment liabilities 78375819 36248907 15126832 25,631,700 13905896 14,637,315  (6,636,007) 177,290,462
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

More than 90% of the revenues from external customers were
contributed from banking subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and
People’s Republic of China, with major products and services
including deposit taking, extension of credit, asset-based finance,
securities investment services offered to customers.

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which
was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities
within the Group with business dealing and relationship with, and

services to external customers.

B2 EE
3K 8
RN HAM Inter-
Hong Kong P segment et
and Others Macau elimination Total
HZ2015F 1231 BILEE For the year ended
31 December 2015
HBRRERREZ EBRA Total operating income net of
insurance claims 4,795,271 492,427 (997) 5,286,701
B A% A A Profit before taxation 2,607,896 244,729 - 2,852,625
M2015%12831H At 31 December 2015
ﬁﬁéﬁ Total assets 194,868,421 19,569,962 (1,646,106) 212,792,277
BEE: Total liabilities 171,615,505 16,913,946 (1,646,106) 186,883,345
BREERDE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,666 714,806 - 1,033,472
kA B R RAIE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 76,227,916 1,862,414 (32,000) 78,058,330
(@135 18
8
BENEAM Inter-
Hong Kong SERPY segment 45t
and Others Macau elimination Total
HE2014F12 A1 BILEE For the year ended
31 December 2014
HRRBRRE 2 SERA Total operating income net
of insurance claims 4,175,832 448,092 (1,009) 4,622,915
PR A& Profit before taxation 2,225,375 266,933 = 2,492,308
R 2014412 A31 B (&&&3) At 31 December 2014 (Restated)
BEAG Total assets 184,313,204 18,361,316 (1,266,678) 201,407,842
BEA Total liabilities 162,631,043 15,926,097 (1,266,678) 177,290,462
BREENRDE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 716,844 = 1,035,511
kA B R RAIE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 74,878,643 1,939,300 (38,560) 76,779,383
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

P e

2015 2014
FEUWA Interest income
e MERITHERR Cash and balances with banks 319,266 358,298
BHEE Investments in securities 987,703 968,477
ZEERMEMER Advances and other accounts 4,050,336 3,896,427
5,357,305 5,223,202
FEZH Interest expense
RITER BEEX Deposits from banks/Deposits
from customers 1,428,507 1,663,559
BEITHENE Certificates of deposit issued 78,234 72,106
BEITHNEBES Issued debt securities = 3,494
BIEER Subordinated notes 195,964 187,441
Hifh Others 1,307 3,650
1,704,012 1,930,250
FNEWABE Included within interest income
RAARFEAZEBEEB A Interest income on financial assets
BarnesEE 2 MERrA not at fair value through
profit or loss 5,080,273 4,931,766
FEXZHEE Included within interest expense
RUAAFEFZBEEE A Interest expenses on financial
BarNemBEsfEZH liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss 1,701,380 1,925,314

REZE2015F KX 2014F 12 A1 HILFE - W&
WREREEEZFBWA -

For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there was no interest

income recognised on impaired assets.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014

BREBRASKRA Fee and commission income
RARTHEAE B EEZBTA Fee and commission income from

BEamesiEERAGEZ financial assets and liabilities not

RR75 B KRB 2B A at fair value through profit or loss

—EEERZREENES — Credit related fees and commissions 136,538 135,992

—Bo5mE — Trade finance 91,987 73,158

— AR — Credit card 292,816 304,195
HAb AR & LA KA Other fee and commission income

—BHEREe — Securities brokerage 132,145 89,876

—TERE LY EEE RS

—RITRBERTEE
— B E

REERAEXH
AARFEAEBREZS A
BRMEREERAEBZ
RIS ERABEXH
—FREELAS
—ENHEMLER

AEBERE=TFRHAE X7t EEEERKR
BEERY - AFUREBEABNHAZEEL T
BEEUFHHERERA -

RFeREEERAA |

— Retail investment and wealth

management services 196,863 181,070

- Bank services and handling fees 61,850 58,582
— Other fees 115,575 129,040
1,027,774 971,913

Fee and commission expense

Fee and commission expense from
financial assets and liabilities not
at fair value through profit or loss

— Handling fees and commission 209,813 212,708
— Other fees paid 14,512 13,610
224,325 226,318

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
investment management services to third parties. Those assets that
are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial
statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B RARPoE

2015 2014
AT EE B EEB)TA Dividend income from financial assets
BaremEE 2 REKA at fair value through profit or loss 85,656 83,394
INEB BT A Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 124,716 190,637
FEBERABRNESR 2 FEE Net loss on trading securities (31,654) (4,345)
HIEEBERBRNITETE 2 F G Net gain from derivatives entered into
for trading purpose 57,334 51,481
RAFELEHRARe R TR 2 )FEE Net loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge (9,201) (25,077)
EEURNFEFTEBEZEFA Net (loss)/gain arising from financial
BRI AT (BE), W instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss (195,141) 415,008
31,710 711,098
2015 2014
Sk — kb sh —fRiRE
Life General /it Life General At
Insurance Insurance Total Insurance Insurance Total
REWALHE Gross written premiums 1,853,333 582,114 2,435,447 1,856,216 590,066 2,446,282
KRR REZE) Movement in unearned premiums - 42,262 42,262 = 9,276 9,276
BRERERE Gross earned premiums 1,853,333 624,376 2,477,709 1,856,216 599,342 2,455,558
REWABE HRNE Gross written premiums ceded
to reinsurers (50151)  (328870)  (579021) (01979 (315463  (517,442)
RAURRZREZE 2 HROE Reinsurers’ share of movement in
unearned premiums - (18,005) (18,005) - (11,779 (11,779
BRI RBLEE L HROE Reinsurers’ share of gross eamed
premiums (250151) (346875 (597,026 (201979 (327242  (529.221)
REWANFE Net insurance premium income 1,603,182 277,501 1,880,683 1,654,237 272,100 1,926,337
REOSREBANRE Change in value of in-force long-term
BEzE life assurance business 148,627 - 148,627 312,453 - 312,453
] Total 1,751,809 277,501 2,029,310 1,966,690 272,100 2,238,790
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(AR F o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
AMEHEFEAFRE ZRBIA Dividend income from investments in
available-for-sale securities 26,141 24,670
"EYH 2 S WALERE Gross rental income from investment
properties 26,770 24,270
H A UA Other rental income 11,423 11,012
HAth Others 10,647 10,629
74,981 70,581
2015 2014
ER -RRR sk —HRiRE
Life General Bt Life General =
Insurance Insurance Total Insurance Insurance Total
ENRE - FlERER Claims, benefits and surrenders paid 634,495 254,868 889,363 880,371 205,874 1,086,245
EEEEY Movement in provisions 622,842 66,773 689,615 1,453,652 135,459 1,589,111
RBRZEEERHRE Gross insurance claims and
BEABEZE movement in liabilities to
policyholders 1,257,337 321,641 1,578,978 2,334,023 341,333 2,675,356
BERZE  FERERZ Reinsurers’ share of claim, benefits
PROE and surrenders paid (38,504) (94,099) (132,603) (23,659) (75,718) (99,377)
EEeEY HRNE Reinsurers’ share of movement
in provisions (138,512) (@5189) (183,701  (148,427) (77498  (225925)
REREBLHREFFA Reinsurers’ share of insurance claims
BEED ARG and movement in liabilities to
policyholders (177,016 (139288 (316304  (172085)  (153216)  (325,302)
RERRERHREREA Net insurance claims and movement
BEEH B in liabilities to policyholders 1,080,321 182,353 1,262,674 2,161,937 188,117 2,350,054
RREES HFE Net insurance commission expenses 45,858 (2,490) 43,368 83,684 2,363 86,047
=i Total 1,126,179 179,863 1,306,042 2,245,621 190,480 2,436,101
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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2015 2014

B B3 MR s
(BREESFHM) (KE14)

Employee compensation and
benefit expenses (including
directors’ remuneration) (Note 14)

1,599,360 1,456,456

TERAEMEEEESH - Premises and other fixed assets
TEREFE expenses, excluding depreciation
—TEMEEZH - Rental of premises 160,638 152,534
—Hftb - Others 141,394 137,890
e (K13E33) Depreciation (Note 33) 174,814 157,339
B R HE ) 2 Advertising and promotion costs 87,868 113,678
ENfl « X B BB Printing, stationery and postage 54,230 51,805
mEEE#HEER (M:E32) Amortisation expenses of
intangible assets (Note 32) 2,039 3,711
ZE RN & Auditors’ remuneration 9,931 9,608
HAh Others 304,023 306,672
2,534,207 2,389,693
2015 2014
FHEEMAEER Salaries and other staff costs 1,511,616 1,365,697
VARR 19 72 EE T SR B 2 s i 1R Provision for share-based
(M93E50) compensation charged (Note 50) 3,126 10,008
RARS Pension costs — defined
— R EHRETE contribution plans 84,618 80,751

1,599,360 1,456,456
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BEaMez56AL

(i) Bissst

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals:

(i) The aggregate emoluments

2015 2014
e FE - BEUA=&REMER Salaries, housing, benefits in kind
and other allowances 92,231 84,700
RNEFET 2 B EH% Employer’s contribution to retirement
benefit schemes 2,234 2,234
94,465 86,934

@iy SRNESRAATHMSERET

(i)  The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals are within
the following bands:

A
Number of individuals
2015 2014
PEITHKS
12,000,001 - 12,500,000 1 1
13,500,001 - 14,000,000 - -
14,500,001 - 15,000,000 - -
15,500,001 - 16,000,000 1 1
16,000,001 - 16,500,000 1 1
19,000,001 - 19,500,000 - -
19,500,001 - 20,000,000 - -
21,000,001 - 21,500,000 1 1
22,000,001 - 22,500,000 1 1
5 5

FESUESMERAZALTA - H4461(20144F :
AN) AEE - HIfNEZHNESEBEEREZ
BEE15 A o

RERN AEBEEREMNSMURSPWAAL
N - (ERIMASINBEAREE 2 SRR

f& o

FatisfimmBRAATHME BEBBEEZSF
R R M ARAS M AN SR B 2 RAE MY TR IR ERBTEAT -

RFeREEERAA |

Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were
the emoluments of 4 (2014: 4) Directors. Their respective Directors’
emoluments have been included in Note 15 below.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above
included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services
rendered and the Group’s performance for the financial year.
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EIRFT R REPISE 383 I AR (EERAN 2 &R
WE)ER » ARRIEFZHERBEM T -

B RARPoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company disclosed pursuant
to section 383 of the NCO and the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation were set out

below:
RBEARY
e RR
RETA
Incentive BIETE
5 28 bonuses ZEEHF
RENAIE accrued Employer's
Salary, in respect WRBE  contribution ait
EShe allowances of services ERMEM  toretirement (1)
Directors’ and benefits renderedin  Share-based benefit Total
BZ2015F12B31 HLLEE Year ended 31 December 2015 Fee in kind the year payment schemes (Note 1)
g Chairman
TFERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 1,000 3,960 18,040 - - 23,000
UiES Executive directors
FEREE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 3,350 = 650 12,000
TRERE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 5,482 12,000 = 492 17,074
REEEE Nicholas John Mayhew - 5,083 11,800 - 456 17,339
FuTES Non-executive directors
FhefE Takashi Morimura 208 - - - - 208
ATEERE Toshihide Motoshita 208 - - - - 208
BegRs John Wai-Wai Chow 208 - - - - 208
BukdfES Independent non-executive directors
PEREE Robert Tsai-To Sz 720 = = = = 720
EEBEE Lon Dounn 73 - - - - 3
PRBREE Seiji Nakamura 240 - = = = 20
FhEnk Blair Chilton Pickerell 313 - - - - 313
At Total 3,610 22,525 45,190 - 1,598 72,923
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

i Note:

1. ERERBIARNNBITEBABRATRENE For directors who are also directors of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
NAIZESE  EHZENBRARINZHHE S or its subsidiaries, remuneration paid by these subsidiaries are included
SHELYZEEHFMEFTA - in the consolidated total remuneration set out above.

2. AEBAXRFHER  WERAEEEKET No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
MIEARS THREAY  ER AR AEF— the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
FRARARIZEESHENEEEEFBEIEAT a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
5 (2014 FF « f#) indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

(2014: Nil)
3. ANEFAWES FEBKRIEFEL 2 IBREF] No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors during
(20144 : %) - the year (2014: Nil).
EBEMRHE
iz iR
RETL
Incentive
e 2 bonuses
REMHE accrued
Salary, in respect WRAA At
205 allowances of services ) BINER (k1)
Directors’ and benefits rendered in Share-based Retirement Total

HE2014512A31BLLER Year ended 31 December 2014 Fee in kind the year payment benefits (Note 1)

iR Chairman

TFERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 1,000 3,960 16,050 - - 21,010

gz Executive directors

BERLE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 3,350 - 650 12,000

TRERE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 5271 10430 - 492 16,193

REEEE Nicholas John Mayhew - 4,888 10,250 - 456 15,594

FHTES Non-executive directors

FHERE Takashi Morimura 200 - - - - 200

BA—x4 Hidekazu Horikoshi 130 - - - - 130

ATERAE Toshihide Motoshita 70 - - - - 70

BlegRs John Wai-Wai Chow 200 - - - - 200

BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors

&y Robert Tsai-To Sze 630 - - - - 630

Lyt Lon Dounn 600 - - - - 600

RITRREE Seiji Nakamura 205 - - - - 205

HriEt Yuan Shu 198 - - - - 198

EMERE Blair Chilton Pickerell 290 - - - - 290

At Total 3,543 2,119 40,080 - 1598 67,340
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

P e

2015 2014
BERRERE Loan impairment losses
FHEEFRREALR B RERE Net charge/(reversal) of
FRE(E#) impairment losses on advances
and other accounts
- BRI — Trade bills 3,670 2,070
—RFEEX - Advances to customers 508,713 510,339
— JEET A2 R E A AR B - Accrued interest and other
accounts (1,031) 20,553
511,352 532,962
FHEEFRREAMEE Net charge of impairment losses
AR R F R on advances and other accounts
— &R FT Ay - Individually assessed 218,941 249,015
— R A T — Collectively assessed 292,411 283,947
511,352 532,962
B EE Of which
— G R ERINEE - new and additional allowances
(BERFAEEME L SRE) (including amounts directly
written off in the year) 641,447 596,620
— Bl - releases (76,697) (22,866)
— g m - recoveries (53,398) (40,792)
511,352 532,962
HAb {5 E81E Other credit provisions
AHEEZRSZ Net (reversal)/charge of impairment
REREF ([E5) 25 losses on available-for-sale securities
—RERHE - Collectively assessed (15,000) 15,000
BREEERMEVFIEERRZ Net reversal of impairment losses
BHEE 2 REFBEFE R on investments in securities included
in the loans and receivables category
— R A T — Collectively assessed - (75,000)
W a BR F Net charge to income statement 496,352 472,962
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014

HE & E R

HE B E R & ERGIRER
ZRFREFEE

B PS5 B T iR BB N 5 E SR A R ) DA B =
16.5% (2014 4F : 16.5% ) IR LM < FINHEKTY
R E M ST E SR B8 F k7N 52 B AR & 3753
E 2RI EHE -

EEHBERAABEEINERHEZR - RERZF
HIBBERBNEREER THRESATER 25
RIERBRER -

Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
securities 43,563 23,707
Net loss on disposal of investments in
securities included in the loans
and receivables category

(4,656)

43,563 19,051

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2014:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

2015 2014
REERIA Current income tax:
—EBNEH - Hong Kong profits tax 300,295 265,476
—B5NIE - Overseas taxation 44,198 34,931
—RBEFETRZEE — Under-provision in prior years 813 1,765
RAERIE (FzE43) ¢ Deferred income tax (Note 43):
— BT IR = A A I B — Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (424) (59,374)
— (RFER) /M= ARIBE R — (Recognition)/utilisation
of tax losses (67) 2,988
IA Taxation 344,815 245,786
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

AEBERBADE ) 2 HIBB RN S &R RN
FEWERGTE BB T -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

P e

rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2015 2014
FR A% AR A1 Profit before taxation 2,852,625 2,492,308
REBFIEHE16.5% Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits
AHEZHIE tax rate of 16.5% 470,683 411,231
MIE AR Tax effects of:
SRER 2 TRRFRE Different tax treatment of results of
life insurance business (54,191) (16,155)
H A BIR 2 TR =X Different taxation rates in
other countries 23,544 (16,219)
RN WA Income not subject to taxation (7,435) (50,537)
TREHREY S H Expenses not deductible 23,880 21,550
AT 1% B 2 3 2 B & A R Results of associates and jointly
KRALRERIE R 2 %45 controlled entities reported net of tax  (113,501) (102,787)
REBRELETIEEENTHBER Tax losses for which no deferred
tax asset was recognised 2,406 805
BRBTAREERNEERE Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (1,384) (3,867)
RBEFETNE 2 EE Under-provision in prior years 813 1,765
I8 Taxation 344,815 245,786
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(CABBEFThz5I7R)

NEBABENREERITZRDER  AER
#R17R2015F 12 A LA EF R B BT HTHARAR
9 (TECERD ) B H 16.95% [& = 14.66% °

BRREBGTERE 28 F(ME R RIREIRTE -
ENREEERRMBNEERRTHARE
EMHHBESATENETREGREERZA
A o FIRIER 20% —MREWR R TEREERY
87 FRIEZFZENEBURMER -

HRAEEEERRTEEFSARERER LA
BRNZERKRER  AEEREERITZEER
B R EE AR E A RRE -

AEER2016FEEERITHE RN THE - 12
BARREETHMOEBRITZIRERIE - Z1RF
MOHERDAS R BRI EEHREERTT
REERMD T/RIE - B ETRG < BRAEF
FRENERLEERNDAZBRFEEEMSH
BRFEEETRMY - #BA/BENHEASE
EREERTHERR  AEERLEEERTE
EFEZ TRIZRGERLE 2 BIREE -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The Group’s shareholding interest in BOCQ, which is the Group’s
associate, decreased from 16.95% to 14.66% after BOCQ completed
its issuance of new H-shares by way of a placement (the “Share
Placement”) in December 2015.

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard No. 28,
“Investments in Associates”, an associate is an entity over which the
investor has significant influence, including the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions, without controlling the
management of the investee. Usually a holding of less than 20% is
presumed not to have significant influence, unless such influence can
be clearly demonstrated.

The Group’s interest in BOCQ has been accounted for as an associate
using the equity method as the Group has representation in the
Board of BOCQ, and the ability to participate in the decision making
process.

The reduction in the Group’s shareholding in BOCQ in 2015 is
treated as a deemed partial disposal of investment in BOCQ. The
loss arising from the deemed partial disposal is caused mainly by
the lowering in the net asset value per share of BOCQ immediately
after the completion of the Share Placement, as the net proceeds per
share on the new issue is lower than the net asset value per share
immediately before the Share Placement. With the partial disposal of
the Group’s interest in BOCQ having been recognised, the reduction
in the Group’s share of BOCQ net assets is accounted as a deemed
disposal loss.



(CABBEFThz5I7R)

B RARPoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
EIRFHIRE - FlRE B 0.32 T Interim dividend paid of HK$0.32
(20144 : 0.30/87T) (2014: HK$0.30) per ordinary share 107,224 100,523
BORREAIRE : AT AR 1.0087T Proposed final dividend of HK$1.00
(20144 : 0.95%87T) (2014: HK$0.95) per ordinary share 335,075 318,321
442,299 418,844
2015 2014
(%) (P&7T)
(HKS) (HK$)
FRAF Earnings per share
HIK Basic 5.81 5.29
BE Diluted 5.81 5.28

A% F A & ) Th ¥z R &2 $11,947,467,000 7 7T
(2014 4 : 1,726,887,000/8 ) M FNE EEITE
B D 2 INEF 19 £1335,075,100A% (2014 & :
326,670,891 %) 51 & -

% 5E & R T i B8 2 $11,947,467,000% 7T
(20144 : 1,726,887,000787C) R ERE 3HITE
RS 2 N Y5 £1335,254,509 A% (2014 4 -
326,837,953 %) Wik AT ¥ BB TE#EE R R
LT AFRHE -

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on earnings
of HK$1,947,467,000 (2014: HK$1,726,887,000) and the weighted
average number of 335,075,100 (2014: 326,670,891) ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

The calculation of fully diluted earnings per share is based on earnings
of HK$1,947,467,000 (2014: HK$1,726,887,000) and the weighted
average number of 335,254,509 (2014: 326,837,953) ordinary shares
in issue during the year after adjusting for the effect of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares.

2015 2014

IR & RERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 2,272,398 2,783,785
BRI RS HAE A0 Money at call and short notice 15,359,318 12,279,221
17,631,716 15,063,006
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(CABBEFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
FHIEEERENRE S ¢ Trading securities:
BEEES Debt securities
—&BEm - Listed in Hong Kong 58,398 243,944
—3EkT - Unlisted 8,513,996 6,606,418
8,572,394 6,850,362
s ES Equity securities:
— BB LM - Listed in Hong Kong 61,592 73,651
—BBINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 126,915 152,044
— kLT REEESZER - Unlisted, interests in
investment funds 5,403 6,460
193,910 232,155
HIEEBERBNESERE Total trading securities 8,766,304 7,082,517
EENAFEAZEEEZS) Financial assets designated at
AABEMEREE fair value through profit or loss:
BEES Debt securities:
— BB LM - Listed in Hong Kong 936,627 949,787
— BB ETH - Listed outside Hong Kong 2,965,456 3,055,237
—3EkT - Unlisted 3,603,684 2,662,318
7,505,767 6,667,342
S Equity securities:
— BB LT - Listed in Hong Kong 966,514 564,620
—BEBENAINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 1,075,113 1,286,724
—3ELET - Unlisted 1,453,392 1,108,877
3,495,019 2,960,221
EEAAFEF2AHES Total financial assets designated
STABRRMNEREERTE at fair value through profit or loss 11,000,786 9,627,563
FHEEERBEMZ S RIEEN Total trading securities and financial
AEEGE R ABR assets designated at fair value
Mo R EESRE through profit or loss 19,767,090 16,710,080
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(CABBEFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B RARPoE

2015 2014
BRETEBESFNE: Included within debt securities are:
-~ BREEFEEERESSFZ — Government bonds included in
BRES (ZRERSER) trading securities which are
cash equivalents 228,497 2,040,796
-~ BREEFEEERERZS — Government bonds included in
ZBISES trading securities 8,343,648 4,809,321
—HE M BFES - Other government bonds 396,841 905,012
— H i EHE S - Other debt securities 7,109,175 5,762,575
16,078,161 13,517,704
R2015F & 2014F12 A31H @ LitiFEEEH As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were no certificates of
BRYARNTEFE 2 BEBEF LGN R OER deposit held included in the above balances of trading or fair value
BEHGE o debt securities.
HIEEERARNEFRIEEANATFEFEREE Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair value

Pt ABEN SR EERBITRBRR ST

T

— R REF R RIRTT

—RNEHE
—RITREM SRS

—BE

— Central governments and
central banks

— Public sector entities

— Banks and other financial
institutions

— Corporate entities

through profit or loss are analysed by categories of issuers as follows:

8,968,986 7,755,129
77,047 8,386
1,333,728 1,002,089
9,387,329 7,944,476
19,767,090 16,710,080

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |

235



236

AR5 RRPoE

(CABREFThz5I7R)

R2015F 12 A31 BREBITETEAHZEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts

Re REAFEDT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2015 were as follows:
'R/
ZReH AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE 8
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
R SETETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRHEEHN Forward and futures contracts 81,542,810 271,834 (261,533)
AR HINE B Currency options purchased and written 55,811,598 572,596 (575,583)
0)FIETHETA b) Interest rate derivatives
FIEBE Interest rate futures 728,454 67 (2,061)
|5 Interest rate swaps 8,168,113 39,119 (128,419)
B A\ R ) 2R HR Interest rate options purchased and written 2,691,592 4,387 (4,045)
R) Em HTET A c) Equity derivatives
ARG R Equity options purchased and written 223,239 7,973 (7,924)
T)EEMITETR d) Credit derivatives
ERENRBAEN Credit default swaps 951,907 10,175 (1,738)
FEEERGZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held
BE/ (B8R A for trading 150,117,713 906,151 (981,303)
2) FEEHRRGEZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
R) BTN A FELH R ITHETR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
&I H Interest rate swaps 19,850,922 194,559 (340,795)
gl Currency swaps 1,234,871 = (178,493)
FEERARZTETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held
BE/ (B A for hedging 21,085,793 194,559 (519,288)
ERRZITERRMTE Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(8F) A assets/(liabilities) 171,203,506 1,100,710 (1,500,591)
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

R2014F 12 A1 HRBBEITETEA N ZEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

P e

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts

Re REAFET : and their fair values as of 31 December 2014 were as follows:
&/
| NEE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE BfE
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
R JETETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRHEEHN Forward and futures contracts 59,175,965 117,722 (124,732)
AR HIMNE B Currency options purchased and written 76,504,145 375,891 (375,854)
0)FIETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
FIEBE Interest rate futures 644,057 391 (284)
a5 Interest rate swaps 15,500,382 73,274 (208,437)
B8 A\ R ) 2R R Interest rate options purchased and written 2,608,075 11,404 (11,405)
R) #Em TET A c) Equity derivatives
ARG R Equity options purchased and written 333,644 10,000 (9,446)
T)EEMITATA d) Credit derivatives
ERENZIAEH Credit default swaps 1,760,470 26,496 (1,377)
FEEERGZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held
BE/ (B8R A for trading 156,526,738 615,178 (731,535)
2) FHEEHRRGZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
R) BTN A FELH R HTHETR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
GilEs bl Interest rate swaps 19,416,887 216,388 (385,094)
gl Currency swaps 1,319,385 = (100,489)
FEERARZTETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held
BE/(8F) A%t for hedging 20,736,272 216,388 (485,583)
ERRZITERRTIE Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(8F) At assets/(liabilities) 177,263,010 831,566 (1,217,118

BREMETAZATEREZEEEFHRAER

B (i) e -

The effect of bilateral netting agreements, where applicable, has been

taken into account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.
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BRRFARRET L2 EBFREERIZF
E2712A1REERBERIMNAR WEERBRINE
ER - 27T ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures as at 31 December without taking into account the effect
of bilateral netting arrangements that the Group entered into, are as

follows:

2015 2014

ERGH4 Exchange rate contracts 1,632,838 1,662,967
FIEEH Interest rate contracts 150,864 169,239
BEME4 Other contracts 40,976 64,424
1,824,678 1,896,630

BETEZANBRESERBSHRNORS
B W TIRKRERBEE

EERBRMERBLI2EFTECEREH 2GR
TR (BR)RADMFAEZHER  HEMB2H
BRI R ZHF KBRS QR RFIEME ©

TR R G R RRIE T AR E2.9 I FE

NS B R A AR R ig A = 2 A TE 9 SR
BIETEER R EYGRIBRERZ FHRE - AT
EEBIEAFREETAGZHOBENERAR
¥ h T A 2 W 25 457,750,000 JT (2014 4 -
/&8 /351,687,000 7T ) o ¥R IE B fE(h ¥R E
% 2 518 /566,951,00078 7T (2014 F : Yz A
26,610,000 7T) ° WFFEE 2FRME92
AAFEHTOEESR T A2 FWSEE ]
W °
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The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period. They
do not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the
counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note
2.9.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables
category, available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities
by fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The gains
on the hedging instruments were HK$57,750,000 (2014: losses of
HK$51,687,000). The losses on the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk were HK$66,951,000 (2014: gains of HK$26,610,000).
The net impact is disclosed in “Net gain/loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge” in Note 9.



(CABBEFThz5I7R)

B RARPoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
(EPNCE IS & T Loans and advances to individuals
—fEAR — Credit cards 4,706,017 4,057,656
—ZBE R - Mortgages 31,273,079 29,109,305
— H A - Others 9,729,001 8,660,111
EEREBK Loans and advances to corporate entities
—BHEXR - Term loans 29,150,773 29,903,231
—RIBER - Mortgages 16,016,536 14,074,495
—B5mE - Trade finance 7,986,955 7,135,572
—Hfh - Others 10,762,963 12,289,676
EEEREE Gross advances to customers 109,625,324 105,230,046
BS5EER Trade bills 6,469,899 7,384,057
HAh & 2= (FI5E36) Other assets (Note 36) 5,396,317 6,514,742
121,491,540 119,128,845
R : REZEE Less: impairment allowances
— &R F A - Individually assessed (347,538) (238,250)
— kR E R - Collectively assessed (367,229) (296,666)
(714,767) (534,916)
BHEERRHAMIERR Advances and other accounts 120,776,773 118,593,929
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(LA #EFTThIZIR)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

() EFERKBRREZRBEZERE (@)
BREHERXR

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
and advances to customers and trade bills

B - BRI

240

Impairment allowances - Individual assessment

RBEX Hith &t
Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBHAEEEZLE Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances to individuals
20141 B 1 BM&E SR Balance at 1 January 2014 218 1,674 1,892
REBE (%) /175 Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (768) 1,844 1,076
REBEETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible - (703) (703)
WEEAEEMEZER Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 768 693 1,461
201412 A31H At 31 December 2014 218 3,508 3,726
20151 B 1 BM& SR Balance at 1 January 2015 218 3,508 3,726
HEEE (E) /R Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (466) 2,309 1,843
REEBRERMEE Loans written off as uncollectible = (2,444) (2,444)
WEI B REEMH 2 ER Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 466 1,195 1,661
BB % R A% Exchange and other adjustments - ®) ®)
2015512 A31H At 31 December 2015 218 4,560 4,778
REEE-RETE
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
ERF RBEX Hith &t
Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBHAEEEZLE Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances to individuals
201441 A1 HEVEE & Balance at 1 January 2014 26,038 6,676 43,204 75,918
REEERE Impairment losses charged 53,727 3,718 139,283 196,728
KRELEBEETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (66,561) = (144,873) (211,434)
W R B REEMH 2 ER Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years 13,486 = 15,889 29,375
B R E iR Exchange and other adjustments - (29) &) (32)
201412 531 H At 31 December 2014 26,690 10,365 53,500 90,555
201541 A1 BE&EH Balance at 1 January 2015 26,690 10,365 53,500 90,555
HEEERE Impairment losses charged 45,703 18,361 168,171 232,235
KRELEEETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (63,448) - (182,068) (245,516)
W R B REEMHEZER Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years 18,123 - 20,216 38,339
B R E iR Exchange and other adjustments - (224) (26) (250)
2015512 A 31 At 31 December 2015 27,068 28,502 59,793 115,363
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(CABBEFThz5I7R)

() EFERKBRREZEBEZBRE

B RARPoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

BIRB HEREX @) and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
FERR - BRI
Impairment allowances-Individual assessment
AHER ERmE
Term BRER Trade Hth fit
loans Mortgages finance Others Total
LEERRBE Movement in impairment
HEER 2D allowances on loans and
advances to corporate entities
201441 A1 BEVEE Balance at 1 January 2014 93,989 1,290 113,761 33,362 242,402
REBRRE/(TF) Impairment losses charged!/(reversed) 68,052 (1,010) 142,687 17,704 227,433
ReEEEET MR Loans written off as uncollectible (122,907) - (114,316) (25,606) (262,829)
WEIEREFHSE 2 ER Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years 217 25 1,635 8,014 9,951
B AZ Exchange adjustments (2,001) - (938) - (2,939)
2014F12A31H At 31 December 2014 37,410 305 142,829 33,474 214,018
201551 A1 BMER Balance at 1 January 2015 37,410 305 142,829 33,474 214,018
FEEERE Impairment losses charged 84,555 1 97,825 34717 217,098
ReEEEET MR Loans written off as uncollectible (22,045) - (75,540) (19,898) (117,483)
WEIEREFHE 2 ER Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years 698 - 9,126 3,54 13,365
R REMHER Exchange and other adjustments (1,180) - (2,643) - (3,823)
2015%12A31H At 31 December 2015 99,438 306 171,597 51,834 323,175
HEERE-FETME
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
FHER EARE
Term BEEX Trade A fit
loans Mortgages finance Others Total
PEERRBE Movement in impairment
HEEEZ2H allowances on loans and
advances to corporate entities
2014F1 A1 BOER Balance at 1 January 2014 31,441 8,347 28,316 56,871 124,975
HEEEREE Impairment losses charged 27,125 5,859 40,769 13,419 87,172
A ERE TS Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (5,308) (5,308)
KEBREERE 2 ER Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years - - - 5 5
BRREMRE Exchange and other adjustments (492) - (%) (511) (1,009)
2014E12A31H At 31 December 2014 58,074 14,206 68,989 64,476 205,745
20151 A1 BEER Balance at 1 January 2015 58,074 14,206 68,989 64,476 205,745
HEBERE/(B%) Impairment losses
charged/(reversed) 31,489 15,762 (16,525) 29,560 60,286
AREREETHEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (11,696) (11,696)
WEBREERE &R Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years - - - 33 33
ESE L Exchange and other adjustments (1,823) - (406) (529) (2,758)
20155128310 At 31 December 2015 87,740 29,968 52,058 81,844 251,610
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(AR T2 7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
() Bt RN ERHEMERE 2 BB EMHEKRE (b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on
HERR accrued interest and other accounts

PESH RIS R E AR E
Accrued interest and
other accounts
B BB
AR 18 B AL

Impairment Impairment

allowances - allowances -
Collective Individual
assessment  assessment

EstRIS R EMmERE Movement in impairment allowances
HEEEZ2E on accrued interest and other accounts

201451 A1 B &R Balance at 1 January 2014 319 -
A B Impairment losses charged 47 20,506
2014612 A31H At 31 December 2014 366 20,506
20151 A1 BR& & Balance at 1 January 2015 366 20,506
Rl (B 5 18 [l Impairment losses reversed (110) -
B 5 R AR Exchange and other adjustments - (921)
201512831 H At 31 December 2015 256 19,585
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(M) BEEEFERRBRCHEHERE
IBRINTE -

EFERLBNEEREREMAERAARENR
EFMZEBANMERTER ZRHBEREF
# o ANRBABRAREERREEER - U@\
EBEZHEEE -

B RARPoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(c) Loans and advances to customers include finance
lease receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The
contracts have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased asset
at nominal value at the end of the lease period.

2015 2014
REERMERE 2 RN ARERE Gross investment in finance
lease receivable:
1F AR Not later than 1 year 2,640,295 2,701,878
1FAEES5F Later than 1 year and not later
than 5 years 3,694,792 4,066,931
5 F Later than 5 years 1,336,971 2,406,979

BMEMEZ REERZ#ERA

RMEHEREFE

MEMEREFBRZOMAT

1ELAR
1FNEE5F

5 LA F

R2015F12 A31H @ Ll EH SR E~EE
AR A EERFIBREE (2014 F : £) o

R2015F 12 A31H ' AEBEZEFRBELEER
FEAWE i EHERBERIEHNEEEF A
45,415,000 7T (2014 4F : 34,002,000 7T ) °

7,672,058 9,175,788

Unearned future finance income
on finance leases (708,387) (1,045,112)

Net investment in finance leases 6,963,671 8,130,676

The net investment in finance
leases is analysed as follows:

Not later than 1 year 2,399,057 2,415,545
Later than 1 year and not later

than 5 years 3,426,844 3,696,568
Later than 5 years 1,137,770 2,018,563

6,963,671 8,130,676

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
Nil).

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included

in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2015 of the Group
amounted to HK$45,415,000 (2014: HK$34,002,000).
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(AR F o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2015 2014
BRES Debt securities:
—&B/ELE™ - Listed in Hong Kong 12,724,190 11,929,660
—BBLINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 9,060,290 9,151,353
—3 — Unlisted 1,989,770 1,920,824

23,774,250 23,001,837

SRS Equity securities:
—&BEm - Listed in Hong Kong 391,038 342,366
—BBINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 47,662 83,297
—3EE — Unlisted 320,869 297,003
759,569 722,666
AN EE AR Total available-for-sale securities 24,533,819 23,724,503
3 Note:
R2015F 2014612 A31 H @ LilEREHIRE &5k As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were no certificates of deposit held
A B IERF A T 508 © included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.
Al N E B H IR TIRE Available-for-sale securities are
RIS T analysed by categories of
issuers as follows:
— R ET A R ERFT — Central governments and
central banks 3,848,200 2,535,358
— DA - Public sector entities 500,463 198,916
—RIT R EH A & RIS - Banks and other financial
institutions 4,158,534 5,187,382
— 1% — Corporate entities 16,024,094 15,800,319
— HApth — Others 2,528 2,528

24,533,819 23,724,503
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(AR F o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2015 2014
BEEES Debt securities:
—&B/ELE™ - Listed in Hong Kong 2,384,910 2,255,635
—BBLINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 4,441,722 5,234,147
—3ELT - Unlisted 3,872,227 3,557,419

10,698,859 11,047,201

BREEBKES Included within debt securities are:
— 5B 17 50E — Certificates of deposit held 1,177,533 1,947,377
—H b ERE S — Other debt securities 9,521,326 9,099,824
10,698,859 11,047,201
FED B IREITHE Held-to-maturity securities are
HRIDMTIT : analysed by categories of
issuers as follows:
— FR R R R R ERAT - Central governments and
central banks 2,436,484 1,219,264
— RNEIE - Public sector entities 3,912 19,923
— RAT R E Ath & R - Banks and other financial
institutions 3,673,686 4,993,341
— 1 - Corporate entities 4,584,777 4,814,673

10,698,859 11,047,201
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BRI oE

(CABREFThz5I7R)

REBRBZE2015F 12 A1 BIEFEAN LS
MAOBEMSREE -

REE2014F12 A BIEFEAR » NEBEEH
DETIERERE -

() Efo BMEEEERRERREERR
ZREREZATHHEER

R2014F6 A5H @ AEBE B EZRKLEWTIELE
RIEFT D BATE RIS 2% B B 18 Bl I 7
AERAAHRHEERZEFHEE -

ZECMEEREN P BEAZAFEREERES
711 /5828,504,0005% 7T )2 873,550,000 7T © EFT
DERRFE 4 2 A TEEE 45,046,000 8 T2 I
Hih 2 ERES o

() EFFBEETIHEHERSFARZRE
M20145F6 26 - ASEEFHHEE THEEN
SRS T {E 5 4,378,815,000 8 7T 2 Al 1 &
BEEBLFAHEZIHES  REAEEENFE
ZEEBEHFZEREDE o

RIeREEERAA |

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The Group did not reclassify any financial assets in the year ended 31
December 2015.

In the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group made the following
reclassification of financial assets.

(@) Reclassification of investments in securities included in
the loans and receivables category to the available-for-
sale category

On 5 June 2014, the Group reclassified all investments in securities
included in the loans and receivable category that qualified for
recognition as available-for-sale out of the loans and receivables
category.

The fair value and carrying value of these financial assets at the
date of reclassification were HK$828,504,000 and HK$873,550,000
respectively. The fair value loss of HK$45,046,000 generated upon the
reclassification had been taken to other comprehensive income.

(b) Reclassification of certain available-for-sale securities
as held-to-maturity securities

On 26 June 2014, the Group reclassified certain available-for-sale
debt securities with a total market value at the time of reclassification
of HK$4,378,815,000 as held-to-maturity securities, reflecting
a change in the Group’s intention on holding these securities to
maturity.



(CAE¥EFThz5I7R)

P E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
EREEFE Share of net assets 3,754,594 3,402,295
EES Goodwill 344,623 344,623
A&F Total 4,099,217 3,746,918

2015 2014

1818 At 1 January 3,746,918 3,304,993

FEIERRTIIE 34 Share of results, net of tax 665,942 602,299
FE(EBR TR I E BAFEE Share of investment revaluation

reserve, net of tax 59,793 43,644

BRI EZ B8 Loss on deemed disposal (47,617) -

BUARE Dividend received (158,071) (129,187)

MEHER Exchange differences (167,748) (74,831)

12 A31H At 31 December 4,099,217 3,746,918

R2015F K2014F12 A31 HZBE R Al 2 £ &
BRanT

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31

December 2015 and 2014:

FEf R & E i B FEXEK FribEE B D
£ Place of incorporation Principal Percentage of interest
Name and operation activities in ownership

2015 2014
BEIRIT R AR HEAE #]RIT
Bank of Chongqging People’s Republic of China Banking 14.66% 16.95%
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(AR F o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

() ERRTZREMBER

EERTZEATET2ERAHE12A318 - #E
20154 220144512 A31 B IFFEHR - A&E
REZ 201512 A31 H 2014612 A31 HIE

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.
For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group included
the results of BOCQ on the basis of financial statements made up to

248

12 2 HBHREREBEEFRITIER -

the 12 months to 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

2015 F 2014 5
12A31H 12531 H
At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
EERTZEEEENNEEER Selected balance sheet information
of BOCQ
& KRR RIBITHAEER Cash and balances with central banks 45,592,990 44,609,051
R E IR 1T N & BhirE Due from other banks and
financial institutions 54,729,387 67,989,236
BEEERNBR Loans and advances to customers 145,386,839 130,100,237
HEthemEE Other financial assets 129,026,511 94,690,965
HmmEE Other assets 6,952,227 5,660,511
BEAGT Total assets 381,687,954 343,050,000
FEEAEIT N & BiE Due to other banks and financial
institutions 87,405,976 102,010,776
BPFHR Customer deposits 237,861,211 209,845,853
HEfepaE Other financial liabilities 22,068,534 4,729,774
HEHmteE Other liabilities 8,939,236 6,591,418
BEAE Total liabilities 356,274,957 323,177,821
AR Total equity 25,412,997 19,872,179

EERITZBIRE S A FTERAMBITAS MR
RAZEEESRSK

RITRITRIGRRE DA

Reconciliation of BOCQ’s total shareholders’ equity to the carrying

amount in DSB’s consolidated financial statements

DSB’s share of total

shareholders’ equity 3,726,753 3,368,619

o R ZEERATFERE Add: Goodwill and fair value
adjustment at acquisition 372,464 378,299
BEHEE Carrying amount 4,099,217 3,746,918
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(CABBEFThz5I7R)

() EERTZREMBER @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B RARPoE

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

BE12ABLFE
For the year ended

31 December

2015 2014

ERIRITERBGEEREER Selected income statement
information of BOCQ

M BIA Net interest income 8,631,850 7,832,779
F RIS B A2 WA Net fee and commission income 1,863,993 1,142,352
BEREEER Loan impairment charges (1,399,548) (1,118,118)
TEREHER Depreciation and amortisation (189,022) (171,951)
FIEX Tax expense (1,355,857) (1,210,584)
FE Profit for the year 3,907,913 3,553,508
Hib 2wl Other comprehensive income 367,227 254,628
2HE =B Total comprehensive income 4,275,140 3,808,136
BREERITRE Dividends received from BOCQ 158,071 129,187
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(CABBEFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
JELETRRL)  HRAKAR Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FEIE B A R Share of post-acquisition reserves 51,119 45,694
71,119 65,694
R2015F 2014412 A 31 By [EII2E 4| FEE The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December
T 2015 and 2014:
HHEEEZEDL
FEEBRCE I Percentage of
=28 = ith 2h Principal activities and effective interest
Name Place of incorporation place of operation in ownership
IREFIEIRB R A ) BE TEER - BB
Bank Consortium Hong Kong Investment holding, 13.333%
Holding Limited Hong Kong
IREHMEEAMRAR] BE BELEK - BE
Bank Consortium Trust Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund 13.333%
Company Limited business, Hong Kong
RS RARAA BB BETEK 'R
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund 13.333%
business, Hong Kong
REBERBIERAR AR Z R BB AR K The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held by
FTIRITIA - MR EE AR AR KRB EFA DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust Company
BRARTREIERAER AR Z 2 BN B AT] - Limited and BCT Financial Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries

RFeREEERAA |
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(CABBEFThz5I7R)

MR2015F12 A31 8 ' ARRIZHBARWMT :

B RARPoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The following is a list of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31

December 2015:

FrERBED BRTEBRERA

T Percentage of shares held Particulars of

ARER TEER Place of B B issued ordinary

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly share capital
REABITERRRAR" RAER B

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong 74.6% - HK$6,850,353,710
RHCEBRAF RERR B

Dah Sing Company Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% = HK$1,000,000
AFRIR (1976) BB AR —RiRR BB

Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited General insurance Hong Kong 100% - HK$196,000,000
BEX BRE

Dah Sing Holdings Limited Inactive Bermuda 100% - US$100,000
AHFRBRREERAT] RigHR B

Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited Insurance agency Hong Kong 100% = HK$500,000
ARG ER A R IR 25

Dah Sing Insurance Services Limited Insurance services Hong Kong 100% - HK$10,000,000
REZER FaE

Dah Sing International Limited Investment holding Bermuda 100% - US$100,000
RIASRRERAF ASRER BRE

Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited Life assurance Bermuda 100% = US$25,000,000
BEZ RERAHS

Dah Sing Medical Science Investment Incorporated Inactive British Virgin Islands 100% - US$50,000
BEZ &

Dah Sing Secretarial Services Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$2
mEZ B

DSE Investment Services Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$1,000,000

(Note () (£ (F))

mEZ BE

Filey Investment Corporation Inactive Panama 100% = Us$2
NERE RERAHE

High Standard Investment Ltd. Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% = Uss$2
MKEREBRAT BEX BB

Newinner Investments Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$2
RERBERRF meZ BRE

Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited Inactive Bermuda 100% = HK$51,000,000

(Note (b)) (&#(Z2,))

me% )

WOF Escrow Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$25,000,000
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(CABBEFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FrERBED BRTEBRERA

T Percentage of shares held Particulars of

ARER TEER Place of B B issued ordinary

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly share capital
EEERAT RERR 0

World Prosper Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% - HK$1
REEMR RERAHS

Upway Wealth International Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% = US$1
BEZ FERAME

Cycle Chance Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands 100% = Uss$2
BEZ B

DSFH Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$2
RERMR RERAHS

DSGI (1) Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands = 100% US$t
REER FERAHE

DSLI (BVI) (1) Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
RERR EERAHS

DSLI (2) Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
REEMR RERAHS

DSMI Group Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands = 100% URLY
EEEXERLA BEZ BB

Luen Fung Investment Company, Limited Inactive Hong Kong = 100% HK$303,000
BRRRRINERAR —RiRR RFI

Macau Insurance Company Limited General insurance Macau - 96% MOP120,000,000
BPASREROERAR AERE B

Macau Life Insurance Company Limited Life Insurance Macau = 96% MOP92,000,000
AHFBRTRRLT ;AT 205

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$6,200,000,000
RERAT (P E) BRAR #17 i AR HAHE

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China - 74.6% RMB1,200,000,000
L (1931) BRAR BER Bk

MEVAS (1931) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$400,000,000
RPBERTROBRA ;AT il

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau - 74.6% MOP225,000,000
BEZ A

Channel Winner Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
AHERERERAT] mEZ B

Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited Inactive Hong Kong = 74.6% HK$20
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B RARPoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FrERBED BRTEBRERA

T Percentage of shares held Particulars of

ARER TEER Place of B B issued ordinary

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly share capital
REGHERRF BEX 0

Dah Sing Finance Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$25,000,000
AHRBRERERAR RiR &R B

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong = 74.6% HK$200,000
BE FERAME

Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
REEFABRAF REART 0

Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$100,000
REER B

Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$9,998
BEZ FERAME

Dah Sing SAR Financing Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
RERR &

DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$1
RER B

DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong = 74.6% HKS$1
BEZ FERAME

DSLI (1) Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
RAEHBRAF EHEE 0

Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$10,000,000
mEZ B

MEVAS Nominees Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$50,000
LRENH (BE) BRAR BEZ BB

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$450,000,000
ZHRBERAA R &

OK Finance Limited Money Lending Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$1,000
MERE RERAHS

Dragon Tiger Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 74.6% Us$2
NERE RERAAS

Estoril Court Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.6% Uss$2
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(CABBEFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FrERBED BRTEBRERA

T Percentage of shares held Particulars of

ARER TEER Place of B B issued ordinary

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly share capital
nERE EERAHS

Grandmart Investments Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$2
BEBRAF WERE RERAHS

River Long Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 74.6% Us$2
MOBEEBRAT BEZ BB

Modern World Holdings Limited Inactive Hong Kong = 74.6% HK$1
MNEERBERARA BEX B

Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$1
mEZ RERAHS

Shinning Bloom Investments Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands = 74.6% US$1
NERE FERAHE

Skill Sino Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.6% Uss$2
BEBRAT NERE EERAHS

Solar China Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$2
ERE RERAHS

Superb Future Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 74.6% Uss$2
RARM FERAHE

South Development Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
NERE A

Talent Union Holding Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$2
HEREBRAF ERE B

Vanishing Border Investment Services Limited Property investment Hong Kong = 74.6% HK$20
NERE RERAAE

Well Idea Enterprises Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
NERE A

Wise Measure Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
ERE RERAHS

Reliable Associates Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 74.6% US$1

(Note (c)) (£ (/%))

mEZ REAS

D.A.H. Hambros (Channel Islands) Limited Inactive Guernsey - 56.3% US$15,000
REAR BRE

D.A.H. Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda - 56.3% US$1,000,000

* EERBBMERZMBERAR LT
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BAFIRITEBERRABRAFRITERAFZ
NEBRARIN » EaprBE ARG R/IA LRI
TR & E LASNG 77 TR M AR SL - B R BB R
FXAZ 2 LA RIRR A AELL o

BRAFTIRTT (R E) BRAA  RFIR S IRITIRG
BMRA7] - D. A. H. Hambros (Channel Islands)
Limited  JRPIREZ AR B R R 7 KR A SRR
A&7 B BR A R K k3t 51| BB FE 8 LA SN B 32 Y
NESN R BHETERLE o

ARFERTT(FRE) BR AR 2008 F 7 BEFER

AL - EARR AR EE A R FME 20548 1

BIBRAR] (BHAE  BAIRMI2ED

&) e

2K

(F7) DSE Investment Services Limited [ 317 & @ A%
AN - IREEITH(E 700 B TTH B AR

(Z) 12015F7 A14 BHKE B8)ER8 NREA ©

(A)  RFIRTTN2015F2 H4H REREEMB AT -

B RARPoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Except for Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and Dah Sing Bank,
Limited which are public limited companies, all the above companies
are private companies or, if incorporated outside Hong Kong, have
substantially the same characteristics as a Hong Kong incorporated

private company.

Except for Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A., D.A.H. Hambros (Channel Islands) Limited, Macau
Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company Limited,
and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified above, all
other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China.

Note:
(a) In addition to the ordinary shares issued by DSE Investment Services
Limited, it also has preference shares in issue totalling HK$700.

(b) Dissolved by members’ voluntary liquidation on 14 July 2015.

(c) Acquired as a wholly owned subsidiary of DSB on 4 February 2015.
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BOVER BFBE
& BV&E Bl EE
BREE Core  Customer
HE Contract deposit  relationship ik &%
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
KA Cost
2015F1 A18 R At 1 January 2015 and
20155 12A 318 31 December 2015 950,992 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,208,257
2RERE/ A Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
20151 A1A At 1 January 2015 - 26,499 80,583 65,664 - 172,746
ERX M (H13) Charge for the year (Note 13) - - - 2,039 - 2,039
20155124318 At 31 December 2015 - 26,499 80,583 67,703 - 174,785
REE Carrying value
2015612831 R At 31 December 2015 950,992 - - 1,553 80,927 1,033,472
B EF@E
af B AE BV AR
mlEE Core Customer
G Contract deposit  relationship ki =H
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
KA Cost
201451R18K At 1 January 2014 and
2014512310 31 December 2014 950,992 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,208,257
B4V £ Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
201451A1H At 1 January 2014 - 26,499 80,583 61,953 - 169,035
ERXM (HE13) Charge for the year (Note 13) - - - 3,711 - 3,711
2014512310 At 31 December 2014 - 26,499 80,583 65,664 - 172,746
REE Carrying value
2014F12 8310 At 31 December 2014 950,992 - - 3,592 80,927 1,035,511
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

P E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BFERHEREREERESY ROEALE Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core
FPRAREREESIUGEREBAZRENFES5E12 deposit intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are
FOAEREE - S AEFRIARTEEF amortised over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a

R R (B B 1B AR AR RR

br REFEEEY diminishing balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of

7~ © indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment loss.
EESEERERNLEERERE —BOEED Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
BEERRACZEHESEASN([BEEALSEN]) - B identified according to business segments in line with the internal
BAOMMEZI|AT management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.
2014512 A 31 HKX2015%12H 31 H
At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015
BRRIT B A SBAT BIMRIT
Commercial Personal Overseas R &5t
Banking Banking Banking Insurance Total
B Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - - 318,667
R Macau - - 493,023 139,302 632,325
196,478 122,189 493,023 139,302 950,992
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(CABBEFThz5I7R)

HEEBFERENR  HERBFAEZFERE
EMEEZHRCELEMNADIRSEE - ZaTHIE
FaEEEEEABMGS - A5G E 2 TEAR
e KERBASFEREXBNEEFER
K% R ESFIUEE KR - Z5FTEHES
BERABENREHBERSELEMZEBR
Z TSR TERI R B A BB (B R 2 ARG P AR 4 o
FrER MR EDNEERAEERERITEERS
WG EEBMNZEEEBIER 2 &R AINRET
HEY - RITEFRSELBM IR EA10.9%
(20144 : 9.7%) - MRBEBRESEELEEL 2
BRIR X 7310.2% (2014 4F - 8.8%) °

BREFETIREARDEA2RAREBR
S B EMERE (RITEBRI% - REER
R2%) R AR BAET &I 2 TR - B AR EF 15
RE2%HRIBSFIARENGE o FREMZBIRE
THEERAEE R HIRITEE 2 BRI
B8 ZARFRET 2 EBERMN F10.2%
%10.9% (20144 : 8.8% £ 9.7%) 2 °

AEEIWEEREERE R 2R ERE (2014
FE)-
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections
prepared by the Senior Management based on a 5-year business plan,
taking into account projected annual growth rate, and in perpetuity
with 2% constant growth rate after the fifth year. The 5-year business
plan was developed by the Senior Management based on their
evaluation of the businesses of the relevant CGU and the conditions
in which such businesses will operate over the projected period. The
discount rate used is based on the Group’s and its Banking Group’s
weighted average cost of capital depending on type of businesses
carried out by CGU, which are 10.9% (2014: 9.7%) for CGU under
banking business and 10.2% (2014: 8.8%) for CGU under insurance
business.

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rates of 3% for banking business and 2% for insurance
business with reference to similar business transactions, projected
revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2% constant
growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate in the range of 10.2%
to 10.9% (2014: 8.8% to 9.7%) used is based on the Group’s and its
Banking Group’s weighted average cost of capital depending on type
of businesses carried out.

No impairment losses on goodwill and trade name were identified in
the year (2014: Nil).



(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

P E

B
BERAE
Furniture,
equipment
TE and motor At
Premises vehicles Total
HZE2014F12 A1 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2014
FUREFE Opening net book amount 1,714,702 432,904 2,147,606
i Additions - 158,873 158,873
EMABOTERREME Reclassification from premises
to investment properties (66,966) - (66,966)
HE Disposals = (3,391) (3,391)
FES L (ME13) Depreciation charge (Note 13) (41,191) (116,148) (157,339)
N ER Exchange difference (3,325) (1,400) (4,725)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 1,603,220 470,838 2,074,058
201412 A31 8 At 31 December 2014
BN Cost 1,933,833 1,009,339 2,943,172
ZEME Accumulated depreciation (330,613) (538,501) (869,114)
BREFE Net book amount 1,603,220 470,838 2,074,058
HBZE2015F12A31 HLEEE Year ended 31 December 2015
FOREFE Opening net book amount 1,603,220 470,838 2,074,058
g Additions 233,281 110,057 343,338
BENMABOTERRENE Reclassification from premises
to investment properties (10,507) - (10,507)
HE Disposals - (1,464) (1,464)
FES L (HF13) Depreciation charge (Note 13) (46,853) (127,961) (174,814)
EHER Exchange difference (5,878) (2,268) (8,146)
FRREFE Closing net book amount 1,773,263 449,202 2,222,465
2015512831 H At 31 December 2015
D Cost 2,489,642 1,056,357 3,545,999
2RENE Accumulated depreciation (716,379) (607,155)  (1,323,534)
BREFE Net book amount 1,773,263 449,202 2,222,465
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

TEZEOFERRE : The net book value of premises comprises:
2015 2014
THfEH Leaseholds
EERFA 2 FEHEL Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(fE10E50F 2 M) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,419,864 1,233,797
FEBBLAINGE 2 R EAEL Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(FE10E50F 2 M) term lease (between 10-50 years) 353,399 369,423
1,773,263 1,603,220
2015 2014
1A1H At 1 January 786,703 589,965
g Additions 162,924 -
BN BTERBREME Reclassification from premises to
investment properties 11,900 103,499
BHATEEER), MW Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation (74,863) 93,239
12A31H At 31 December 886,664 786,703
SR REFERE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
2015 2014
TRfEth Leaseholds
EERFA 2 FEHEL Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E10E50F 2 ) lease (between 10-50 years) 679,875 562,475
TEERLAINE A 2 EITEAY Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(FE10250F 2 ) term lease (between 10-50 years) 206,789 224,228
886,664 786,703

RFeREEERAA |
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() sTEREMEZ D FE

ANEB N 201545 K 201412 A31 B AR EY
EREEETTEM o AT H BB BT
EME-—ARFHEH (HEREEER) BRAR
BANRBEARPEBEANZ MERE — KR
CRF) BRARABMMNBRM 2 MELRERLE S
ERBARBEEECFEAR 25 Z AU ER
T AR A AC B IRHETT ©

THEE AL EEER - RRELUBRE
HAIE 1SR ATEF B 2 AT EEH—HR
B ARTHEREN S 2 RANRENDEA

EHEREMENEER  HF—HEEEKER
KEBRHE - 2 RENERNEFHR) RE
BATEERHEEMER  FIBREZBENTE
F75,R 10,2508 7T (20144 : 10,5008 70) EF
77 1R 123,80078 7T (2014 4F : 350,00078 7T ) ©
HEBUERN TREEZIREYE 2 A AR
EEHEEESLARED - RZIFA ©

REMEDBRAESTBUHRELLF 1357
(R HERE)T A THESRHE IR -

P E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2015 and 2014 by adopting the direct comparison approach or
the income capitalisation approach and with reference to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional
Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment
properties in Macau.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the
property from the perspective of market participants.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was
the unit sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual
factors such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from
HK$10,250 (2014: HK$10,500) to HK$123,800 (2014: HK$350,000)
per square foot. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in decrease
in fair value measurement of the investment properties by the same
percentage and vice versa.

Investment properties are classified as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”.
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(2) DRHESERPFEIRBI 2 AFEFAEY

fR=
TRHANERBEERTABRRIBEZHEE
BEIRR 2R EMEF EN R EREIT R
HiR 2 Fl A e B 2 18R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(b) Reconciliation of fair value measurement in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy

The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement
between opening and closing balances of Level 3 investment
properties, measured at fair value using a valuation technique with
significant unobservable inputs:

2015 2014
1A1H At 1 January 786,703 589,965
Fig Additions 162,924 -

ENDBRITERREDE

— B BATEZREFE

—EfBBBATEEGEHRE

NFE (BB,

12 A31H

RERBEZEEAETMR SRR

LRI W E 1B

— M EBHF AR

RERBEZEEERERT A ZAR
BRI

—~FE(ER), s

RFeREEERAA |

Reclassification from premises
to investment properties
— Net book value of premises
reclassified 10,507 66,966
— Surplus on revaluation credited

to premises revaluation reserve

1,393 36,533
11,900 103,499
Fair value (losses)/gains (74,863) 93,239
At 31 December 886,664 786,703
Unrealised gains or losses recognised
in comprehensive income statement
relating to those assets held
at the end of the year
— Net surplus on property revaluation 1,393 36,533
Unrealised gains or losses recognised in
income statement relating to those
assets held at the end of the year
— Fair value (losses)/gains (74,863) 93,239
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(R) RS 3IRBI A FEFEL EZNER (c)

fHER %

Valuation technique(s)

P E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

IR E97A
Unobservable input(s)

#E
Range

REWE WAREBELSE

Investment properties Income capitalisation

approach

MNRAREBEENTZEERFEZERE
M BREZBRFRAREEELR
REBZEVMEIHBETERRBEAZ
ENET e AP EFERTISHEEKIER
BEE - EmskaxiaRREE -

miEER (EHRKEE)

Market yields
(reversionary yield)

misHE

Market rental

1.90% £ 3.50%

(20144 : 2.80% = 3.50% )

1.90% to 3.50%

(2014: 2.80% to 3.50%)

BEAR26ETEL00ET

(20145 : FEAFR27BTLE10457T)
HK$26 to HK$800 per square foot

(2014: HK$27 to HK$104 per square foot)

inversely correlated to the market yields.

For investment properties of which the fair value is determined using
the income capitalisation approach, the assessment is conducted
on the basis of capitalisation of net incomes with due allowance
for outgoings and reversionary income potential. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the market rental and

2015 2014

1A1H At 1 January 2,018,068 1,705,616
FNFTIREEE 2 BN Additions from current year

new business 217,125 326,346

SREBERRE 2 F Movement from in-force business (25,786) (81,926)

HAth Others (42,712) 68,032

12 A31H At 31 December 2,166,695 2,018,068

2015 2014

DIREE Reinsurance assets 1,558,623 1,392,927

EUFIAENTEMNTER Accounts receivable and prepayments 2,718,841 3,981,690

FEETIRA Accrued income 789,555 807,868

Hh Others 329,298 332,257

5,396,317 6,514,742
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014

HEBEREREEES Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 6,270,630 5,597,614
2015 2014
VB HIT SR R A 2R AT 30 Demand deposits and current accounts 35,354,273 24,930,707
RETR Savings deposits 21,824,364 26,163,282
EH - BANEBER Time, call and notice deposits 92,085,560 89,822,646
149,264,197 140,916,635

EEFA&BBEWIFIEADERET A B
EYEZER R 2 FR 7,178,000 7T (2014 4 -
14,329,000787T) °

BREH - B KEHERN
ERERIFR

A B & P ER

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$7,178,000 (2014:

HK$14,329,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments under

import letters of credit.

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits

carry variable interest rates.

2015 2014

R A = @ g T A T ESI R At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 4,361,923 4,990,231
TREERR A AN BR At amortised cost 1,869,914 1,119,546
6,231,837 6,109,777

20154 20146 - AKER BRI
BT ERE BTFREANATE 8BRS
B3t A -

AEBEIFEBTHEREDHRIRE QRN

SRR _EATSI 2 BRE{E{K 8,000,000 T (2014
£ : 53,000,000/87T) °

RFeREEERAA |

During 2015 and 2014, the Group did not designate on initial

recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through

profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$8 million

lower (2014: HK$3 million higher) than the above carrying amount.
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P E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
225,000,000 7T 7 2020 4 F| Hi A US$225,000,000 Subordinated
ELREREGE(R)) Fixed Rate Notes due 2020
(Note (a)) 1,854,011 1,874,681
200,000,000 E 7Tk ATE REEER (72 (2)) US$200,000,000 Perpetual
Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes (Note (b)) 448,814 469,056
225,000,000 $7A03# T 74 2022 F EI HR Y $$225,000,000 Subordinated
ELREREGE(R)) Fixed Rate Notes due 2022
(Note (c) 1,223,184 1,301,352
225,000,000 7T/ 2024 4 F HifY US$225,000,000 Subordinated
ELBEREGE(T)) Fixed Rate Notes due 2024
(Note (d)) 1,753,331 1,746,268
5,279,340 5,391,357
R A= @ g T A T ESI R At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 4,830,526 4,922,301
TREERR AN AN T BR At amortised cost 448,814 469,056
5,279,340 5,391,357

R2015F 2014 F K » AEE KRG R VIR ER
BHETIMERERBABAATFATELLES:T
AdBz5 °

During 2015 and 2014, the Group did not designate on initial
recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.
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it

(%)

(A)

b T3 K 37 iR 17 R201062A 118 ¥ 17 2
225,000,000 T 7E T M X 5 Fr ([ FT R AT )
EWWWREAMME RN E SBESS (&
1) o IWEEREN 20202 A 11 BE|H - F£8
/6.625% + FEFMB—IK o RFRTMEHR
—BIRRITEI MR HI A LB ER A E 72
BB AUETRITRER B AR ZENF S

Eo
A °

bt T3 K 37 SR 17 R 20072 A168 1T 2
200,000,000 E LA FT AT EM W HRE F=E
MiInE AR A E BB EER ([EF]) - LEE
2 IRBHEEH A2017F2 8170 - A%1TH
ZHERUEEER  F8/56.253% ' B¥FN
Bk Hig - wEBRECEREEREAED -
AHEOFMESEETASMEABETRITRERS
1908 F - EEBEBSERELMAE - KFT
SRITRAI AR IR R A sk BB 5 AR B A 5K
ANAZEEERLANE (FEHH) & - KRR
B E—BFRRTTE] M A R H A L S B E
EFEERAUETRITAEREAERN TS
B

2010 F K% 2009 F © KFIRITHRKILFER S5
MR RBHREUITEELNREZEASEES R A
75,000,000 7T }2.70,000,0003% 7T 2 S0 (&7
MmMBBZEOBRERESEELER AL
BT -

it J5 K ¥ 8B 1T 201262 A8R % 1T 2
225,000,000 7 AN 3% T AE 722 B £ RE A
MinE AR E SR EER ((EB]) - LEEKE
202242 A9 EIH - #IZHEE B A2017
F2A90 - AFITHEHREBHEER §5
£4.875%  BEFEMFBE—Kk - Hi% - HEBEK
EREMEERED TN ESETAER
SEMF MM TEIERINI7T6 % T - ZEBE
BEE RIELIE - KFBITARBIZHEEER
FARBEARFENKBUREEEBER S
(FEEBM ) BT o RITIRITINE B2 — EPRERITEI L
FR s G LG ES R EE A B i A A E TR
TRZEFRSAEROFBF SR -

RFeREEERAA |

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Note:

This represents US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of DSB issued on 11 February 2010
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Trading
Limited (“SGX”). The Notes will mature on 11 February 2020. Interest at
6.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually. An interest rate swap contract to
swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate
based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international bank.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper supplementary capital of DSB issued on 16
February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes
carry an optional redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at
6.253% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus
190 basis points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the
HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the
optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment
date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment
liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been
entered into with an international bank.

In 2010 and 2009, DSB repurchased a portion of the Notes with a total
notional principal of US$75,000,000 and US$70,000,000 respectively
at a discount after unwinding an identical notional amount of interest
rate swap. Such repurchased Notes were cancelled after receiving prior
approval of the HKMA.

This represents S$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of DSB issued on 8 February 2012
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature on 9
February 2022 with an optional redemption date falling on 9 February
2017. Interest at 4.875% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year Singapore Dollar swap rate plus 376 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.



(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

i ()

(T)

It T3 K 37 SR 17 R 201441 A298 % 17 2
225,000,000 % TTIE B BB E R 5 AR QA
(TEBXRSA]) LT RGAEEBBE Il MR
EAZMERNI0FHE SRERERS (&
(7B PEBCRITE (BR) RADZEFK) - 1F
BEREHR2024F1 A20 A E|H - iIRIBHEER A
2019F1A298 - ABFTEEZEEREEER -
FRR5.25%  BY¥ERE—K - Hig  WHEK
KREREMEERED  ARNFESETAE
FroF BB EEH SR MI752F - BESBE
BeE RTELRAE - RRITAIRNERMEERH
FABEEARFENRAUEEEEED RS
(GEEB P ) B o RFTIRITINE B —ERRIRITEI L
F s By & A IS B 8 EE A S R AR TR
TREFEAERRZEF S -

AEFEENLSEERHIBBRANENNSE
B A F A5l 2 BR M E 1K 169,000,00075 7T (2014
£ : 1£197,000,000 77T ) °

P E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Note: (Continued)

(C)]

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year
Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB
(subject to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong)
issued on 29 January 2014 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 29
January 2024 with an optional redemption date falling on 29 January
2019. Interest at 5.25% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are
not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear
interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 375 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$169 million

lower (2014: HK$197 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

2015 2014

REeH o EMmaE Other liabilities under
insurance contracts 2,564,532 2,427,038
HAth Others 3,221,367 3,544,263
5,785,899 5,971,301
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Other liabilities under insurance contracts are analysed below:

2015
PR EE
#%8  Reinsurers’ FE
Gross Share Net
—RAREE General Insurance
RAJBRENZ AR B R Unearned premium reserve 391,151 (214,848) 176,303
BEE2RCRE Notified claims 477,355 (231,647) 245,708
FERMNERERZRE Claims incurred but not reported 163,373 (61,053) 102,320
R B B 2 7 Unexpired risk reserve 6,640 74 6,714
1,038,519 (507,474) 531,045
107 Life
REEES Policy provisions 1,526,013 (23,610) 1,502,403
&% Total 2,564,532 (531,084) 2,033,448
—RAREE General Insurance
AR AT BRER 2 1R B (1 Unearned premium reserve
1H1H At 1 January 433,414 (232,853) 200,561
REBRA Written premiums 588,573 (328,870) 259,703
BRI IRE Earned premiums (630,836) 346,875 (283,961)
12H31H At 31 December 391,151 (214,848) 176,303
EERRERNERERZRE Notified and incurred but not reported
ERERBRRZEE claims, and unexpired risk reserve
BEE2E®RIRE Notified claims 449,003 (213,828) 235,175
FEMERZ2H RS Claims incurred but not reported 128,888 (34,585) 94,303
RIE MR < Unexpired risk reserve 2,704 976 3,680
1A1H At 1 January 580,595 (247,437) 333,158
BEXNRE Claims paid (254,868) 94,099 (160,769)
BEMNERE Claims incurred 321,641 (139,288) 182,353
12 A31H At 31 December 647,368 (292,626) 354,742
BEE2H2RE Notified claims 477,355 (231,647) 245,708
EAMEREHRZRE Claims incurred but not reported 163,373 (61,053) 102,320
KIE R 2 Unexpired risk reserve 6,640 74 6,714
647,368 (292,626) 354,742
10 Life
REEES Policy provisions
1A1H At 1 January 1,413,029 (27,505) 1,385,524
BXfNERE Claims paid (634,495) 38,504 (595,991)
BEAMNRE Claims incurred 747,479 (34,609) 712,870
12H31H At 31 December 1,526,013 (23,610) 1,502,403

RFeREEERAA |
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Other liabilities under insurance contracts are analysed below:

P E

(Continued)
2014
DRIDEE
#8%5  Reinsurers’ FEE
Gross Share Net
— MRk General Insurance
RATRELZ (R E Unearned premium reserve 433,414 (232,853) 200,561
B2 RE Notified claims 449,003 (213,828) 235,175
EERMNERERIRE Claims incurred but not reported 128,888 (34,585) 94,303
KIE R < Unexpired risk reserve 2,704 976 3,680
1,014,009 (480,290) 533,719
=k Life
REEHES Policy provisions 1,413,029 (27,505) 1,385,524
A& Total 2,427,038 (507,795) 1,919,243
— MRk General Insurance
RATBRELZ (R E Unearned premium reserve
1A1H At 1 January 442,689 (244,631) 198,058
REBA Written premiums 595,971 (315,463) 280,508
EREZRE Earned premiums (605,246) 327,241 (278,005)
12 A31H At 31 December 433,414 (232,853) 200,561
EEREREANEBRERZRE - Notified and incurred but not reported
RARERER 2 claims, and unexpired risk reserve
B2/ RE Notified claims 344,952 (145,566) 199,386
TAMERZHZRE Claims incurred but not reported 98,733 (25,271) 73,462
KRR 2 G Unexpired risk reserve 1,731 897 2,628
1A1H At 1 January 445,416 (169,940) 275,476
ExXRE Claims paid (206,154) 75,718 (130,436)
BANRE Claims incurred 341,333 (153,215) 188,118
12 A31H At 31 December 580,595 (247,437) 333,158
BEE2FHRE Notified claims 449,003 (213,828) 235,175
BERMERE2H 2 RE Claims incurred but not reported 128,888 (34,585) 94,303
KIE MR 2 Unexpired risk reserve 2,704 976 3,680
580,595 (247,437) 333,158
=k Life
REBEEES Policy provisions
1A1H At 1 January 1,348,268 (26,043) 1,322,225
BEXfHRE Claims paid (880,371) 23,659 (856,712)
BEEANRE Claims incurred 945,132 (25,121) 920,011
12 A31H At 31 December 1,413,029 (27,505) 1,385,524
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014

HEBRBRANRERBAZRRAERE

DRI ER

HEHRBAORERBEAZRKRABFER

EHRBRANREREAZRREEZ EDEL
o -

Gross future liabilities to policyholders
under long-term insurance contracts 10,695,944 10,205,811
Reinsurers’ share (1,027,539) (885,132)

Net future liabilities to policyholders
under long-term insurance contracts 9,668,405 9,320,679

The movement in future liabilities to policyholders under long-term
insurance contracts is summarised as below:

2015 2014
1HA1H At 1 January 9,320,679 8,074,903
RREEREZE Change in provisions for future liabilities 347,726 1,245,776
12 A31H At 31 December 9,668,405 9,320,679

REFIEEERBENHHEIREAGEENITE
S 85 BN HAR I8 8 B A B AT IE & B RS SR AE R IR
IR — T SEIB B RN T ST o HIHZ S5
N

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2015 2014
FIEFR T E = Deferred income tax assets 83,473 80,591
EERIBAE Deferred income tax liabilities (95,950) (94,398)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date
of recovery and settlement are as follows:

2015 2014
REFI IR A E - Deferred income tax assets:
—AJfE12 @ B & Bl 2 IEEFR TE & 2= — Deferred income tax assets to
be recovered after more than
12 months 155,151 137,365
REFI A E - Deferred income tax liabilities:
—EE12ERREECELEHEARE — Deferred income tax liabilities to
be settled after more than
12 months (167,628) (151,172)
(12,477) (13,807)

BERIARR B B eI T -

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as
follows:

2015 2014
1818 At 1 January (13,807) (34,250)
PRUYES BR A 18 [B] Tax credited to the income

(MI3E18) statement (Note 18) 491 56,386
RERRARIEER (X)) Tax credited/(charged) to equity 4,689 (35,285)
MEHER Exchange difference (3,850) (658)
12 A31 8 At 31 December (12,477) (13,807)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BEEHBREERABERAFEZEE  TEER
MRBAESEE T HIEZ GBI

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

272

IRIEFRIBEE Deferred income tax assets:
AE
EEREE BEXH
Impairment REAM
allowances REEfR Deferred
and BEER Investment expenses &%
provisions Tax losses revaluation and others Total
20141 A1H At 1 January 2014 43,745 4,065 4,165 36,259 88,234
R ERAER /() Credited/(charged) to the
income statement 52,508 (2,988) - 4,434 53,954
PERBRAX Charged to equity - - (33,832) - (33,832)
ERiiar Reclassification - - 29,667 - 29,667
EHER Exchange difference (582) - - (76) (658)
201412 A31H At 31 December 2014 and
%2015F1 817 1 January 2015 95,671 1,077 - 40,617 137,365
NI EEAREE Credited to the income
statement 14,572 67 - 6,997 21,636
PERERAZ Charged to equity - - - - -
EHER Exchange difference (3,677) - - (173) (3,850
201512831 H At 31 December 2015 106,566 1,144 - 47,441 155,151
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B RARPoE

IRIERIBEEE : Deferred income tax liabilities:
MEBBHE RENREMR
Accelerated  Investment REEf
R tax  properties  Investment Hitr fit
Provisions depreciation  revaluation  revaluation Others Total
20145181A At 1 January 2014 7,122 74,289 37,068 3,838 167 122,484
UESERA /(2 Charged/(credited) to the
income statement 1,855 7,640 (11,760) - (167) (2,432)
RERRAT Charged to equity - - - 1,453 S 1,453
EEipp Reclassification - - - 29,667 - 29,667
2014F12A318 At 31 December 2014 and
%201551A18 1 January 2015 8,977 81,929 25,308 34,958 - 151,172
UESERA /(2 Charged/(credited) to the
income statement 759 1,233 (2,308) 853 20,608 21,145
R AE Credited to equity - - - (4,689) = (4,689)
20156128318 At 31 December 2015 9,736 83,162 23,000 31,122 20,608 167,628

TRDFANERRALE (XH) ZBER

18 :

is as follows:

The deferred income tax credited/(charged) to equity during the year

2015 2014
R = 2 A FERFEE Fair value reserves in
shareholders’ equity:
— At EE S — available-for-sale securities 4,689 (35,285)
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() BAXARE

P12 A31 BAER B R ARIR B EH A RE R B
ABEEE 2 EAAZENT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed
assets as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

2015 2014

ERQERREEREZRAX

(2) FEAE

FEBEEEBRIMVERETEFZERMIA
BRSEREGERRINESENT

Expenditure contracted but

not provided for 169,814 146,928

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to

customers are as follows:

EHEE
Contract amount
2015 2014
HEEERER Direct credit substitutes 320,644 683,652
B 5 A IEE Transaction-related contingencies 455,868 302,523
i 5 2 S AIE B Trade-related contingencies 438,649 501,525
AR HEUE M A ETR L Commitments that are
Nz A unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 64,573,823 64,212,547
H Other commitments with an
[RAEARR /& - original maturity of:
—LR1E - under 1 year 4,175,180 3,982,693
—1FRAE — 1 year and over 494,999 998,616
70,459,163 70,681,556
EEREMINESEE
Credit risk weighted amount
2015 2014
kA B 1E R IE Contingent liabilities and commitments 1,521,336 1,725,203
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(W) BAHER &R

T DARAEBESEES BHREFHERR
TEEREDHEREELLERLNEESHE
BiE% -

P e

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(c) Assets pledged

Exchange Fund debts pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s
trading and market-making activities in Exchange Fund debts are as
follows:

2015 2014
BERGEEEERNEE - Assets pledged with HKMA:
BIEEERENES Trading securities 5,771,254 5,157,236
Al HEES Available-for-sale securities 490,324 395,430
6,261,578 5,552,666
HEEEE Associated liabilities:
RIEEERZMAE Trading liabilities 6,270,630 5,597,614

TRTIBREEGRER TIEEESRME 2
BT ES M AR E E 2 REE

The carrying amounts of the non-government bonds pledged with
unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements and the
associated liabilities are as follows:

2015 2014

ElEE R N2 IEWEE - Assets pledged under repurchase

agreements:
AN ERES Available-for-sale securities 169,803 94,500
REEEFS Held-to-maturity securities 3,943 =
173,746 94,500
HHEAE Associated liabilities:

RITIFHK Deposits from banks 43,914 89,421
HbR B kAR Other accounts and accruals 123,271 =
167,185 89,421

BR2EFREABRENAFERER ZES
HERHEERS °

REEHERA - ARETEER - HELEF
NEES  THEER 2EFNEITANEER

)
7N

The fair value of the transferred securities and associated liabilities
approximate the carrying amount of the transferred securities.

The Group cannot use, sell or pledge the above securities for the

duration of the repurchase agreements and is exposed to the credit
risk of the issuers of the transferred securities.
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(AR F o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
(T) REHERE (d) Operating lease commitments
WAREE 2 AR ARFRA @ BAAEUSERLE Where a Group company is the lessee, the future minimum lease
HEMMARKEBEIZ M2 ZEHRENMAEZET - payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as
follows:
2015 2014
15 AR Not later than 1 year 175,570 151,124
1FAEESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 469,127 105,181
5 Later than 5 years 349,332 47,428
994,029 303,733
MAEBZ AR AHBA B AATBUEDEES Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease
HEMRARRBEZ N 2 HEREMNFHBEOT ¢ payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as
follows:
2015 2014
15 AR Not later than 1 year 33,813 31,344
1FAEESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 38,365 30,437
5FALE Later than 5 years 847 =
73,025 61,781
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
R ;&N A28 [N
@R Ordinary shares, Number of Share Number of Share
EERTRBERE : issued and fully paid: shares capital shares capital
1H1H8 At 1 January 335,075,100 4,248,559 296,526,638 593,053
MK2014E3 H3HBE Transition to no-par regime on
EEREESIRE 3 March 2014 - - - 2,764,288
BITHAAAD Issue of shares under rights
(BEHMBRETRNDER) issue (net of share issue
expenses) - - 38,548,462 891,218
12 A31 A At 31 December 335,075,100 4,248,559 335,075,100 4,248,559

BEHN A TEG E 1M REI7TIE 2 EBEMIE
R R2014F3A38 WD aEBEREEBETZ
2,764,288,000 B L E H &8 E K AR R R RA
B —3Bn o

R2014%F 4 A30H © AR &) 5K N & i%23.40
7B IT < BB IR T 100 IR M%) 7 AE 13 AR AL AR AR
72 Bi% o KA TS H 317 38,548,462 FET L%

,T/'\ ®

BN B 2005 F 4 A 28 HERA MR AL HERT S
(TZRBAETE]) - BRRBRAETTBIEITUAR -
707 (20144 : 7010 ) RRRIELATRRE 4,154,723 %
(2014 4F : 4,154,723 %) AR AR * EERFAR
SENFNEFRERITHAE - BZETEIKL
%Z%2015F 12 A31 H1E - 4017 (20144 : 4013)
R AE LA B 2,955,195 f% (2014 4F : 2,955,195
BR) AR QRIR M B R Ak sk B E -

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section
37 of Schedule 11 to the NCO, on 3 March 2014, the amount of
HK$2,764,288,000 standing to the credit of the share premium
account has become part of the Company’s share capital.

On 30 April 2014, the Company completed a 13-for-100 rights issue
at the subscription price of HK$23.40 per share. A total of 38,548,462

new shares were issued.

Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted on 28 April 2005, 70 (2014: 70) options to subscribe for
4,154,723 shares (2014: 4,154,723 shares) of the Company had been
granted to certain directors and senior executives of the Group since
the inception of the Scheme. Up to 31 December 2015 and since
the incorporation of the Scheme, 40 (2014: 40) options to subscribe
for 2,955,195 shares (2014: 2,955,195 shares) of the Company have

lapsed or expired.
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AEARMEZERSRITHRABRBERRE B
B ZRBRERARRBRMEBBEZEFHMT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Movements in the number of the Company’s shares in the share
options under the Scheme held by directors and senior executives
during the year are as follows:

RREFRAEE
Number of shares
in the options

2015 2014

1A1H At 1 January 1,199,528 1,150,000
REREAR TR IE 2 FHE Adjustment for rights issue

completed during the year - 49,528

REANEE Cancelled during the year (365,074) -

12H31H At 31 December 834,454 1,199,528

©®12 B 31 BIDAREITFE 2 RS T -

Particulars of the outstanding options as at 31 December are as

follows:
RRETROEE
AREHE Number of shares
Number of options in the options
RTFHRITHEE Date of grant and exercise price 2015 2014 2015 2014
201112 4128 - 12 December 2011, at an exercise
B1TEE TR 38.35 8L price of HK$38.35 per share* 10 15 521,534 782,301*
2012412 821 H - 21 December 2012, at an exercise
RITEEEK31.88 " price of HK$31.88 per share* 10 15 312,920 417,227+
20 30 834,454 1,199,528
* R Z RIS 8 2 EFR - AR EITE 2 R IRHE * Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, adjustments were made to the

RARERD#E RITRESRARFN20145F
4 ArEmk 2z HAREHTE -

RFeREEERAA |
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(AR F o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
figsfy  REEM HRitAE  REEA
i i ] EaMzRE (&)
Premises  Investment ~ ERf@E  EREE  -REE  Resenefor  Retained
Revaluation ~ Revaluation ~ Exchange Capital General  Share-based Earnings it
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve - Compensation (Note) Total
01581 510 At1 January 2015 226,122 213,316 210,881 19,535 484,289 5736 13,687,000 14,796,888
BAARERSH TR-ENBAR Additional net nterests in
EARINFEE a subsidiary acquired via
share options arrangement - - - (664) - (769) - (1,433)
BiNERZ TN ESS Fair value gains on available-for-sale
N securitis recognised in equity - 78,114 - - - - - 73,114
ATEREREET TS Fair value gain realised and transferred
Fibats SN O to income statement upon disposal
of available-for-sale securities - (55,897) - - - - - (95,897)
ATBERRTHERS Fair value loss transferred to income
HERERRYEE statement upon impairment of
avallable-for-sale securities - 10,970 - - - - - 10,970
REEERERD Deferred income tax on movements
LEERE in investment revaluation reserve - 4,689 - - - - - 4,689
RBENIEER Reserve arising from reclassification
RENZCRE of premises to investment properties 1,039 - - - - - - 1,039
BEENEENT Exchange differences arising on
ARNERZE translation of the financial statements
of foreign entities - - (156,429) - - - - (156,423)
RS AR e AT Provision for equity-settled share-based
kil compensation - - - - - 1,658 S 1,658
EREA Profit for the year - - - - - - 16T 194767
014555k 2014 final dividend - - - - - - (318,321) (318,321)
N155RERE 2015 interim dividend - - - - - - (107,224) (107,224)
0158128318 At 31 December 2015 227,161 246,192 54,458 18,871 484,289 6,626 15158931 16,196,527
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(¥ T TThALFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
fEEfE  RAEM WRhAE  RERH
#E i ] L2 G (i)
ROEE  Premises Investment  EREE  EAGE  —%EE  Resenefor  Retained
Share  Revaluation ~ Revaluation  Exchange Capal ~ General Share-based  Eamings At
Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
M14E1A18 At 1 January 2014 2,764,288 198,874 23,664 291,881 26,522 484,289 3261 12,315,563 16,108,342

R2014E3A3HARE  Transtion to no-par regime

BZEENE on 3 March 2014 (2,764,268) - - - - - - - 764208
TR -BENERAZME  Exercise of share options in a subsiciary - - - - 36 - (436) - (110)
FEAMER S TR B Addiional net interests in a subsidiary acquired

AREARNFER via share options anrangement - - - - (761) - - - (761)
i A Defict arising upon additional investment

REEE in a subsidiary - - - - (6,552) - - - (6,552)

TNERZAEHESS  Fairvalue gains on avallable-for-sale securities

N recognised in equity - - Ble - - - - - BIeT
DNFEEERHERERAM  Fairvalue loss realised and transferred to

HEBRIFENAEERE  income statement upon disposal of

EET BB investments in securities included in

LEARERERRE the loans and receivables category

Belas which were previously reclassified from

the available-for-sale category - - 2,802 - - - - - 2,802
DATERENETEAE  Fairvalue gain realised and transferred to

it ST income statement upon disposal of

&%k available-for-sale securities = = (18,196) - - - - - (18,19)
REEERERD Deferred income tax on movements in

LEREE investment revaluation reserve - - (26601) - - - - - (26601)
FRENIEER Reserve arising from reclassification

RENZRE of premises to investment properties - 27,48 - - - - - - 27,248
BEBIMERHTH Exchange differences arising on translation

ARNERZR of the financial statements of foreign entities - - - (81,000) - - - - (81,000)
DIRES IR IEAZRE  Provision for equity-settled share-based

VR compensafion - - - - - - 2911 - 2911
ERE Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1726887 1726887
NMIFFERE 2013 final dividend - - - - - - - (304918) (304,918)
N14ERERE 2014 interim dividend - - - - - - - (100529) (100,523)
NUE1ANE At 31 December 2014 MR M6 20081 195% 44280 57 136000 14796868
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(i)

REER2015F12 A1 B2 REBBF B ERE
SREAMIRE 2 E{EE2,166,695,000/%57T
(20144F : 2,018,068,000387T) ° HHIRE BB
B AREIERERAR -

RITIRIT R BB EMBITAAEE R E A ER
BREBU B EERIFTANIN SR ERE -
R ZEERBIATEBBRITESIIRIAR
EHEERANIAMEERE - ZRERHERR
ARETHRRZFREEE - BEREBEHASE
BECERETHNA LEERRERFEENH
B o

72015512 A31H - K¥7ER1TE 187 1,528,440,000
77T (2014 4F : 1,481,245,000/87T) 2 £ RE(EAEE
FEE ISR S — R - REENELGARE
BFPIEE -

B RARPoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Note:

(i) Included in retained earnings of the Group at 31 December 2015 is
the value of in-force long-term life assurance policies in force totalling
HK$2,166,695,000 (2014: HK$2,018,068,000) which is currently not
available for distribution.

(ii) DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is required to
maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of those required
under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve
is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision
purposes. The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which
can be distributed to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve
are made directly through equity reserve and in consultation with the
HKMA.

As at 31 December 2015, DSB has earmarked a regulatory reserve
of HK$1,528,440,000 (2014: HK$1,481,245,000) first against its
consolidated general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is
earmarked against its consolidated retained earnings.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(B) e TREREEEEZWERE (@
BAIcEERFRAKETHRERA

Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and
losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net

282

REEHARK cash from operating activities
2015 2014
Operating profit before gains and
losses on certain investments
and fixed assets 2,256,052 1,760,260
Net interest income (3,653,293) (3,292,952)
% S e Dividend income (111,796) (108,064)
E?Mﬁﬂéﬁéﬁa REMEERE Loan impairment losses and
. other credit provisions 496,352 472,962
Depreciation 174,814 157,339
B EE B Amortisation expenses of intangible assets 2,039 3,711
IR W18 2 B iH)5 88 Advances written off net of recoveries (323,741) (439,482)
VARRRE S 15 PARR 0 1 AR BT SR AN 2 B Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation 1,961 3,754
[RL GRS Interest received 5,430,286 5,222,571
ERFIE Interest paid (1,396,526)  (1,572,516)
BURE Dividend received 286,387 237,251
HEEERAREYA 2 EERT Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 3,162,535 2,444,834
HEEERBEZEY Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
— B RERITHER KRR A BR - cash and balances with banks and
31EA Z‘@%ﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ money at call and short notice
with an original maturity beyond
three months (1,012,606) (873,074)
—REHBBBIEA 2 ERITHFR - placements with banks with
an original maturity beyond
three months (886,238) (1,674,219)
—REEERSNES - trading securities (3,496,086) 957,213
*?ﬁii%ﬂlﬂ - derivative financial instruments 14,329 (28,098)
—EEENATEFEHEEEABREN — financial assets designated at
& @ﬂéﬁ% fair value through profit or loss (1,373,223)  (1,001,283)
O — trade bills 914,158 (1,458,409)
- %iné?x - advances to customers (4,395,278)  (7,252,526)
—H BB — other accounts 1,100,113 (745,401)
— BEEER R EREEES - investments in securities included
ZM%T i\ in the loans and receivables category - 2,910
—EXTHARZHER - loan to a jointly controlled entity - 14,620
— At tﬁﬁﬁ — available-for-sale securities (780,995) 697,648
— R T A - held-to-maturity securities 233,970 (902,733)
-~ RESREBCANRERE - value of in-force long-term life
assurance business (148,627) (812,452)
— R0 — deposits from banks (21,556) (422,830)
—-BHEEERENAR - trading liabilities 673,015 2,235,141
—BEER - deposits from customers 8,347,562 12,696,195
f%’éfﬁﬁ%m - certificates of deposit issued 110,714 (28,645)
H iR B RiEiR - other accounts and accruals (144,927) 89,939
*;TEH%E% BRENREFEAZAR - liabilities to customers under
insurance contracts 490,133 1,392,742
BEE i, 3 2 Exchange adjustments 62,528 50,578
HELEHRANRS Cash generated from operating
activities 2,849,521 5,882,150
XRE BT EREZ S Interest paid on certificates of
deposit issued (83,828) (76,598)
EHEBTEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (328,951) (276,885)
BRUBIMRR Overseas tax paid (24,081) (32,823)
KEEETAR S FE Net cash from operating activities 2,412,661 5,495,844
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(2) ERERBLERN REREAR
SEERERBERHEIEARNT
B THGS REEER(LEE
AABRETHBEERERER S Y
P22

P e

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to
known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2015 2014

BE MERITOEER
JREEA B #E 3 1A A 5k bA T 2 38 0 K A2 BATF K

JREEA B 4E 3 1A A s UA T 2 FEIRTTEVIF K

RIEEERZNES

RELE ESRAF R R R 1T A 4582 344,517,000 %5
7L (2014 4F : 327,129,000/8 T) ER [BE K%
FEIREIEE | RE TR ERBEEE [BHE RERIT
R#ERR ] BRIET ©

Cash and balances with banks 1,927,881 2,456,656
Money at call and short notice with

an original maturity within

three months 13,006,096 10,921,217
Placements with banks with

an original maturity within

three months 2,123,373 921,209
Trading securities 228,497 2,040,796

17,285,847 16,339,878

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$344,517,000 (2014:
HK$327,129,000) were balances with central banks for prudential
purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
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(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RIEBBRAEN (F622GE)F17TH(HEES Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
Flz=ER) BEAERTESHE2015512 A 31 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure
HIEFEZHREFE - T 2% - BE2014512 of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended
R 31 BIEFEZ BF IREFIEE R RMRDI (5 31 December 2015 are shown as below. They are not directly
32F)FE161BEIZ =M ABERER © TREEER comparable with the Loans to officers, reported for the year ended
BHE o 31 December 2014, which were pursuant to section 161B of the

predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32).

2015 2014
M12 A31 Bz B FKREEESE Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding
at 31 December
—BR R - Loans and advances 25,081 346
FNEBRZ G2 m=BER Maximum aggregate amount of
relevant transactions during the year
—BERRER - Loans and advances 51,459 41,579
R2015F Lz FIEBEBR 5H BB ARE The above relevant transactions in 2015 were all transacted by a
7] WEBAQRZER] o subsidiary and nil by the Company.
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BREALRZEALARNERIEEESS
— 77 FHE - TEELYBREERRTET
EERFES - WEHEMTRALZEHKRZES
FHAEAFER  REALTRR/SBEEEA
A

2015 F 22014 4F + AEBEREREKH G HE
BRABEATHITRITEBRRS - AAR B IEH
TEFEBRMARNEEZMBHRER - EHZEN
THF(F)RARBRBEEEEEL R HETT
HH o ZEEFRBEHBERRENEREE N
- REAZIHEEEEZZSGIRERAEERZ
FRER - BlHzE  —REEERREN &
ANFEEEREAERD R REEFRETT -

HEEMBEALZERRZSWT

() BNBARNKS

AARRAEERENBRARRFERNEIELER
THBARFEI 2 BEBRER S (ERABEER
SAES LR A1 _Em#R A 15 14A.31 B UeZ)
REETHZBARSZE - 25X 52 BEKRE
WA IRE ETRRIE14A53E R 14A. 548 -
BANNERZFE LR -

P e

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control or common significant influence.

During 2015 and 2014, a number of banking continuing connected
transactions were entered into with related parties in the normal
course of business of the Group. These, as described in Note (a)
below and being continuing connected transactions, had been
reviewed by the Company’s independent non-executive directors in
their review of the financial statements of the Group. Based on their
review and enquiry with management, the Company’s independent
non-executive directors were satisfied that all of the continuing
connected transactions were conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms, and
in accordance with relevant agreements on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as

a whole.
Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(@) Transactions with subsidiaries

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries within the Group
received and incurred the following income and expense from the
continuing connected transactions (within the definition of Rule
14A.31 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
SEHK (the “Listing Rules”)) entered into with the non-wholly-owned
banking subsidiaries during the year. The aggregate values of these
transactions are within or consistent with the respective annual caps
applicable to the Group pursuant to Rules 14A.53 and 14A.54 of the
Listing Rules.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

() EMEARINRS @ (@) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)
2015 2014
EHFH S (G () Interest received (Note (i) 12,708 11,701
BERRITFES (5 () Bank charges paid (Note (i)) (8,766) (7,983)
ENHeRIEFEAEEREERAX Rentals and related building management
(& (i) fee and charges paid (Note (ii)) (19,339) (19,661)
BEliEe REFEAEERE KRS Rentals and related building management
(& (iii)) fee and charges received (Note (iii)) 9,666 9,814
ERERE (F(v) Management fees paid (Note (iv)) (17,682) (16,188)
EfREBESRENE (GE(v) Insurance commission and
referral fees paid (Note (v)) (133,376) (115,025)
EHIRBRIRE (7 (vi) Insurance premiums received (Note (vi)) 19,258 16,909
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Note:

Banking arrangements provided by the DSBG Group for companies
within the DSFH Group

DSB and other members of the Dah Sing Banking Group (“collectively
the “DSBG Group”) provide standard banking services to members
of the Company and fellow subsidiaries not being subsidiaries of the
DSBG Group (collectively the “DSFH Group”) including cheque clearing,
autopay, cheque and deposit bank accounts, credit card merchant
facilities, co-branded credit cards and investment dealing.

The banking services in respect of cheque clearing, autopay, cheque
and deposit accounts are provided to the DSFH Group in the same
way as they are provided to other customers of DSBG Group under
standard account opening and other forms. The credit card merchant
facilities and co-brand credit card arrangements are provided under
normal commercial contracts and are at market standard. The standard
market practice for credit card merchant facilities is not to provide for a
fixed term, but allow for termination at the option of the bank by giving
written notice. The co-brand credit card arrangements between DSBG
Group and the DSFH Group can be terminated after the first two years
by either party giving not less than six months’ notice in writing. All such
banking services, by their nature, are not normally provided for a fixed
term. Accordingly, the banking arrangement between DSBG Group and
the DSFH Group are not for a fixed term.

The banking services provided by DSBG’s banking subsidiaries to
the companies within the DSFH Group are banking services and
arrangements normally provided by DSBG Group to its other customers
and are conducted on normal commercial terms. The provision of such
banking services by DSBG Group to the DSFH Group enables DSBG
Group to earn reasonable income consistent with the nature and types
of the banking services.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

@)

(i)

Banking arrangements provided by the DSBG Group for companies
within the DSFH Group (Continued)

The banking subsidiaries of DSBG Group provide commercial banking
services and products to their customers in the ordinary and usual
course of their businesses. Such services and products include the
taking of deposits (including fixed and floating term deposits and
deposits at call). Customers who place deposits with the banking
subsidiaries of DSBG Group include members of the DSFH Group.
For purposes of the Listing Rules, the placing of deposits provided
by members of the DSFH Group constitute continuing connected
transactions within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the deposits placed by members of the
DSFH Group at the banking subsidiaries of DSBG Group are at market
rates and on normal commercial terms that are comparable or no more
favourable than those offered to independent third parties and that
no security over the assets of DSBG Group is granted in respect of
such financial assistance. On that basis, such continuing connected
transactions are exempt from complying with the reporting, disclosure
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Lease of properties between DSIS, DSIA, DSLA and MIC and DSB, VB
and BCM

DSB, BCM and Vanishing Border Investment Services Limited (“VB”)
have leased certain of their owned properties to members of the DSFH
Group, namely Dah Sing Insurance Services Limited (“DSIS”), Dah Sing
Insurance Agency Limited (“DSIA”), DSLA, Macau Insurance Company
Limited (“MIC”) and DSB as their office premises. DSB, BCM and VB
received from DSIS, DSIA, DSLA and MIC the lease rentals, and air-
conditioning charges, building management charges and other utilities
charges based on the actual amount of costs incurred. The following
table summarises the leases that have been entered into.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Lease of properties between DSIS, DSIA, DSLA and MIC and DSB, VB
and BCM (Continued)

=32k kA

(TEREES

RALREER)

Monthly rent (exclusive

HEZMF

Property subject to lease

of management fees and
utility charges)

() EMEARINRS @ (@
= (&)
(i)  KRIRBIRE - KRR - K3 AF KR (ii)
RIBRFNARFIRTT ~ HE RORPIR R RITRE 2 W3
e (&)
X2 A4 AINE HERR
Transaction date Contracting parties Term of lease
2013412 A30H RARTRTFAINRRRE  2014F1 81682
30 December 2013 DSB leased to DSIS 201612 A31H
1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016
201312 A30H RFRTRTFAINRRRE  2014F1 81682
30 December 2013 DSB leased to DSIS 201612 A31H
1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016
2013412 A30H AFRITRTAMRRRE  2014F1A18%

30 December 2013

2013F 12 A30H
30 December 2013

201312 A30H
30 December 2013

2013F 12 A30H
30 December 2013

DSB leased to DSIA

HERTAMAS
VB leased to DSLA

RFEERTHETRMRR
BCM leased to MIC

RETRITH T AR R 75
DSB leased to DSIS

RFeREEERAA |

2016F 12 A31H
1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016

2014F1R1HE
201612 A31H
1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016

201418182
201612 A31H
1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016

20141 A18ZE
2016F 12 4318
1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016

BRI ARSESI0RBEAL18ELE  AIHBREEER
15,540F AR

The whole of the 18/F, Island Place Tower, 510 King’s Road,
North Point, Hong Kong with a lettable floor area of

HK$621,600

15,540 square feet

BEAE20RENERE  AIHBEHEER6,402 7R
A portion of the 20/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable floor

HK$268,884

area of 6,402 square feet

BEAE0EHHAE - AIHEEERER2623TAHR
A portion of the 20/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable floor

HK$102,297

area of 2,623 square feet

RERYRIIERR S04 EHHEE - BEAEBER132F
Tk

A portion of Room 1504 of Shenzhen Development Centre,

HK$11,756

Shenzhen, People’s Republic of China, with a gross floor
area of 132 square metres

RPIRFIEERTAR10BR11E2E - AHEBEERA
924K

The whole of the 10/F. and 11/F., BCM Building, Macau with
a total lettable floor area of 924 square metres

MOP147,000

BEAE19EHHETR - AIHEEEARA6,558 TAR(E
201456 A1BR  WPE5207FHRKE2015410 A
200 E—HHPE3E05FAR)

A portion of the 19/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable

HK$249,204
(B2014%6A18% "
R % HK$201,286 12 &
2015104208 % + E—
floor area of 6,558 square feet (reduced to 5,297 square %3 % HK$133,190 )
feet with effect from 1 June 2014 and further reduced to (reduced to HK$ 201,286
3,505 square feet with effect from 20 October 2015) with effect from 1 June
2014 and further reduced
to HK$133,190 with effect
from 20 October 2015)
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MAFRITEEN20135F12 A30 0 2B EH
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ek - ARTABLEEBHBFEL2RKREAN
Ef FAASREAR RS EE (W EAEEE
BAR2,340FHR) FRMBIT - HERERHAS
% - H2013F 12 A28 HE2016F 12 A27 H
IF - A £ /630,000  TEEEES -
BFZM - BEBRZEAE - RNRITEZWER
{ERITHITYIZE -

oK 5 R 17 & B R 20134F 12 A30H 2 @
W5 - K#HIRTTE High Standard Investment
Limited ([High Standard |) Z& 7T fl &% - R
Wik - KFETERTTHE High Standard A&t A
BEES105EEAE17TEZ D EARIE
B Al AEEAEELA4,581F R A=
F . H2014F1H1H £ £20165F12 A31H
1IE - A7174,078% T - TRIEETEE - BUT=E
il BEBERTEAE -

B RARPoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(i)

Leaseback of property by DSB from DSLA and lease of property by DSB
from HS

As disclosed in the DSBG’s announcement dated 30 December 2013,
a lease back agreement was entered into by DSB with DSLA on 28
December 2013 pursuant to which DSB leased from DSLA a portion
of Flat A on Basement and Portion AA on Ground Floor of Thai Kong
Building, No. 482 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong with a lettable floor
area of 2,340 square feet at a monthly rent of HK$630,000 exclusive of
management fees, government rates, electricity service charges and
air-conditioning charges for a term of three years commencing on 28
December 2013 and ending on 27 December 2016. The Premises have
been used by DSB as bank branch premises.

As disclosed in the DSBG’s announcement dated 30 December 2013,
a lease agreement was entered into by DSB with High Standard
Investment Limited (“HS”) on 30 December 2013 pursuant to which
DSB has leased from HS a portion of the 17th Floor of Island Place
Tower, Island Place, 510 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong as its
office premises with a lettable floor area of approximately 4,581 square
feet at a monthly rent of HK$174,078 exclusive of management fees,
government rates, electricity service charges and air-conditioning
charges for a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2014 and
ending on 31 December 2016.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(iv)

Computer and Administrative Services Agreement with DSB and BCM

On 30 December 2013, DSB (and its subsidiaries including BCM)
entered into a computer and administrative services agreement with the
Company. The Services Agreement was for a fixed term of three years
with effect from 1 January 2014 and ending on 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the services agreements, DSB has agreed to provide
members of the DSFH Group with certain computer and administrative
services. These services principally consist of the following:

. computer services including data processing, printing and
enveloping, system development, technical support, disaster
recovery and contract management;

o administrative, company secretarial, internal audit, compliance,
operational, risk management, investment custodian and treasury
operations; and

o secondment of, and provision of services by, staff to the DSFH
Group (collectively, the “Services”).

With the stronger pool of resources and functional expertise of DSB
which historically has been operating to provide administrative and
computer services to other companies within the DSFH Group on a cost-
recovery basis, the provision of the Services to the DSFH Group at a fee
enables DSBG Group to continue to expand its scale and operational
capabilities while costs incurred by DSBG Group in providing the
Services are recovered from the DSFH Group.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

v)

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral
services

(a) Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB and BCM

On 30 December 2013, DSIS and DSIA entered into distribution
agreements and underlying agency agreements with DSB for the
marketing and distribution of life and general insurance products through
DSB’s branch networks for a fixed term of three years with effect from
1 January 2014. On the same day, MIC and Macau Life Insurance
Company Limited (“MLIC”) entered into distribution agreements
and underlying agency agreements with BCM for the marketing and
distribution of life and general insurance products through BCM’s
branch network for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January
2014.

Pursuant to the distribution agreements entered into by DSIS with DSB
(the “DSIS Distribution Agreements”), DSB markets and distributes such
life assurance products as agreed between the parties from time to time
for the DSFH Group through its branch and other distribution networks
and its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the DSIS Distribution Agreements, DSB has entered into an
agency agreement with DSIS (the “DSIS Agency Agreements”) in respect
of the sale of life assurance policies in return for commission payments
as agreed between the parties from time to time. Under the terms of the
DSIS Agency Agreements, the commission payable by DSIS to DSB in
respect of such life assurance products shall vary, depending on the
product type, between 1% and 50% of the first year’s premium received,
plus up to 24% of the renewal premiums in respect of certain policies.

Pursuant to the distribution agreements entered into by DSIA with DSB
(the “DSIA Distribution Agreements”), DSB markets and distributes such
general insurance and life assurance products as agreed between the
parties from time to time for the DSFH Group through its branch and
other distribution networks.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

)

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(a) Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB and BCM
(Continued)

Pursuant to the DSIA Distribution Agreements, DSB has entered into an
agency agreement with DSIA (the “DSIA Agency Agreements”) in respect
of the sale of certain general insurance and life assurance products in
return for commission payments, as agreed between the parties from
time to time. Under the terms of the DSIA Agency Agreements, the
commission payable by DSIA to DSB in respect of:

(1) general insurance products shall vary, depending on the product
type, between 1% and 30% of each year’s premium received in
respect of a new or renewal policy; and

2) life assurance products shall vary, depending on the product type,
between 1% and 50% of the first year’s premium received, plus
up to 24% of the renewal premiums in respect of certain policies.

Pursuant to the distribution agreement entered into by MLIC with BCM
(the “MLIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM markets and distributes such
life assurance products as agreed between the parties from time to time
for MLIC through its branch and other distribution network.

Pursuant to the MLIC Distribution Agreement, BCM has entered into
an agency agreement with MLIC (the “MLIC Agency Agreement”) in
respect of the sale of life assurance policies in return for commission
payments as agreed between the parties from time to time. Under the
terms of the MLIC Agency Agreement, the commission payable by MLIC
to BCM in respect of such life assurance products varies, depending on
the product type, between 13.5% and 35% of the first year’s premium

received.

Pursuant to the distribution agreement entered into by MIC with BCM
(the “MIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM markets and distributes such
general insurance products of MIC as are agreed between the parties
from time to time through its branch and other distribution network.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

)

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(a) Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB and BCM
(Continued)

Pursuant to the MIC Distribution Agreement, BCM has entered into an
agency agreement with MIC (the “MIC Agency Agreement”) in respect
of the sale of general insurance products in return for commission
payments, as agreed between the parties from time to time. Under the
terms of the MIC Agency Agreement, the commission payable by MIC
to BCM in respect of general insurance products shall vary, depending
on the product type, between 10% and 50% of each year’s premium
received in respect of new or renewal policies.

In respect of each of the DSIS, DSIA, MLIC and MIC Distribution
Agreements (collectively the “Distribution Agreements”), DSIS and DSIA
shall each reimburse or pay on behalf of DSB, and MLIC and MIC shall
each reimburse or pay on behalf of BCM, agreed expenses including the
registration fees for licences for the bank staff to sell insurance, sales
incentives, marketing expenses and other costs and expenses related to
the performance of the Distribution Agreements.

Each of the Distribution Agreements is on a mutually non-exclusive basis
and is for a three-year fixed term with effect from 1 January 2014. Each
of the DSIS, DSIA, MLIC and MIC Agency Agreements (collectively the
“Agency Agreements”) is on a mutually non-exclusive basis for a three-
year fixed term with effect from 1 January 2014, save that the provisions
relating to the payment of outstanding renewal premiums shall remain in
force until payment is received in full.

The distribution and agency arrangements described above, including
the commission rates set out in the various sets of Distribution
Agreements and Agency Agreements, are consistent with normal
arrangements between banks and insurance companies in the Hong
Kong and Macau markets, and will provide DSBG Group with insurance
products and services to be offered to the customers of the banking
subsidiaries of DSBG Group. The distribution of different types of
insurance products through the respective bank branches and other
distribution networks of DSB and BCM in return for a commission
income to be paid by the DSFH Group will also produce fee income
which will be of benefit to DSBG Group.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

)

(Vi)

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(b) Business referral services

On 30 December 2013, DSBG entered into a cooperation agreement with
the Company pursuant to which and as part of their respective usual
and normal course of business currently conducted, members of DSBG
Group may refer to members of DSFH Group business opportunities for
life and general insurance policies to be underwritten by any member(s)
of DSFH Group, either directly or via their sole agents, if any, from time
to time. There is no commitment on any member of DSBG Group to
refer to member(s) of DSFH Group such transactions of any minimum or
maximum number and/or amount. The cooperation agreement is on a
mutually non-exclusive basis and is for a three-year fixed term with effect
from 1 January 2014. Where concluded between the relevant parties, the
terms and conditions for the provision of such business referral services
shall be, if required, reduced into individual written agreement(s).

Pursuant to the cooperation agreement, the fee income actually received
shall either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are normal commercial
terms, on terms no less favourable to relevant member(s) of DSBG Group
than terms available from independent third parties. The fee income is
payable by cheque(s) monthly in arrears.

Insurance services provided by DSI (1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC

The insurance policies underwritten by Dah Sing Insurance Company
(1976) Limited (“DSI (1976)”) and MIC in the name, and for the benefit, of
DSB and other members of DSBG Group and their respective customers
are subject to renewal annually. The group life assurance policies
underwritten by DSLA and MLIC in relation to the provision of insurance
cover for the death and/or critical illness of the employees of DSB and
other members of DSBG Group are subject to renewal annually.

The master policies between DSLA and DSB in relation to the provision
of insurance cover for their respective customers are for a fixed term of
three years with effect from 1 January 2014.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(vi)

Insurance services provided by DSI (1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC
(Continued)

DSI (1976) underwrites general insurance policies in the name, and
for the benefit, of DSB and other members of DSBG Group and their
respective customers including policies covering domestic motor,
property all risks, public liability, money, electronic equipment,
employees’ compensation and group personal accident. Such policies
are subject to renewal annually.

DSLA underwrites insurance policies to cover the death and/or critical
illness of certain borrowing customers of DSB and employees of DSB
and other members of DSBG Group. The provision of the insurance
cover for customers is set out in the terms and conditions of the relevant
bank borrowing arrangement. Such policies can be terminated within
two months in the event of non-payment of premiums.

MIC underwrites insurance policies in the name, and for the benefit, of
BCM and its customers including policies covering medical, personal
accident, employees’ compensation, motor fleet, properties, civil liability
and money. Such policies are subject to renewal annually.

MLIC underwrites life insurance policies to cover the death and/or critical
illness of BCM’s pension plan members and such policies are subject to
renewal annually.

The premiums payable under such insurance policies are payable
in arrears on a monthly basis and are calculated by reference to the
outstanding credit balances in respect of each of the products to which
they relate.

The insurance policies are procured by DSBG Group to enable certain
of the DSBG’s subsidiaries, namely DSB and BCM, to comply with
relevant regulatory requirements in reducing the risks to DSBG Group'’s
assets, businesses and operations and/or to provide additional services
to DSBG Group’s customers. In addition, the Directors consider that
the insurance services by DSI (1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC are effective
and the fees proposed by DSI (1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC respectively
are comparable to those offered by other insurance companies in the
market.

On 30 December 2013, DSBG entered into a cooperation agreement with
the Company pursuant to which members of the DSFH Group would
provide insurance services to DSB and other members of DSBG Group.
The cooperation agreement was for a fixed term of three years with
effect from 1 January 2014 and ending on 31 December 2016 (both days
inclusive).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(b) Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and key
management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits from
the Group’s key management personnel, their close family
members and entities controlled by them. For the year ended 31

BSOS December, the following balances were outstanding:

2015 2014

BB Loans and advances 80 2,922

EZ Deposits 192,083 281,380

REVA 2 B0 Undrawn commitments 3,695 3,329

ER Guarantee 1,095 545
FRNEFRBRZ H=ERE Maximum aggregate amount of loans

and advances during the year 2,995 4,376

(i) FEEEASHz

ARRIETEEEAEAHNITES  HIRM
ERREEREIRKFES -

(R) RBEQARAFEFHNERZIZR
REER

FAN-AEEBKRIBHBERFERERT
158,071,000/ 7L (20144 : 129,187, ooo;§7c)ﬂx
BWA - &R - AEBEISE —HREHEER
EEARATZFER - MEMR2015512 431 Elﬁ
TREE 2 556,298,000 7 7T (2014 £ 26,995,000
BT °

RFeREEERAA |

(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company are executive
directors and their remunerations are included under Note 15.

(c) Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entity

During the year, the Group received from BOCQ, an associate, dividend
income of HK$158,071,000 (2014: HK$129,187,000). During the year,
the Group received deposits from Bank Consortium Trust Company
Limited, a jointly controlled entity and the balance of deposit as at 31
December 2015 was HK$56,293,000 (2014: HK$26,995,000).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Share-based compensation, pursuant to the Company’s Share Option
Schemes (the “DSFH Schemes”) and the Share Option Schemes of its
subsidiary, Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the “DSBG Schemes”),
is available to directors and senior executives of the Group. Details of
the share-based compensation paid to directors are disclosed in Note
15.

(@) DSFH Schemes

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 28 April 2005
(the “Old DSFH Scheme”) had expired on 28 April 2015. On 27 May
2015, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of
a new share option scheme (the “New DSFH Scheme”). No further
share options can be offered under the Old DSFH Scheme after its
expiration but the provisions of the Old DSFH Scheme remain in full
force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to allow the
grantees to exercise share options granted prior to the expiration of
the Old DSFH Scheme but not yet exercised at the time of expiration.

Under the Old DSFH Scheme, the Company issued to certain
directors and employees of its subsidiaries share options on terms
that allow the Company the choice of making cash payments,
determined based on the intrinsic value of each share option, instead
of allotting newly issued shares to the directors or employees at the
date of exercise. The Company has adopted the cash settlement
practice and intends to continue this practice in respect of the existing
share options issued.

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Old DSFH Scheme. The exercise price per
option share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of the Company on the basis no
less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant. For options
granted before the commencement of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) on 3 March 2014, the nominal value of the Company
shares of HK$2 each in the capital of the Company had been taken
into account in determining the exercise price per option share. The
exercise period is between the first and sixth anniversaries from the
date of grant.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(b) DSBG Schemes

The respective shareholders of the Company and DSBG approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme of DSBG (the “New
DSBG Scheme”) and, at the same time, the termination of the Share
Option Scheme adopted by DSBG on 12 June 2004 (the “Old DSBG
Scheme”) at the respective annual general meeting held on 27 May
2014. No further options can be offered under the Old DSBG Scheme
after its termination, but the provisions of the Old DSBG Scheme
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect
to allow grantees to exercise share options granted prior to the
termination of the Old DSBG Scheme but not yet exercised at the time
of termination.

Under the Old DSBG Scheme, DSBG issued to certain directors
and employees of its subsidiaries share options on terms that allow
DSBG the choice of making cash payments, determined based on the
intrinsic value of each share option, instead of allotting newly issued
shares to the directors or employees at the date of exercise. DSBG
has the intention to adopt cash settlement practice in respect of the
share options granted prior to year 2012. For share option issued in
2012 and afterwards, DSBG has the intention to settle its obligations
by issuing new shares.

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Old DSBG Scheme. The exercise price per
option share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of DSBG on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSBG’s shares
traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing
price of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. For options granted before
the commencement of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3
March 2014, the nominal value of DSBG’s shares of HK$1 each in
the capital of DSBG had been taken into account in determining the
exercise price per option share. The exercise period is between the
first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.
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BAHESHMESERFZRRE : Share options granted under the Old DSFH Scheme:
BRITEE(ER)
= (i)
RFH k=Pl BT FH 17668 Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HK$)
Note (i)
201112 A12H AR & F A 201112 A12BE 2012F 12 A12A%
201612 A12H 2017F12 A12H
12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 38.35
2012F 12 A21H R & 2012F 12 A21BE 2013F 12 A21AZ
201712 A21H 201812 A21H
21/12/2012 Cash-settled 21/12/2012-21/12/2017 21/12/2013-21/12/2018 31.88

ATt A EMBELE2015F12 A31 H
1E - WEERRRERBE RS @I -

No share options had been granted under the New DSFH Scheme
from the date of its adoption to 31 December 2015.

BAHBITEEETERT 2RRE

Share options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme:

BRITEE(ER)

& (i)

#FH ]| BT EH e Exercise price

Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HK$)

Note (i)
201112 412H LR & 201112 412H% 201212 H12HE
201612 A12H 201712 A12H

12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 8.91
2012412 A21H AR % 201212 A21HZ 201312 A21AZ
201712 H21H 2018412 H21H

21/12/2012 Equity-settled 21/12/2012-21/12/2017 21/12/2013-21/12/2018 7.96
201463 426 H AR HE 2 5 20143 26 B % 20153 26 B %
201963 A26H 20203 A26H

26/03/2014 Equity-settled 26/03/2014-26/03/2019 26/03/2015-26/03/2020 11.68

RFBITEBEFTEERMNBLE2015F12 A
31 B 1E - WEERRRERE AR IRITEBF

No share options had been granted under the New DSBG Scheme
since the date of adoption to 31 December 2015.

IR -
e Note:
(i) 20145 AR T 2 RBREZTEBERERAR] (i) The exercise prices of share options granted prior to May 2014 were

RAFRITEE D RIR201454 AKX 2014F5 A
TEAK AR T DA EE -

adjusted for the rights issues concluded by both the Company and
DSBG in April 2014 and May 2014 respectively.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Share-based compensation charged to income statement is as

T follows:

2015 2014
VARSCHE 2 5t 2 SR e Equity-settled options 1,961 3,754
AR & 4 2 R Cash-settled options 1,165 6,254
&5t Total 3,126 10,008
UB2F 2R R E Cash-settled options

MEM KT EREN B RAFEITEEEZIFT
BFZUREINNRKE  ~EEEREEH
#32.46,028,000 7 7T (2014 4F : 44,863,000 7T )

With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the Old DSFH
Scheme and the Old DSBG Scheme described above, the Group
has recorded liabilities of HK$46,028,000 (2014: HK$44,863,000) in

REBZERABERFEZAE - LLAFETIA
—EAPREBEAR TR 2 ERRRETE -

respect of the fair value of the share options at the reporting date. The
fair value is determined by using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model,

and based on the major assumptions set out in the following tables.

AFemESE
Old DSFH Scheme
2015 2014

2012 2011 & 20124 20114

12A21 8 128128 128218 128128

21 December 12 December 21 December 12 December

BFH Grant date 2012 2011 2012 2011
ARER12A31BZRE(ETL) Share price of the Company as

at 31 December (HK$) 38.75 38.75 45.25 45.25

1788 () (GEG) Exercise price (HK$)(Note (i) 31.88 38.35 31.88 38.35

TRETIRIE (5 (i) Expected volatility (Note (ii)) 36.33% 36.33% 34.76% 34.76%

FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <3 <2 <4 <3

I B X (7 (1)) Risk free rate (Note (i) 0.74% 0.51% 1.24% 0.98%

FEAREE (7 (iv) Expected dividend rate (Note (iv) 2.67% 2.67% 3.02% 3.02%

RIeREEERAA |
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

UB 2512 &) Cash-settled options (Continued)
RIBITEEEE
Old DSBG Scheme
2015 2014
2011 F 20114
12A12H 12 A12H
12 December 12 December
#¥H Grant date 2011 2011
RFRITEEMN 12 A 31 B 2R (E (BT) Share price of DSBG as
at 31 December (HK$) 13.72 12.44
1118 (B 7T) (B () Exercise price (HK$) (Note (i) 8.91 8.91
TEER 18 (5 (ii)) Expected volatility (Note (ii)) 34.33% 39.17%
FHI(F) Time to maturity (years) <2 <3
f2 B R 2 (5 (ki) Risk free rate (Note (iii)) 0.51% 0.98%
TEFT AR B K (FE (iv)) Expected dividend rate (Note (iv)) 2.50% 2.90%

i

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

201445 AR T2 RREZITEEEHART
RAFIRITER DRI 20144 A K 201445 A
TERKZ AR T AR EE o

TAFHRIE IR BENFTE B 2 AR E —F A AT
RAFRITEBMEERAREMETE - WRR
BEARBDRAFRITEBRE KR - 8B EXR
FANRIRE 2 FHAN 2 BRE  XEEANE
o

BERBHESERFHZEENEESREZY

mE

TAFH AR SR B AR S mE] -

RIEHEANR T E AR EREENE S IWE - &
NEBEAER 2015412 A 31 B 432,628,000
B IT (2014 4F : 22,627,000 7T) °

Note:

(U]

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

The exercise prices of share options granted prior to May 2014 were
adjusted for the rights issues concluded by both the Company and
DSBG in April 2014 and May 2014 respectively.

Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility
of the share price of the Company and DSBG, as applicable, during the
one year period immediately preceding the measurement date and is
based on the assumption that there is no material difference between
the expected volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the
historical volatility of the share prices of the Company and DSBG as set
out above.

Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity.

Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.

The total intrinsic value of the share options for which the grantees’

right to receive cash on a vested basis as of 31 December 2015 is
HK$32,628,000 (2014: HK$22,627,000).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Equity-settled options

With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the Old

DSBG Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using

the Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are

granted.

The assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the options granted

during 2014 are as follows:

Grant date

20143 526 H
26 March 2014

RIRITEBRE T B ZRME (BT)
TRECET)

TaEhRE (5E (i)
RIRHEFHR (5F)
H B R = (B2 (i)
TERFIE B R (5 (iii)
SRR R AR AD A B (B IT)

o
() FEEHRERERENET B2 BE—FEARER
FEBMTER G RIS - L BRRBE A

RITERBRE 2 RIE - B ERANBRE L FH
MNZTEHRE » WEEANESR -

(ii) RBAESRETREMFRIEEINEES
mﬁﬁzuk £ o

(i) TEFTARBETENE TR ZBERSME] °
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Share price of DSBG as at grant date (HK$) 11.26
Exercise price (HK$) 12.13
Expected volatility (Note (i) 42.35%
Option life (years) 6
Risk free rate (Note (ii)) 1.71%
Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) 3.44%
Fair value of a share in the option (HK$) 3.35-3.5

Note:

(0]

(ii)

(i)

Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility
of the share price of DSBG, as applicable, during the one year period
immediately preceding the grant date and is based on the assumption
that there is no material difference between the expected volatility over
the time to maturity of the options and the historical volatility of the share
prices of DSBG as set out above.

Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity at grant date.

Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends at grant date.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related
weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

KirERETE KiTRTEEET 8
Old DSFH Scheme 0ld DSBG Scheme
2015 2014 2015 2014

e RTIRE RFWEE TS

RTTRE RTEE %E  AHRIER AHHTEE e

KifeR it 37 AiTeR (%7) AMED ETH g (%7)

AR 8 Rk (&) Ri#E fikE Rh%E (&)

RAHE (B7) e Weighted ~ Number of (B7) Number of Welghted

Number of Weighted Number of average DSBG Weighted DSBG average

DSFH shares average  DSFH shares exercise shares average shares exercise

in share exercise in share price in share exercise in share price

options price options (HKS) options price options (HKS)

granted (HKS) granted (Note (i) granted (HKS) granted (Note (i)

-A-R At 1 January 1,199,528 36.10 1,150,000 3765 12,150,982 8.69 11,800,000 8.92

& Granted - - - - - - 300,000 1213

Fi ok Adjusted for rights issue - - 49,528 36.10 - - 466,401 8.66

Rkl Expired - - = = - - = =

BT Exercised - - - - (270,023) 8.82 (166,168) 7.96

BEE/ R Cancelled/forfeited (365,074) 36.50 - - = = (249,051) 79

12318 At 31 December 834,454 35.92 1,199,628 3%.10 11,880,959 8.69 12,150,982 8.69

12831 BAfIE Exercisable at 31 December 604,980 36.34 636,275 36.65 8,474,534 8.69 6,293,590 8.69
5 Note:

(i) 20145 AR T2 RREZITFEEERAAA
MARFIRITEB D RN 20145 4 A 201445 A
TERK Z AR T IATAEE o

AAER2015F 12 A31 BARITEZRBREZ 1T
EENT31.88/8 7.2 38.35/ 8 0(20144F : N
31.88/ 8L £ 38.35 87T ' B A R AN 2014 F
ZHBETFUAAE)  REMEFEHFGKEOTE
H1A2.334F (20144 : 3.314F) - BN AEBEE
BARITEA B ] B 2 KHER1T 5 MR AR AE -
2015512 A 31 B ARITHE 2 RITIRITE B RAR
EZATEBN T 7.96 8 TE 11.685 7T (20144F
NF7.96BTTE11.6857T ERAFIRITEE
R2014 F 2R FLARE) - RENEFHEFE%
BHITEEA2.34 (20144  3.324F) °

(i) The exercise prices of share options granted prior to May 2014 were
adjusted for the rights issues concluded by both the Company and
DSBG in April 2014 and May 2014 respectively.

The Company’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2015
have exercise prices in the range of HK$31.88 to HK$38.35 (2014:
HK$31.88 to HK$38.35, adjusted for the Company’s rights issue in
2014), and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.33 years
(2014: 3.31 years). In respect of directors and senior executives of
the Group, their applicable DSBG’s share options outstanding as of
31 December 2015 have exercise prices in the range of HK$7.96 to
HK$11.68 (2014: HK$7.96 to HK$11.68, adjusted for DSBG’s rights
issue in 2014), and a weighted average remaining contractual life of
2.3 years (2014: 3.32 years).
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RIEIRRIBRIEA : KK 201412 A31 8 -
ZFREAREWEIERBERMIEI6H [ fE
WkIB RFERIEE | BRIBA - HiH 2 S5

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(@) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the statement of financial
position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts
securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group has
offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from and the
gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As at 31 December
2015, the net amount was a payable and was included in “Other
accounts and accruals”; and as at 31 December 2014, the net amount
was a receivable and was included in “Accounts receivable and
prepayments” in Note 36. The amounts offset are shown below.

TR °
2015 2014
JEW BB REE 2 FRIBLREE Gross amount of accounts receivable
from HKSCC 10,748 88,886
JERNBABRREE 2 FIEREE Gross amount of accounts payable
to HKSCC (31,068) (7,623)
(FERD), /TR B AR R EEFE Net amount due (to)/from HKSCC (20,320) 81,263

(2) RRRR/RERFERBEMBERR K
NEEzTMEERERE

BEFHEEELH

AEBESRARER S FRI AR TR
BEZH UWREEERR - FREER
BRE —BHREBOEN  MEPEXR
FHFZRERRZHGRIE - MABE

RFBRH AR FREE - WIFBLEEY
= MERBFIXFEUNRBELEER
—RISEUBRRRPEHEERAE -

RFeREEERAA |

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs,
all outstanding transactions with the counterparty will be
terminated and all amounts outstanding will be settled on
a net basis. Except for the event of default, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty are settled on a gross basis
and generally do not result in offsetting the assets and liabilities
in the statement of financial position.



(CABBEFThz5I7R)

(2) SFERAETHEREETERRR
AEEcEeREEREBE@®

HERFHEEEZH (%)

TRINFREE  LDERRNZEREFR
BERHELBRBHRAORN ST A

B RARPoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)

Master netting arrangements (Continued)

The following tables present details of financial instruments
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

= and similar agreements.
UERNBRARASELRELE
Related amounts not set offin the
statement of financial position
REBRREAGE,  RERRRRAAT
BEALHAREE SHEERE
Gross amounts of Netamountsof ~ $MIE(BE#RS
BRISRERLE  recognised financial financial assets 87
Gross amounts of  liabilties set off in the presented inthe  Financial instruments BHRLER
recognised financial ~ statement of financial ~ statement of financial (including non-cash Cash collateral ]
WI5E12831R At 31 December 2015 assets position position collateral) received Net amount
SREE Financial assets
fiEEHIA Derivative financial instruments 565,147 - 565,147 (486,594) (18,213) 60,340
YERHBRARNHE L RELR
Related amounts not set offin the
statement of financial position
REBRREALE,  REBRRRAATZ
BRALHEESE SHARRE
Gross amounts of Netamountsof ~ $RIE(EF#EE
BRISHEREE  recognised financial  financial libilities 85
Gross amounts of  assets set off in the presentedinthe  Financial instruments CERBLHER
recognised financial ~ statement of financial  statement of financial  (including non-cash Cash collateral et
015812831 A At 31 December 2015 liabilities position position collateral) placed out Net amount
2RAR Financial liabilties
Firs Deposits from banks 43914 - 43914 43,914 2 5
HeBIA Derivative financial instruments 1,202,261 - 1,202,261 (486,594) (446,015) 359,652
FEEERENER Trading liabiities 6,270,629 - 6,270,629 (6,261,578) - 9,051
B A RER Other acoounts and accruals 123271 - 123214 (123.211) - 5
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(AR F o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
(2) SFERETHEREBEEVEMRRE (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
REHzEeREERAEE W agreement but not offset on the statement of financial

position (Continued)

AR H SR E T () Master netting arrangements (Continued)

GERHBIRAAE B R R
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position

RBARERSE,  RIBRARATIRZ
EEILRRRLR SHRERE

Gross amounts of Netamountsof ~ SETA(EEHES

BEZLHEESE  recognised financia financial assets 85
Gross amounts of  liabiltes set off i the presentedinthe  Financial instruments BHREER

recognised financial  statement of financial ~ statement of financial  (including non-cash Cash collateral 7
A14E1RF3MA At 31 December 2014 assets posttion posttion collateral) received Net amount
SHEE Financial assets
DESTIL Derivative financial instruments 460,642 - 460,642 (412468) - 48,174

ERMHRRAAE B B R
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial posttion
REBREREE,  REBRARAAIT.
EEASHEZLE SHARRE
Gross amounts of Netamountsof ~ £BTE (8RS
BEZLHEEEE  recognised fnancial  financial liabilties )
Gross amounts of  assets set offin the presented inthe  Financial instruments BERRLER

recognised financial ~ statement of financial  statement of financial  (including non-cash Cash collateral i
A14E1RF3MA At 31 December 2014 liabiltes posttion posttion collateral) placed out Net amount
2BAE Financiallibilties
First Deposts from banks 89,421 - 89421 (89421) - -
fiEERIA Derivative financial instruments 1,108,883 - 1,108,883 (¢12,468) (141,207) 535,118
FEEERENER Trading liabites 5,597 514 - 5,597 614 (5,552,866) - 44948
EfRARER Other accounts and accruals - - - - - -
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(AR F iz dlR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

TIREBARKEZ ERHERR K 2 B M
MER - B IFREAH B REZ —FD

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

() BITES B2 EFERRBE (LLERA (@)
BoERUZEARRENE S LD

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed

) by percentage covered by collateral
2015512 A31H 201412 A31H
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
ER4EE Ees
SZEARRE ZHEARRE
ZEA ZBAL
% of gross % of gross
REBEH advances REELEH advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral Balance by collateral
EEBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IHer Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEER - Property development 1,909,605 66.5 1,741,185 67.7
—MERE - Property investment 16,136,906 98.5 15,752,867 98.9
— SR - Financial concerns 1,118,110 30.7 821,938 62.1
—-RELL - Stockbrokers 965,931 45.1 133,234 55.0
—PEETEX - Wholesale and retail trade 4,144,996 90.1 4,497,466 90.1
—BlE% - Manufacturing 3,026,032 93.5 2,971,483 91.3
—BHRERRE - Transport and transport equipment 3,713,584 89.1 4,612,041 94.2
—REED) - Recreational activities 262,522 56.5 277,832 55.9
— BB - Information technology 72,019 89.1 22,938 67.1
—HAf - Others 5,454,602 83.3 5,036,198 84.4
36,804,307 88.5 35,867,182 91.6
EA Individuals
-BE [EERHEHE] - Loans for the purchase of flats in
[FAAZEREE] K Home Ownership Scheme,
[REEEEHE]BF Private Sector Participation
=6 Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme 869,023 100.0 962,720 100.0
-BEHMEENEER - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 21,260,300 99.9 19,451,578 100.0
—-ERARER - Credit card advances 4,465,225 - 3,838,208 -
—HAt - Others 9,217,401 37.5 8,355,472 3583
35,811,949 7.4 32,607,978 7.7
EBRERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 72,616,256 80.1 68,475,160 82.1
B58E (GE(1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 7,394,880 66.5 6,517,342 62.8
TEEBLAIMERNER Loans for use outside
(7F@2) Hong Kong (Note (2)) 29,614,188 68.7 30,237,544 64.8
109,625,324 76.1 105,230,046 76.0
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

() RITE S ECEFERAE(LLEXRA (a)
EPERUSZERARRENE DD
) ()

Q)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector

classified according to the usage of loans and analysed

by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)
Note:
s Rz BImE RS ERESEREL 2

£ M
BiESImMaEREELED WOMEBOMNRME
UAREmESRMESZER

Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and

merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines
issued by the HKMA.
NEREBZBSBMERER(BERHRITZEI

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
RITHMB AR R T2 EFHEE ) 418 592,075,000 finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of DSB) totalling
77L(20144F12 A 31 H : 618,230,000 7T) 544
W EBBAIMERAER]IET °
@

HK$592,075,000 (31 December 2014: HK$618,230,000) are classified
EBEBIMERANERBRER TEARFPEES
BLAIME R Z B3R ©

under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

@

Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.

RFeREEERAA |
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() BIT¥E5 B EFERMABE(UERA
ZHoERUASEARRENBEI LS
) (@)
FRDTRSEREFEFRBEE10% A ERTT
¥  EEMGREERE - @HEFRERER MR
AFHMEMEFRBEEFENT ¢

REELAFTEIBE R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting
10% or more of the total balance of advances to customers, the
attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, and individually
and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances are as follows:

ENER
BAKEE
®B3EA 18 Bl & RATME
Gross REEE HEEE
advances Individually Collectively
AMEBER HEER overdue for assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired over 3 impairment impairment
2015612831 H At 31 December 2015 balance loans months allowances allowances
EBBHERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Traes Industrial, commercial and
financial
—MERE — Property investment 16,136,906 - 45,009 - 26,886
(VN Individuals
—BEEMEE - Loans for the purchase
MEER of other residential
properties 21,260,300 - 23,645 - 2,222
TEBBUIMEBMER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 29,614,188 304,159 356,762 191,321 184,871
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AEELH I E R

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
() ROTESEEFERABE(LLERHA (@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
B9 ﬁ RUZEBERRERENBED LD classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) & by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)
EHEE
ARRER
HiB3fEA TRl 1 Ak
Gross HE%ER REER
advances Individually Collectively
REEEH REER overdue for assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired over 3 impairment impairment
2014512 A31H At 31 December 2014 balance loans months allowances allowances
EEBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IHsR Industrial, commercial and
financial
—MERE - Property investment 15,752,867 = = = 12,357
EA Individuals
—BEAMEE - Loans for the purchase of
MEER other residential
properties 19,451,578 - - - 1,074
TEBEAIMEBMER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 30,237,544 217,649 172,414 135,109 169,999
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() RITE S ECEFERAE(LLEXRA
EPERUSZERARRENE DD
) ()

TEREBFANERSRER 2L EHNREE
RR B MEHEER -

REELAFTEIBE R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the
amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year
were disclosed in the tables below.

AREBER KESREF
R W2 ER

Loans  Recoveries of

B EE written advances
New off as written off in
20156 2015 allowances uncollectible  previous years
EBBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Tr&a Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEERE - Property investment = = =
fEA Individuals
—BEHEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of
other residential Properties - - 474
ERBIME AR E R Loans for use outside Hong Kong 230,629 108,053 11,610
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(ABHEFhrdm) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

() RIT¥ESBEZ2EFERLE(UEXKA (@ Gross advances to customers by industry sector
BOoERUSEARRENE S LD classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) (# by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

AeEEEEN WEERESF
WiEE  MEER

Loans Recoveries of

FTIL written advances
New offas  written off in
20144 2014 allowances uncollectible previous years
ERAERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEer Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment = - 1
fEA Individuals
-BEHEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties - - 614
TEBBLAIMEBHER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 22,653 263,913 8,335
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(2) H B KX AEREE

REFB2ER(RITE(KRE) R - LT HP
BAEEBNBRBEZ AT H2REBSERYF
BIRMERERMA P A2 FFRITRRZE TR
PIREERERBEREAUSE - PR EEAMN
RITREABRITHBRRR T 2 HBEIREER
HVERER ©

REELAFTEIBE R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(b) Mainland activities exposures

The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the

categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct

exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

with reference to the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities, which

includes the Mainland activities exposures extended by DSB and its

Mainland subsidiary bank only.

BERERA EERERHS

)35 53
On-balance Off-balance B
sheet sheet Total
20154 2015 exposure exposure exposures
1. PRI - RIS R & 1. Central government, central government-
HRBARRGERR ([SEAA)) owned entities and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures (“JV”s) 5,600,248 342,416 5,942,664
2. MHEST - B EE NEE R 2. Local governments, local government-owned
HHBRARMAZEAT entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 1,812,458 556,047 2,368,505
3. BEEFREAM  BRFAEFBAMALE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
HiERARBARNEE AR other entities incorporated in Mainland
China and their subsidiaries and JVs 6,880,961 2,069,484 8,950,445
4 REELAE-BERPRBFHOEMEE 4. Other entities of central government not
reported in item 1 above 671,859 174,376 846,235
5 ABELME_H2M A HEMEMERE 5. Other entities of local governments not
reported in item 2 above 374,271 231,530 605,801
6. EEERBAMANZ BIR S AR B RIS 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
FRALKVER - Ty RE R BEAER China or entities incorporated outside
Mainland China where the credits are
granted for use in Mainland China 10,677,468 336,276 11,013,744
7. B R ZEHF - ERBRIR L P BIRRE 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
FRITER PRI considered to be non-bank Mainland
China exposures 8,270 - 8,270
26,025,535 3,710,129 29,735,664
AERITREAMRITHBARZ Total assets of DSB and its Mainland
MRRER EER subsidiary bank after provision 181,672,638
BEARKANBRBEEEST AL On-balance sheet exposures as

percentage of total assets 14.33%
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
(2) BB RFEEKNEREE @) (b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)
BEBERKN  BEBERND
igfo HIEAER
On-balance Off-balance e
sheet sheet Total
20144 2014 exposure exposure exposures
1. RREST - RRBEATERAEER 1. Central government, central government-
EWBRRMEERH owned entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 8,356,840 57,758 8,414,598
2. MAHIT - AR EENEER 2. Local governments, local government-owned
HHBRARMAE DT entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 2,686,695 50,814 2,737,509
3. BEEREA 7 BRSFAEFBEAMALZE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
HinERERBRAANEERA other entities incorporated in Mainland
China and their subsidiaries and JVs 8,665,363 1,791,678 10,457,041
4 RBELME-H2RZPRPFAHEMERE 4. Other entities of central government not
reported in item 1 above 123,365 - 123,365

5. REELME—BER2MHBFHOEMHEE 5. Other entities of local governments not
reported in item 2 above - - -
6. EEARE AN 2 BIRFAERE RSN 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
FZRTE - 5 REVER B Bl A B China or entities incorporated outside
Mainland China where the credits are

granted for use in Mainland China 7,457,039 222,237 7,679,276
7. R EHF - ERBERR LB 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
FRTEEFRHE considered to be non-bank Mainland
China exposures - - -
27,289,302 2,122,487 29,411,789
RNIBRITREARHRITHE AR Z Total assets of DSB and its Mainland
MkREE 2 EER subsidiary bank after provision 172,905,559
BEABRANBENEEATBEALL On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets 15.78%
3 I ERpEeRRRE e EMEREER Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and
B4 - other balances of claims on the customers.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
loans by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that
of the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers,
individually impaired advances to customers, overdue advances to
customers and individually and collectively assessed impairment
allowances by geographical area.

B B3R & 185U 3 AR

BEFEX B BB

EFEEXME  Individually BHIEFEXR  Individually  Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advances to advancesto advances to impairment impairment

2015F12A 31 H At 31 December 2015 customers customers customers allowances allowances
5 Hong Kong 88,670,794 694,726 482,606 283,589 205,814
F China 7,374,771 76,030 186,222 31,712 101,454
BRI Macau 12,007,126 25,507 31,236 12,608 44,534
Hith Others 1,572,633 56 56 44 6,270
109,625,324 796,319 700,120 327,953 358,072

TEBIR{E 1B RIFH& fRE AT

EPER RIER A%

ZEFEF#E  Individually #EZEFEF  Individualy  Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advancesto  advancesto  advances to impairment impairment

2014412 A31H At 31 December 2014 customers customers customers allowances allowances
B Hong Kong 83,856,418 217,196 251,710 123,521 144,074
aalEl China 8,278,746 110,874 44,674 81,114 98,321
JRPY Macau 11,435,277 20,153 25,442 13,045 44,671
HAh, Others 1,659,605 64 64 64 4,003
105,230,046 348,287 321,890 217,744 291,069
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(T) EIRRfERE

BREREHREZERRRNERK  REXS
553 B BT AE 3t T 4% BB B 1M SR 5 B T S AR T Y
B - —RME EXHHETFHEEEHETR
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ZREBERER - RERBKERERETE10% A
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(d) International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures to

foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived

according to the location of the counterparties after taking into account

any transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to another

is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by

another party in a different country or if the claims are on an overseas

branch of a bank whose head office is located in a different country. Only

regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international claims

after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are disclosed.

FRITIHAKLE
Non-bank private sector
FRAT FEr
SRS FAKLE
BH#E Non-bank Non-financial
201512831 H At 31 December 2015 R1T Official financial private BEREAHE
BEBT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector  Total claims
BE RO Offshore centres 3,758 13,771 3,231 113,347 134,107
-Hi: BF - of which: Hong Kong 2,483 11,676 3,089 98,523 115,771
BERPDAR Developing Asia and
Pacific 28,424 1,574 863 9,223 40,084
—HA - of which: Mainland
China 22,107 1,574 847 7,821 32,349
FERRITAL AT
Non-bank private sector
FERIT et
SR FAARTE
BVl 1 Non-bank  Non-financial
201412 A31H At 31 December 2014 $R1T Official financial private EREREE
BEBT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector  Total claims
BEEAHL Offshore centres 4,736 9,718 1,801 108,004 124,259
—-Hip B - of which: Hong Kong 4,232 8,596 1,207 94,214 108,249
ERADAR Developing Asia and
Pacific 26,356 2,124 1,145 11,560 41,185
-Hep - of which: Mainland
China 20,974 2,124 756 9,567 33,421

BB FZRAECHRREALERN20155F
ELHEREREZHEFREZOR -
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The comparative amounts have been prepared to conform with

the new reporting basis and the categorisation on the types of

counterparties as required by HKMA in 2015.
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(R) FEARERIAREEZERRREN
D

REELAFTEIBE R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(e) Credit commitments and contingent liabilities analysed
by percentage covered by collateral

2015 2014
ZIEAm S
EHLE RENESL HEREE REMASL
Contract % covered Contract % covered

amount by collateral amount by collateral

M REREEMEERRE

contingent liabilities

EFAENEMEERBZ

HRYE other credit related

commitments

(F) KERTR

A EEIRR S EERE TR SR
EOERERIEERER -

Rz EREINEERR - miHRER - AMEER
B nEEeRER - B‘%VEJ—L - B b & SRR
MER - FERRZEEIBZRNAEEZEE
HE EThERmmENTERE A EER
BN AN MEIBEG O EEE -

REDH T SRR TIRRMER - EBEAK
BEERBRACEERSGNEERBRINCE
BEXSHREBFHRERRM -

) % [z B 8 R ) 3R ) N T B2 B i 5| B Sk B Y B
Eﬁlﬂj‘/ﬂﬁﬁuumﬂg“ °

nBEERBIEAREREENTETAER
BRNBATRMENEERELIMI B Z SR
BEETNREE -

other credit related

Financial guarantees and

Loan commitments and

1,215,161 20.6 1,487,700 171
69,244,002 9.7 69,193,856 9.5

70,459,163 9.8 70,681,556 9.6

(A) Banking Group

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it
through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on credit risk, market risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk and strategic risk.
Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
commercial and retail lending, equipment and hire purchase
financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale lending.

Market risk arises mainly from the Treasury Division and is associated
principally with the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions in the
trading book and its investment securities.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition
resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in

assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable losses.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(A) Banking Group (Continued)

Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational errors
or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause customer
concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base or market
share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial
and market positions of the Group because of poor strategic
decisions, unacceptable financial performance, and inappropriate
implementation of strategies and lack of effective response to the
market changes.

The other risk management aspects are disclosed below.

() The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for
the management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the
Board in relation to risk control are:

o the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure
that credit and other risks are properly managed at both
the transaction and portfolio levels;

. the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit
Committee; review of key results (against forecasts),
operational statistics and policy compliance; and

° the review of financial performance by analysis against
approved budgets and analysis of variations in key non-
financial measures.

The RMCC have been delegated the authority to oversee
and guide the management of different risks which are more
particularly managed and dealt with by GRD and different
functional committees.
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(i) Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring
that policies and mandates are established for the Group as a
whole. GRD monitors and reports the Group’s risk positions to
the Board via the RMCC, sets standards for the management of
financial risks and data integrity and ensures that the financial
risks are fully considered in the product planning and pricing
process. GRD reviews and manages all credit and risk exposure
policies for the Group including the approval of exposures to
new markets, economic sectors, organisations, credit products
and financial instruments which expose the Group to different
types of risks. In determining risk policies, GRD takes into

HITERIES| « EIGH A LK E S AR E account the guidelines established by the HKMA, business
TR - direction, and risk adjusted performance of each business.
AEERBREENEXENSFERAEE The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance
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(i) EEZE&

the overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables
the Group to meet the changing regulatory requirements
and enter into credit exposures with the confidence that it
understands the associated risks and rewards.

The Group continues to evolve its risk management capabilities
under the aegis of the Head of GRD, with increasing focus of
its risk strategy on risk and reward and returns on capital. The
Group uses a range of risk measurement and analytical tools
in its management of various risks which it faces in its day-to-
day businesses and these are continually being enhanced and
upgraded to reflect the ever-changing business needs and the
requirements of the regulators.

(iii)  Credit committees

AEEREEEEEZESEEHZEK The Group has a GCC for approving major credit limits. The
MEERREE FEEEZEHENE CMC and the TIRC are the functional committees responsible
&Txﬁﬂﬁ,A ZEEeADRIEER &E]fé% for approving and recommending policies, limits and mandates
BEERENMEZERE  HEMNER for risk control in loans and treasury business respectively. The
FlEEZIGERES - ﬁi?&%i‘kfﬁﬁki credit risk function, while set up to support the business areas,
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reports solely to the GRD.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(A)

Banking Group (Continued)

(iv)  Market risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of
the risk management policies and procedures adopted are set
out in Note 3.8 to the financial statements.

(v)  Operational risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management, an
independent risk management team and operational risk
officers from each business and support function, and
operating through a set of operational risk policies, risk tool-
kits, operational risk incident reporting and tracking system,
and control self-assessment and key risk indicator tools. The
Operational Risk and Internal Control Committee (“ORICC”)
has been set up to oversee the operational risk management
and internal control matters of the Group. ORICC is chaired by
the Chief Executive with certain Executive Directors and senior
management as members. Together with a well-established
internal control system, operational risk can be adequately
identified, assessed, monitored and mitigated. To allow the
operational risk framework to be clearly communicated to all
levels within the Group, awareness and training programs are
conducted from time to time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event
of system failure or disasters, back-up sites and operation
recovery policies and plans have been established and tested
for all critical business and operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic
independent reviews of internal control systems by external
and internal auditors. The Group’s RMCC have an overall
oversight of the performance and effectiveness of operational

risk management.
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(vi)  Reputation risk

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high
standard of corporate governance and management oversight,
maintenance of effective policies and procedures with emphasis
on internal control, risk management and compliance; anti-
money laundering and counter terrorist financing; proper staff
training and supervision; staff awareness of compliance issues;
proper handling of customer complaints or dissatisfaction; and
adherence to sound business practices. Standards are set and
policies and procedures are established by the Group in all
areas, which operate to reduce vulnerability to reputation risk.

(vii) ~ Strategic risk

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is
directly responsible for the management of strategic risk.
Directors formulate the strategic goals and key direction of
the Group in line with the Group’s corporate mission, ensure
business strategies are developed to achieve these goals,
oversee the strategic development and implementation to
secure compatibility with the Group’s strategic goals, ensure
proper change management is in place, review business
performance and address issues arising from anticipated
operational or market changes, deploy proper resources to
achieve the Group’s objectives, and authorise management to
take appropriate actions to mitigate risks.

(viij Compliance with the Basel Ill Capital Standards

Since the revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel
Il has become effective from January 2007, DSB has adopted
the standardised approach for credit risk and market risk, and
the basic indicator approach for operational risk. These are the
default approaches as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules.
Accordingly, the Group has overhauled its systems and controls
in order to meet the standards required for these approaches.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(A)

Banking Group (Continued)

(viiij Compliance with the Basel Il Capital Standards
(Continued)

To implement the new international capital standards commonly
referred to as the “Basel IlI” rules, the HKMA had published the
Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules between 2012 and 2014,
and revised SPM CA-G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process”
in the 4th quarter of 2012. The revised capital standards and
related regulatory requirements have come into force for all
locally incorporated authorised institutions in Hong Kong
starting from 1 January 2013. DSB has enhanced its capital
management and reporting framework as well as disclosures for

meeting the new requirements.

In addition to the implementation of the Banking (Capital)
Rules under the Basel Ill framework in Hong Kong, two new
capital buffers, namely the Capital Conservation Buffer and
Countercyclical Capital Buffer, designed to ensure that banks
build up sufficient capital to withstand periods of stress
and system-wide risk associated with periods of excessive
aggregate credit growth, would commence to phase in starting
from 1 January 2016. To align with the regulatory requirements,
DSB’s capital management framework has been enhanced to
incorporate the two capital buffers as elements in the setting
of internal capital targets for capital adequacy monitoring and
capital planning.

To address the negative externalities posed by systemically
important institutions, the Basel Committee established a
framework in November 2011 (subsequently updated in July
2013) for the identification of global systemically important
banks (“G-SIBs”) and the determination of their corresponding
HLA capital requirements. Subsequently, a principles-based
framework for dealing with domestic systemically important
banks (“D-SIBs”) was issued by the Basel Committee in
October 2012. Based on the latest list of G-SIBs and D-SIBs
issued by the Financial Stability Board (“FSB”) and the HKMA
respectively, DSB is neither designated as a G-SIB nor D-SIB
and is therefore not subject to further capital surcharge.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(A) Banking Group (Continued)
(ix)  Launch of new product or service

The launch of every new product or service is governed by the
New Product Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk
Policy which requires the relevant business and supporting
units, including GRD, to review the critical requirements,
risk assessment and resources plan before the launch. New
products or services which could have a significant impact on
the Group’s risk profile should be brought to the attention of
the Board or its designated committee(s) before the launch. The
Group’s Internal Audit function performs regular independent
review and testing to ensure compliance by the relevant units in

the new product approval process.

(B) Insurance Group

The Group’s insurance business is exposed to multiple risks,
including insurance risk, product risk, investment risk and business
risks. We believe that effective risk management is an integral part
of our insurance business’ control process and operations, and that
effective control of risks assists to maintain the profitability and
stability of our business.

The key risks of our insurance business and related risk control
process are as follows:

(i) Insurance risk

The Group’s insurance operation is in the business of
underwriting insurance risk and retains various maximum
amounts per risk or event dependent on the type of risk with the
excess being reinsured through various reinsurance and related
agreements which are regularly reviewed. Catastrophe cover
arrangements are also in place whereby a number of claims
relating to a specific incident in aggregate would represent a
material risk to the Group are reinsured.

Underwriting and claims practices and procedures are

documented and reviewed. External independent actuaries are
engaged to evaluate the adequacy of the insurance reserves.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(B)

Insurance Group (Continued)

(i) Product risk

New products and major revisions to existing products undergo
a product approval process with the profitability being reviewed
and where appropriate assessed by internal and external
independent actuaries.

(iii)  Investment risk

Our investment practice is to maintain a conservatively invested
portfolio which attempts to maintain value whilst matching
assets and policyholder liabilities as appropriate, by yield,
duration and currency taking account of the associated risks,
taxation and regulatory requirements.

(iv)  Business risks

The Group’s Hong Kong insurance subsidiaries, DSLA and
DSI (1976), follow the policies and procedures of the Group in
assessing business risk in terms of contingency and interruption
planning as well as providing training for staff and agents to
comply with the relevant rules and regulations covering their
businesses. Macau Insurance Company Limited and Macau Life
Insurance Company Limited, which are insurance subsidiaries
of the Group operating in Macau, have their own policies and
procedures to comply with the relevant requirements in Macau.
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(v)  Capital management

In each market in which the Group’s insurance subsidiaries
operate, the local insurance regulator specifies the minimum
amount and type of capital that must be held by each of
the subsidiaries in addition to their insurance liabilities. The
minimum required capital must be maintained at all times
throughout the year. The Group’s subsidiaries are subject to
insurance solvency regulations in the markets in which they
issue insurance and investment contracts, and where they have
complied with the local solvency regulations. The Group has
embedded in its asset and liability management framework the
necessary tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with
such regulations. The solvency requirement of each insurance
company in each market is subject to local requirements,
which may differ from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. In Hong Kong,
the required margin of solvency for the Group’s life insurance
subsidiary, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, is
determined by the Group’s appointed actuary in accordance
with the Hong Kong Insurance Companies (Margin of Solvency)
Regulation. In addition, dynamic solvency test is also required
by the Insurance Authority to identify the solvency position of
the company on a going concern basis and plausible threats
to satisfactory financial condition. For current and previous
reporting period/year, the results of dynamic solvency test are
satisfactory.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(C) The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective
assurance and consulting unit, which is designed to focus on
enhancing and sustaining sound internal control in all business and
operational units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the
Group Audit Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-
Executive Director. The Division conducts a wide variety of internal
control activities such as compliance audits and operations and
systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness
of the systems of control of the Group.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 105 to 306, which comprise the consolidated statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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